

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Fifty-ninth Legislative Assembly

* * * * *

Bismarck, April 23, 2005

The House convened at 8:00 a.m., with Speaker Klein presiding.

The prayer was offered by Rep. Bette Grande, District 41, Fargo.

The roll was called and all members were present except Representative Williams.

A quorum was declared by the Speaker.

CORRECTION AND REVISION OF THE JOURNAL

MR. SPEAKER: Your **Committee on Correction and Revision of the Journal (Rep. Kretschmar, Chairman)** has carefully examined the Journal of the Seventy Fifth Day and recommends that it be corrected as follows and when so corrected, recommends that it be approved:

Page 1934, line 4 remove the period and insert "; and to provide an effective date."

Page 1950, line 3 remove the period and insert "; and to provide an effective date."

REP. KRETSCHMAR MOVED that the report be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

SB 2373, as reengrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Trenbeath, Syverson, Triplett and Reps. Wieland, Pollert, Metcalf) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments on SJ page 1182, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2373 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on page 1182 of the Senate Journal and page 1442 of the House Journal and that Reengrossed Senate Bill No. 2373 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for the implementation of a pilot program for the treatment of individuals who are chemically dependent on methamphetamine or other controlled substances; to provide for a report to the legislative assembly; to provide an appropriation; and to provide an expiration date."

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. Substance abuse treatment pilot program. The department of human services shall implement a substance abuse treatment pilot program consisting of up to twenty beds at the state hospital or at a private treatment facility through a grant as determined by the department for the treatment and rehabilitation of individuals who are chemically dependent on methamphetamine or other controlled substances. Prior to establishing the program, the department shall issue a statewide request for proposal seeking providers for this program.

SECTION 2. REPORT TO LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. The department of human services shall collect statistics regarding the operation of the pilot program, track participants in the pilot program, and provide a report to the sixtieth legislative assembly detailing the number of participants in the pilot program, the cost of the pilot program, relapse statistics, and other data concerning the effectiveness of the pilot program provided for under section 1 of this Act.

SECTION 3. APPROPRIATION - ADDITIONAL FUNDS - EMERGENCY COMMISSION AND BUDGET SECTION APPROVAL. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$500,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, and from other funds consisting of third party, client payments, and other sources, the sum of \$800,000, to the department of human services for the costs associated with establishing the pilot

program at the state hospital or at a private treatment facility for the treatment of individuals who are chemically dependent on methamphetamine or other controlled substances, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007. The funds appropriated under this section may not be used for the cost of any facility construction or renovation project. If additional federal or other funds become available for the treatment services provided for under this section, the department of human services may seek emergency commission and budget section approval to receive and spend the funds for treatment services, excluding construction or renovation projects.

SECTION 4. EXPIRATION DATE. Section 1 of this Act is effective through June 30, 2007, and after that date is ineffective."

Renumber accordingly

Reengrossed SB 2373 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. WIELAND MOVED that the conference committee report on Reengrossed SB 2373 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Reengrossed SB 2373, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2373: A BILL for an Act to provide for the implementation of a pilot program for the treatment of individuals who are chemically dependent on methamphetamine or other controlled substances; to provide for a report to the legislative assembly; to provide an appropriation; and to provide an expiration date.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 88 YEAS, 5 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brandenburg; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Conrad; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; Devlin; Dietrich; Dosch; Drovda; Ekstrom; Froelich; Froseth; Glassheim; Grande; Guleson; Haas; Hanson; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Horter; Hunsakor; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Kasper; Kelsch, R.; Kelsch, S.; Kempenich; Kerzman; Kingsbury; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Maragos; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Monson; Mueller; Nelson; Nicholas; Norland; Nottestad; Onstad; Owens; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Sandvig; Schmidt; Skarphol; Solberg; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Timm; Uglem; Vigasaa; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Wrangham; Zaiser; Speaker Klein

NAYS: Bellew; Galvin; Keiser; Ruby; Sitte

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Williams

Reengrossed SB 2373 passed and the title was agreed to.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

SB 2021, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Christmann, Fischer, Robinson and Reps. Skarphol, Monson, Glassheim) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments on SJ pages 1158-1161, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2021 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1158-1161 of the Senate Journal and pages 1359-1363 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2021 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 2, after the semicolon insert "to provide an appropriation; to provide a contingent appropriation; to provide a statement of legislative intent;"

Page 2, line 3, replace "3,365,672" with "2,080,403"

Page 2, line 4, replace "16,792,816" with "9,926,842"

Page 2, line 6, replace "187,400" with "182,159"

Page 2, line 7, replace "(57,814)" with "91,936"

Page 2, line 9, replace "106,238" with "105,988"

Page 2, line 11, replace "8,219" with "8,094"

Page 2, line 13, replace "(2,360,110)" with "(2,216,110)"

Page 2, line 14, replace "\$1,855,446" with "(\$6,007,663)"

Page 2, line 15, replace "585,355" with "(7,569,758)"

Page 2, line 16, replace "1,270,091" with "1,562,095"

Page 2, line 23, replace "29,081,366" with "27,796,097"

Page 2, line 24, replace "48,913,676" with "42,047,702"

Page 2, line 26, replace "5,812,880" with "5,807,639"

Page 2, line 27, replace "736,004" with "885,754"

Page 2, line 29, replace "7,542,461" with "7,542,211"

Page 2, line 30, replace "686,562" with "686,437"

Page 2, line 31, replace "2,381,090" with "2,525,090"

Page 3, line 1, replace "108,167,550" with "100,304,441"

Page 3, line 2, replace "98,702,656" with "90,547,543"

Page 3, line 3, replace "9,464,894" with "9,756,898"

Page 3, after line 3, insert:

"SECTION 4. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$125,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the secretary of state for a portion of the costs associated with migrating the agency's information technology data base from the AS/400 to a current platform, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007.

SECTION 5. CONTINGENT APPROPRIATION. If the fifty-ninth legislative assembly authorizes the replacement of the department of human services' medicaid management information system, there is appropriated out of special funds derived from other income, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$8,125,784 to the information technology department for costs associated with development and implementation of the system, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007. The information technology department is authorized ten additional full-time equivalent positions for the project; however, the positions are only authorized until the development and implementation of the system is completed.

SECTION 6. CRIMINAL JUSTICE INFORMATION SHARING AND EDUCATIONAL TECHNOLOGY COUNCIL. If federal homeland security funding or other federal funding becomes available, the first \$175,000 must be used to complete all proposed criminal justice information sharing initiative projects totaling \$418,910. The next \$50,000 must be used to replace funding from the general fund appropriated for the criminal justice information sharing initiative projects with the savings being made available to the educational technology council for additional classroom video and classroom transformation grants. Any remaining funds must be used to replace funding appropriated from the general fund with the funds from the general fund remaining unspent."

Page 3, line 27, replace "5" with "8"

Renumber accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

Senate Bill No. 2021 - Summary of Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	SENATE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	HOUSE VERSION	COMPARISON TO HOUSE
Secretary of State						
Total all funds	\$0	\$0	\$125,000	\$125,000	\$0	\$125,000
Less estimated income						
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$125,000	\$125,000	\$0	\$125,000
Information Technology Department						
Total all funds	\$109,640,934	\$108,167,550	\$262,675	\$108,430,225	\$108,962,117	(\$531,892)
Less estimated income	98,830,575	98,702,656	(29,329)	98,673,327	98,673,327	
General fund	\$10,810,359	\$9,464,894	\$292,004	\$9,756,898	\$10,288,790	(\$531,892)
Industrial Commission						
Total all funds	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$100,000	(\$100,000)
Less estimated income						
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$100,000	(\$100,000)
Bill Total						
Total all funds	\$109,640,934	\$108,167,550	\$387,675	\$108,555,225	\$109,062,117	(\$506,892)
Less estimated income	98,830,575	98,702,656	(29,329)	98,673,327	98,673,327	
General fund	\$10,810,359	\$9,464,894	\$417,004	\$9,881,898	\$10,388,790	(\$506,892)

Senate Bill No. 2021 - Secretary of State - Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	SENATE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	HOUSE VERSION	COMPARISON TO HOUSE
Salaries and wages						
Operating expenses			\$125,000	\$125,000		\$125,000
Total all funds	\$0	\$0	\$125,000	\$125,000	\$0	\$125,000
Less estimated income						
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$125,000	\$125,000	\$0	\$125,000
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

Dept. 108 - Secretary of State - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

	PROVIDES FUNDING FOR INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY PROJECT ¹	TOTAL CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES
Salaries and wages		
Operating expenses	\$125,000	\$125,000
Total all funds	\$125,000	\$125,000
Less estimated income		
General fund	\$125,000	\$125,000
FTE	0.00	0.00

¹ This amendment provides a \$125,000 general fund appropriation to the Secretary of State for a portion of the costs associated with migrating the agency's information technology data base from the AS/400 to a current platform. Funding of \$250,000 from the general fund for the project was removed from the agency's appropriations bill, House Bill No. 1002, by the House and not restored by the Senate.

Senate Bill No. 2021 - Information Technology Department - Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	SENATE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	HOUSE VERSION	COMPARISON TO HOUSE
Salaries and wages	\$29,200,029	\$29,081,366	(\$1,285,269)	\$27,796,097	\$27,796,097	
Operating expenses	48,913,676	48,913,676	(6,865,974)	42,047,702	42,047,702	
Capital assets	10,361,163	10,361,163		10,361,163	10,361,163	
Division of Independent Study	5,827,909	5,812,880	(5,241)	5,807,639	5,956,439	(\$148,800)
Educational Technology Council	1,755,189	736,004	149,750	885,754	1,093,936	(208,182)
EduTech	2,652,348	2,652,348		2,652,348	2,652,348	
Wide area network	7,543,414	7,542,461	(250)	7,542,211	7,542,211	
Geographic information system	687,206	686,562	(125)	686,437	686,437	
Criminal justice information sharing	2,700,000	2,381,090	144,000	2,525,090	2,700,000	(174,910)
Contingent appropriation			8,125,784	8,125,784	8,125,784	
Total all funds	\$109,640,934	\$108,167,550	\$262,675	\$108,430,225	\$108,962,117	(\$531,892)
Less estimated income	98,830,575	98,702,656	(29,329)	98,673,327	98,673,327	
General fund	\$10,810,359	\$9,464,894	\$292,004	\$9,756,898	\$10,288,790	(\$531,892)
FTE	265.20	265.20	0.00	265.20	265.20	0.00

Dept. 112 - Information Technology Department - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

	REDUCES RECOMMENDED FUNDING FOR HEALTH INSURANCE	RESTORES FUNDING FOR THE EDUCATIONAL TECHNOLOGY COUNCIL ¹	RESTORES FUNDING FOR THE CRIMINAL JUSTICE INFORMATION SHARING INITIATIVE ²	REMOVES FUNDING RELATING TO MMIS PROJECT AND PROVIDES A CONTINGENT APPROPRIATION ³	TOTAL CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES
Salaries and wages	(\$25,459)			(\$1,259,810)	(\$1,285,269)
Operating expenses				(6,865,974)	(6,865,974)
Capital assets					
Division of Independent Study	(5,241)				(5,241)
Educational Technology Council	(250)	\$150,000			149,750
EduTech					
Wide area network	(250)				(250)
Geographic information system	(125)				(125)
Criminal justice information sharing			\$144,000		144,000
Contingent appropriation				8,125,784	8,125,784
Total all funds	(\$31,325)	\$150,000	\$144,000	\$0	\$262,675
Less estimated income	(29,329)				(29,329)
General fund	(\$1,996)	\$150,000	\$144,000	\$0	\$292,004
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

¹ This amendment increases funding for Educational Technology Council grants to schools by \$150,000, from \$435,000 to \$585,000, to provide funding of \$35,000 for learning management system licenses and \$550,000 for classroom video grants, classroom transformation grants, and atomic learning licenses. The Senate reduced funding for Educational Technology Council grants to schools by \$1,018,182, from \$1,453,182 to \$435,000, and the House increased funding by \$358,182, from \$435,000 to \$793,182. The following is a summary of funding for grants to schools for the 2005-07 biennium:

Executive budget	\$1,453,182
Senate version	\$435,000
House version	\$793,182
Conference committee version	\$585,000

² This amendment restores funding of \$144,000 from the general fund for the criminal justice information sharing initiative. The amendment also adds a section of legislative intent providing that if federal funds become available, the department should use the federal funds for the initiative before the funding appropriated from the general fund. The Senate reduced funding from the general fund for the criminal justice information sharing initiative by \$318,910, from \$700,000 to \$381,090, and the House restored the funding of \$318,910. The following is a summary of funding from the general fund for the criminal justice information sharing initiative for the 2005-07 biennium:

Executive budget	\$700,000
Senate version	\$381,090
House version	\$700,000
Conference committee version	\$525,090

³ This amendment provides that the funding and FTE positions associated with the replacement of the Medicaid management information system is contingent upon the approval of the project by the Legislative Assembly. This change was also made by the House.

This amendment also provides that \$50,000 may be made available from the criminal justice information sharing line item to the Educational Technology Council line item for additional classroom video and classroom transformation grants if federal funds become available to complete all proposed criminal justice information sharing projects.

This amendment does not include a section to amend subsection 11 of North Dakota Century Code Section 28-32-01 to provide that certain policies, standards, and guidelines of the Information Technology Department are exempt from compliance with the Administrative Agencies Practice Act.

This amendment does not include funding of \$148,800 from the general fund for the Division of Independent Study for developing, publishing, and distributing a North Dakota studies textbook and workbook for grades 4 and 8 as the funding is included in House Bill No. 1013. This funding was included in the House version of the bill.

Senate Bill No. 2021 - Industrial Commission - Conference Committee Action

This amendment does not provide any funding for the Industrial Commission for the costs associated with connecting the state paleontologist located in the Heritage Center to Internet2, as provided in the House version of the bill.

Engrossed SB 2021 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. SKARPHOL MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2021 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed SB 2021, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2021: A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the information technology department; to provide an appropriation; to provide a contingent appropriation; to provide a statement of legislative intent; to amend and reenact subsection 4 of section 54-59-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the powers and duties of the information technology department; and to declare an emergency.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 75 YEAS, 18 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Berg; Bernstein; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brandenburg; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Conrad; Damschen; Delmore; Devlin; Dietrich; Ekstrom; Froseth; Galvin; Glassheim; Grande; Gulleson; Haas; Hanson; Hawken; Headland; Horter; Hunsakor; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Kaldor; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kingsbury; Klemin; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Maragos; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Monson; Mueller; Nelson; Nicholas; Norland; Onstad; Owens; Pietsch; Pollert; Potter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Sandvig; Schmidt; Sitte; Skarphol; Solberg; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Timm; Uglem; Vigasaa; Wald; Wall; Weisz; Wieland; Wrangham; Zaiser; Speaker Klein

NAYS: Bellew; Belter; DeKrey; Delzer; Dosch; Drovdal; Froelich; Herbel; Johnson, N.; Kasper; Keiser; Kerzman; Koppelman; Meyer, S.; Nottestad; Porter; Ruby; Weiler

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Williams

Engrossed SB 2021 passed, the title was agreed to, and the emergency clause was declared carried.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

SB 2003, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Holmberg, Kringstad, Robinson and Reps. Aarsvold, Brusegaard, Martinson) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments on SJ pages 1247-1256, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2003 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1247-1256 of the Senate Journal and pages 1471-1480 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2003 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 3, replace "a report" with "reports"

Page 1, line 4, replace "performance audit of the university of North Dakota school of medicine" with "legislative council study; to amend and reenact section 15-62.2-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to student financial assistance grants"

Page 1, line 5, remove "and health sciences"

Page 5, line 11, replace "1,130,634" with "1,399,694"

Page 5, line 12, replace "1,047,862" with "1,045,572"

Page 5, line 13, replace "(4,115,556)" with "(4,526,546)"

Page 5, after line 13, insert:

"Operations pool	(189,858)
Equity pool	2,000,000"

Page 5, line 16, replace "1,846,073" with "574,187"

Page 5, line 17, replace "35,480" with "186,480"

Page 5, line 21, replace "\$1,002,386" with "\$457,350"

Page 5, line 23, replace "515,845" with "1,060,881"

Page 5, line 26, replace "769,695" with "753,221"

Page 5, line 28, replace "\$519,024" with "\$535,498"

Page 5, line 30, replace "763,176" with "746,702"

Page 6, line 2, replace "361,425" with "357,307"

Page 6, line 4, replace "329,131" with "325,013"

Page 6, line 6, replace "704,131" with "700,013"

Page 6, line 9, replace "371,523" with "365,626"

Page 6, line 10, replace "6,907,685" with "8,047,685"

Page 6, line 11, replace "7,279,208" with "8,413,311"

Page 6, line 12, replace "6,910,000" with "7,960,000"

Page 6, line 13, replace "369,208" with "453,311"

Page 6, line 16, replace "8,070,453" with "7,993,476"

Page 6, line 18, replace "9,108,862" with "9,031,885"

Page 6, line 20, replace "8,008,862" with "7,931,885"

Page 6, line 23, replace "8,290,440" with "8,227,691"

Page 6, line 25, replace "\$17,754,865" with "\$17,817,614"

Page 6, line 27, replace "8,245,135" with "8,182,386"

Page 6, line 30, replace "1,072,000" with "1,050,004"

Page 6, line 31, replace "(3,320,168)" with "(1,620,168)"

Page 7, line 1, replace "\$2,248,168" with "\$570,164"

Page 7, line 2, replace "(3,300,000)" with "(1,600,000)"

Page 7, line 3, replace "1,051,832" with "1,029,836"

Page 7, line 6, replace "1,006,685" with "1,112,796"

Page 7, line 8, replace "\$4,885,634" with "\$4,779,523"

Page 7, line 10, replace "996,413" with "1,102,524"

Page 7, line 13, replace "409,157" with "401,295"

Page 7, line 14, replace "(4,060,595)" with "(3,910,595)"

Page 7, line 15, replace "\$3,651,438" with "\$3,509,300"

Page 7, line 17, replace "353,562" with "495,700"

Page 7, line 20, replace "1,469,553" with "1,446,271"

Page 7, line 21, replace "3,519,020" with "3,599,020"

Page 7, line 22, replace "4,988,573" with "5,045,291"

Page 7, line 24, replace "1,453,573" with "1,510,291"

Page 7, line 27, replace "512,599" with "501,854"

Page 7, line 28, replace "(3,810,218)" with "(3,842,218)"

Page 7, line 29, replace "(\$3,297,619)" with "(\$3,340,364)"

Page 7, line 30, replace "(4,053,300)" with "(4,085,300)"

Page 7, line 31, replace "755,681" with "744,936"

Page 8, line 3, replace "235,629" with "231,604"

Page 8, line 5, replace "3,635,691" with "3,631,666"

Page 8, line 7, replace "135,691" with "131,666"

Page 8, line 10, replace "1,209,963" with "1,195,137"

Page 8, line 11, replace "1,209,963" with "1,195,137"

Page 8, line 15, replace "213,000" with "210,630"

Page 8, line 16, replace "168,577" with "166,207"

Page 8, line 18, replace "283,577" with "281,207"

Page 8, line 19, replace "24,846,649" with "25,566,475"

Page 8, line 20, replace "(\$31,485,778)" with "(\$28,767,778)"

Page 8, line 21, replace "(\$6,639,129)" with "(\$3,201,303)"

Page 9, line 3, replace "1,615,940" with "1,885,000"

Page 9, line 4, replace "5,520,712" with "5,518,422"

Page 9, line 6, replace "20,974,083" with "20,563,093"

Page 9, line 7, replace "578,417" with "388,559"

Page 9, after line 7, insert:
"Equity pool

2,000,000"

Page 9, line 10, replace "4,776,288" with "3,504,402"

Page 9, line 11, replace "1,713,780" with "1,864,780"

Page 9, line 15, replace "59,471,851" with "60,016,887"

Page 9, line 17, replace "57,134,575" with "57,679,611"

Page 9, line 20, replace "16,882,022" with "16,865,548"

Page 9, line 22, replace "17,628,303" with "17,611,829"

Page 9, line 24, replace "17,125,503" with "17,109,029"

Page 9, line 27, replace "5,394,107" with "5,389,989"

Page 9, line 29, replace "5,781,644" with "5,777,526"

Page 10, line 1, replace "5,758,894" with "5,752,997"

Page 10, line 2, replace "6,996,475" with "8,136,475"

Page 10, line 3, replace "12,755,369" with "13,889,472"

Page 10, line 4, replace "6,910,000" with "7,960,000"

Page 10, line 5, replace "5,845,369" with "5,929,472"

Page 10, line 8, replace "92,628,579" with "92,551,602"

Page 10, line 10, replace "149,329,124" with "149,252,147"

Page 10, line 12, replace "94,929,124" with "94,852,147"

Page 10, line 15, replace "75,867,399" with "75,804,650"

Page 10, line 17, replace "77,559,625" with "77,496,876"

Page 10, line 20, replace "25,008,824" with "24,986,828"

Page 10, line 21, replace "1,122,252" with "2,822,252"

Page 10, line 22, replace "26,131,076" with "27,809,080"

Page 10, line 23, replace "368,920" with "2,068,920"

Page 10, line 24, replace "25,762,156" with "25,740,160"

Page 10, line 27, replace "14,605,516" with "14,711,627"

Page 10, line 29, replace "19,989,206" with "20,095,317"

Page 10, line 31, replace "14,989,206" with "15,095,317"

Page 11, line 3, replace "9,011,492" with "9,003,630"

Page 11, line 4, replace "1,708,994" with "1,858,994"

Page 11, line 5, replace "10,720,486" with "10,862,624"

Page 11, line 7, replace "9,220,486" with "9,362,624"

Page 11, line 10, replace "27,239,131" with "27,215,849"

Page 11, line 11, replace "4,131,870" with "4,211,870"

Page 11, line 12, replace "31,371,001" with "31,427,719"

Page 11, line 14, replace "27,836,001" with "27,892,719"

Page 11, line 17, replace "11,817,271" with "11,806,526"

Page 11, line 18, replace "540,416" with "508,416"

Page 11, line 19, replace "all funds" with "general fund appropriation" and replace "12,357,687" with "12,314,942"

Page 11, remove lines 20 and 21

Page 11, line 24, replace "4,338,485" with "4,334,460"

Page 11, line 26, replace "7,948,210" with "7,944,185"

Page 11, line 28, replace "4,448,210" with "4,444,185"

Page 12, line 1, replace "31,375,828" with "31,361,002"

Page 12, line 2, replace "31,375,828" with "31,361,002"

Page 12, line 6, replace "2,928,016" with "2,925,646"

Page 12, line 7, replace "3,029,654" with "3,027,284"

Page 12, line 9, replace "2,054,653" with "2,052,283"

Page 12, line 10, replace "386,388,067" with "387,107,893"

Page 12, line 11, replace "79,060,997" with "81,778,997"

Page 12, line 12, replace "465,449,064" with "468,886,890"

Page 12, line 13, replace "386,388,067" with "387,282,893"

Page 12, line 14, replace "162,403,497" with "165,121,497"

Page 12, line 15, replace "548,791,564" with "552,404,390"

Page 12, line 16, replace "\$1,615,940, or so much of the sum as" with "\$200,000 of the funding"

Page 12, line 17, remove "may be necessary,"

Page 12, line 18, after "used" insert "for a grant to the space grant consortium to match federal funds and the remainder of the funding may be used"

Page 12, line 20, after the period insert "The board shall consider using a substantial amount of funding for an international student initiative."

Page 12, line 25, replace "\$578,417" with "\$388,559"

Page 12, line 29, replace "\$20,974,083" with "\$20,563,093"

Page 13, replace lines 12 through 16 with:

"SECTION 9. EQUITY POOL - REPORT TO THE BUDGET SECTION. The sum of \$2,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, included in the equity pool line item in subdivision 1 of section 3 of this Act, must be used to address equity at higher education institutions and other campus needs as determined by the state board of higher education. The state board of higher education may not select a formula for distributing the equity funding until January 1, 2006. A representative of the board shall provide a report to the budget section regarding the allocation of the equity pool. Equity or parity funding allocations must be considered in the campus equity position for budgeting purposes."

Page 13, line 22, after the period insert "The board may allocate up to \$150,000 of the funding for providing doctoral incentives to students at private baccalaureate degree-granting institutions."

Page 13, line 31, after the period insert "Twenty-three and one-half percent of the additional funds must be used for student financial assistance grants for students at private baccalaureate degree-granting institutions."

Page 15, remove lines 26 through 31

Page 16, remove lines 1 and 2

Page 17, after line 17, insert:

"SECTION 21. BISMARCK STATE COLLEGE CAREER AND TECHNOLOGY INSTITUTE. The state board of higher education may enter into an agreement or agreements with the Bismarck state college foundation or other private entity and do all things necessary and proper to authorize construction by the foundation or other private entity of a building on the Bismarck state college campus, using state funds, federal funds, donations, gifts, or other private funds."

SECTION 22. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - STUDENT EXCHANGE PROGRAMS. It is the intent of the fifty-ninth legislative assembly that the state board of higher education consider allowing related faculty members and practicing professionals in the related fields in the state to assist in the selection of students awarded funding through the student exchange program and consider investigating options of entering contracts with other higher education institutions for providing opportunities for students to complete professional fields of study not offered through the North Dakota university system, specifically other institutions granting professional degrees targeting critical shortages in large animal veterinary practice.

SECTION 23. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY OF HIGHER EDUCATION FUNDING AND ACCOUNTABILITY. The legislative council shall consider studying higher education funding and accountability during the 2005-06 interim. If conducted, the study should include a review of the progress made in implementing the higher education roundtable recommendations relating to the university system meeting the state's expectations and needs, the funding methodology needed to meet these expectations and needs, and the appropriate accountability and reporting system for the North Dakota university system. The review should include an independent consultant's evaluation of:

1. The roundtable recommendations and the goals and objectives of the North Dakota university system;
2. The long-term financing plan for the North Dakota university system, including a review of the peer institutions selected and updated funding comparisons;
3. The North Dakota university system's prioritization of higher education funding, including the resource allocation mechanism addressing equity funding issues and the funding for initiatives at North Dakota's colleges and universities; and
4. The accountability mechanisms.

The study should be conducted and the consultant selected with input from the state board of higher education. The independent consultant selected to do the evaluation shall possess a national reputation and experience in higher education governance and funding and management in multicampus public university systems and shall not have been under contract with the state board of higher education during the previous five years.

The study may include the use of a higher education roundtable format.

The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixtieth legislative assembly.

SECTION 24. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$175,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the legislative council for the purpose of conducting the higher education study as provided for in this Act, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007. The legislative council may receive any other funds available for conducting the study and such funds are hereby appropriated.

SECTION 25. USE OF UNSPENT 2003-05 GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATIONS. The state board of higher education shall use \$250,000 of North Dakota university system office unspent 2003-05 biennium general fund appropriation authorized to continue under section 54-44.1-11 for capital asset needs at Valley City State University in the sum of \$150,000, including \$108,000 for brick tuck-pointing, \$10,000 for a sound system, and \$32,000 to replace special funds for the W. E. Osmon bleacher replacement project, and for internships at the North Dakota trade office in the sum of \$100,000 for the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007.

SECTION 26. AMENDMENT. Section 15-62.2-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15-62.2-01. Student financial assistance and scholars programs - Establishment - Administrative responsibility. The North Dakota student financial assistance and scholars programs are established to provide grants or scholarships, or both, to assist the following students:

1. Resident undergraduate students pursuant to section 15-10-19.1.
2. North Dakota resident students who have attended and graduated from a high school in a bordering state pursuant to section 15-40.2-10, who are attending qualified institutions of postsecondary education within North Dakota.

3. North Dakota resident students who, because of physical or mental handicap as certified by a physician, are attending postsecondary institutions out of state due to the lack of special services or facilities, or both, necessary to meet the postsecondary educational needs of the handicapped students within North Dakota.
4. Scholars who qualify and are selected for scholarships pursuant to sections 15-62.2-00.1 and 15-62.2-03.1 through 15-62.2-03.5.

A student must be in substantial need of financial assistance to receive grants under the student financial assistance program. The state board of higher education shall administer the student financial assistance program and the scholars program. At least twenty-three and one-half percent of the funds appropriated for the student financial assistance program must be allocated to students at private baccalaureate degree-granting institutions with the remaining funds allocated to students at public and American Indian institutions."

Page 17, line 18, after "assets" insert ", professional student exchange program,"

Page 17, line 19, replace "20" with "19"

Renumber accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

Senate Bill No. 2003 - Summary of Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	SENATE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	HOUSE VERSION	COMPARISON TO HOUSE
Legislative Council						
Total all funds	\$0	\$0	\$175,000	\$175,000	\$175,000	\$0
Less estimated income						
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$175,000	\$175,000	\$175,000	\$0
University System office						
Total all funds	\$387,926,815	\$59,471,851	\$545,036	\$60,016,887	\$59,831,887	\$185,000
Less estimated income	2,337,276	2,337,276		2,337,276	2,337,276	
General fund	\$385,589,539	\$57,134,575	\$545,036	\$57,679,611	\$57,494,611	\$185,000
Bismarck State College						
Total all funds	\$2,302,800	\$20,870,803	(\$16,474)	\$20,854,329	\$20,854,329	\$0
Less estimated income	2,302,800	3,745,300		3,745,300	3,745,300	
General fund	\$0	\$17,125,503	(\$16,474)	\$17,109,029	\$17,109,029	\$0
Lake Region State College						
Total all funds	\$343,875	\$5,781,644	(\$4,118)	\$5,777,526	\$5,777,526	\$0
Less estimated income						
General fund	\$343,875	\$5,781,644	(\$4,118)	\$5,777,526	\$5,777,526	\$0
Williston State College						
Total all funds	\$6,910,000	\$12,755,369	\$1,134,103	\$13,889,472	\$13,889,472	\$0
Less estimated income	6,910,000	6,910,000	1,050,000	7,960,000	7,960,000	
General fund	\$0	\$5,845,369	\$84,103	\$5,929,472	\$5,929,472	\$0
University of North Dakota						
Total all funds	\$54,331,554	\$190,429,124	(\$76,977)	\$190,352,147	\$190,537,147	(\$185,000)
Less estimated income	54,331,554	95,500,000		95,500,000	95,500,000	
General fund	\$0	\$94,929,124	(\$76,977)	\$94,852,147	\$95,037,147	(\$185,000)
UND Medical Center						
Total all funds	\$0	\$31,375,828	(\$14,826)	\$31,361,002	\$31,361,002	\$0
Less estimated income						
General fund	\$0	\$31,375,828	(\$14,826)	\$31,361,002	\$31,361,002	\$0
North Dakota State University						
Total all funds	\$34,000,000	\$111,559,625	(\$62,749)	\$111,496,876	\$111,496,876	\$0
Less estimated income	34,000,000	34,000,000		34,000,000	34,000,000	
General fund	\$0	\$77,559,625	(\$62,749)	\$77,496,876	\$77,496,876	\$0
State College of Science						
Total all funds	\$368,920	\$26,131,076	\$1,678,004	\$27,809,080	\$27,809,080	\$0
Less estimated income	368,920	368,920	1,700,000	2,068,920	2,068,920	
General fund	\$0	\$25,762,156	(\$21,996)	\$25,740,160	\$25,740,160	\$0
Dickinson State University						
Total all funds	\$5,000,000	\$19,989,206	\$106,111	\$20,095,317	\$20,095,317	\$0
Less estimated income	5,000,000	5,000,000		5,000,000	5,000,000	
General fund	\$0	\$14,989,206	\$106,111	\$15,095,317	\$15,095,317	\$0
Mayville State University						
Total all funds	\$1,500,000	\$10,720,486	\$142,138	\$10,862,624	\$10,862,624	\$0
Less estimated income	1,500,000	1,500,000		1,500,000	1,500,000	
General fund	\$0	\$9,220,486	\$142,138	\$9,362,624	\$9,362,624	\$0
Minot State University						
Total all funds	\$3,535,000	\$36,371,001	\$56,718	\$36,427,719	\$36,427,719	\$0
Less estimated income	3,535,000	8,535,000		8,535,000	8,535,000	
General fund	\$0	\$27,836,001	\$56,718	\$27,892,719	\$27,892,719	\$0
Valley City State University						

76th DAY
SATURDAY, APRIL 23, 2005
1989

Total all funds	\$282,000	\$12,357,687	(\$42,745)	\$12,314,942	\$12,346,942	(\$32,000)
Less estimated income	<u>32,000</u>	<u>32,000</u>	<u>(32,000)</u>	<u>32,000</u>	<u>32,000</u>	<u>(32,000)</u>
General fund	\$250,000	\$12,325,687	(\$10,745)	\$12,314,942	\$12,314,942	\$0
Minot State University - Bottineau						
Total all funds	\$0	\$7,948,210	(\$4,025)	\$7,944,185	\$7,944,185	\$0
Less estimated income		<u>3,500,000</u>		<u>3,500,000</u>	<u>3,500,000</u>	
General fund	\$0	\$4,448,210	(\$4,025)	\$4,444,185	\$4,444,185	\$0
Forest Service						
Total all funds	\$3,029,654	\$3,029,654	(\$2,370)	\$3,027,284	\$3,027,284	\$0
Less estimated income	<u>975,001</u>	<u>975,001</u>		<u>975,001</u>	<u>975,001</u>	
General fund	\$2,054,653	\$2,054,653	(\$2,370)	\$2,052,283	\$2,052,283	\$0
Bill Total						
Total all funds	\$499,530,618	\$548,791,564	\$3,612,826	\$552,404,390	\$552,436,390	(\$32,000)
Less estimated income	<u>111,292,551</u>	<u>162,403,497</u>	<u>2,718,000</u>	<u>165,121,497</u>	<u>165,153,497</u>	<u>(32,000)</u>
General fund	\$388,238,067	\$386,388,067	\$894,826	\$387,282,893	\$387,282,893	\$0

Senate Bill No. 2003 - Legislative Council - Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	SENATE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	HOUSE VERSION	COMPARISON TO HOUSE
Operating expenses			<u>\$175,000</u>	<u>\$175,000</u>	<u>\$175,000</u>	
Total all funds	\$0	\$0	\$175,000	\$175,000	\$175,000	\$0
Less estimated income						
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$175,000	\$175,000	\$175,000	\$0
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

Dept. 160 - Legislative Council - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

	PROVIDES FUNDING FOR A HIGHER EDUCATION STUDY ¹	TOTAL CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES
Operating expenses	<u>\$175,000</u>	<u>\$175,000</u>
Total all funds	\$175,000	\$175,000
Less estimated income		
General fund	\$175,000	\$175,000
FTE	0.00	0.00

¹ This amendment provides a \$175,000 general fund appropriation to the Legislative Council for the purpose of conducting a higher education study, the same amount as provided by the House.

Senate Bill No. 2003 - General Fund Summary

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	SENATE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	HOUSE VERSION	COMPARISON TO HOUSE
University System office	\$385,589,539	\$57,134,575	\$545,036	\$57,679,611	\$57,494,611	\$185,000
Bismarck State College		17,125,503	(16,474)	17,109,029	17,109,029	
Lake Region State College	343,875	5,781,644	(4,118)	5,777,526	5,777,526	
Williston State College		5,845,369	84,103	5,929,472	5,929,472	
University of North Dakota		94,929,124	(76,977)	94,852,147	95,037,147	(185,000)
UND Medical Center		31,375,828	(14,826)	31,361,002	31,361,002	
North Dakota State University		77,559,625	(62,749)	77,496,876	77,496,876	
State College of Science		25,762,156	(21,996)	25,740,160	25,740,160	
Dickinson State University		14,989,206	106,111	15,095,317	15,095,317	
Mayville State University		9,220,486	142,138	9,362,624	9,362,624	
Minot State University		27,836,001	56,718	27,892,719	27,892,719	
Valley City State University	250,000	12,325,687	(10,745)	12,314,942	12,314,942	
Minot State University - Bottineau		4,448,210	(4,025)	4,444,185	4,444,185	
Forest Service	<u>2,054,653</u>	<u>2,054,653</u>	<u>(2,370)</u>	<u>2,052,283</u>	<u>2,052,283</u>	
Total general fund	\$388,238,067	\$386,388,067	\$719,826	\$387,107,893	\$387,107,893	\$0

Detail of Conference Committee Changes to the General Fund

	REDUCES RECOMMENDED FUNDING FOR HEALTH INSURANCE	INCREASES FUNDING FOR BOARD INITIATIVES	DECREASES FUNDING FOR COMMON INFORMATION SERVICES	DECREASES FUNDING FOR OPERATIONS POOL	DECREASES FUNDING FOR STUDENT FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE GRANTS	INCREASES FUNDING FOR THE PROFESSIONAL STUDENT EXCHANGE PROGRAM ¹
University System office	(\$13,280)	\$269,060	(\$400,000)	(\$189,858)	(\$1,271,886)	\$151,000
Bismarck State College	(16,474)					

Lake Region State College	(4,118)					
Williston State College	(5,897)					
University of North Dakota	(76,977)					
UND Medical Center	(14,826)					
North Dakota State University	(62,749)					
State College of Science	(21,996)					
Dickinson State University	(13,715)					
Mayville State University	(7,862)					
Minot State University	(23,282)					
Valley City State University	(10,745)					
Minot State University - Bottineau	(4,025)					
Forest Service	(2,370)					
Total general fund	(\$278,316)	\$269,060	(\$400,000)	(\$189,858)	(\$1,271,886)	\$151,000

	PROVIDES FUNDING FOR AN EQUITY POOL ²	INCREASES FUNDING FOR OPERATIONS ³	PROVIDES FUNDING FOR EXTRAORDINARY REPAIRS ⁴	ADJUSTS FUNDING FOR A MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT ⁵	TOTAL GENERAL FUND CHANGES
University System office	\$2,000,000				\$545,036
Bismarck State College					(16,474)
Lake Region State College					(4,118)
Williston State College			\$90,000		84,103
University of North Dakota					(76,977)
UND Medical Center					(14,826)
North Dakota State University					(62,749)
State College of Science					(21,996)
Dickinson State University		\$119,826			106,111
Mayville State University			150,000		142,138
Minot State University			80,000		56,718
Valley City State University					(10,745)
Minot State University - Bottineau					(4,025)
Forest Service					(2,370)
Total general fund	\$2,000,000	\$119,826	\$320,000	\$0	\$719,826

Senate Bill No. 2003 - Other Funds Summary

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	SENATE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	HOUSE VERSION	COMPARISON TO HOUSE
University System office	\$2,337,276	\$2,337,276		\$2,337,276	\$2,337,276	
Bismarck State College	2,302,800	3,745,300		3,745,300	3,745,300	
Lake Region State College						
Williston State College	6,910,000	6,910,000	\$1,050,000	7,960,000	7,960,000	
University of North Dakota	54,331,554	95,500,000		95,500,000	95,500,000	
UND Medical Center						
North Dakota State University	34,000,000	34,000,000		34,000,000	34,000,000	
State College of Science	368,920	368,920	1,700,000	2,068,920	2,068,920	
Dickinson State University	5,000,000	5,000,000		5,000,000	5,000,000	
Mayville State University	1,500,000	1,500,000		1,500,000	1,500,000	
Minot State University	3,535,000	8,535,000		8,535,000	8,535,000	
Valley City State University	32,000	32,000	(32,000)	32,000	32,000	(\$32,000)
Minot State University - Bottineau		3,500,000		3,500,000	3,500,000	
Forest Service	975,001	975,001		975,001	975,001	
Total other funds	\$111,292,551	\$162,403,497	\$2,718,000	\$165,128,497	\$165,153,497	(\$32,000)

Detail of Conference Committee Changes to Other Funds

	REDUCES RECOMMENDED FUNDING FOR HEALTH INSURANCE	INCREASES FUNDING FOR BOARD INITIATIVES	DECREASES FUNDING FOR COMMON INFORMATION SERVICES	DECREASES FUNDING FOR OPERATIONS POOL	DECREASES FUNDING FOR STUDENT FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE GRANTS	INCREASES FUNDING FOR THE PROFESSIONAL STUDENT EXCHANGE PROGRAM ¹
University System office						
Bismarck State College						
Lake Region State College						
Williston State College						
University of North Dakota						
UND Medical Center						
North Dakota State University						
State College of Science						
Dickinson State University						
Mayville State University						
Minot State University						
Valley City State University						
Minot State University - Bottineau						
Forest Service						
Total other funds	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0

	PROVIDES FUNDING FOR AN EQUITY POOL ²	INCREASES FUNDING FOR OPERATIONS ³	PROVIDES FUNDING FOR EXTRAORDINARY REPAIRS ⁴	ADJUSTS FUNDING FOR A MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT ⁵	TOTAL OTHER FUNDS CHANGES
University System office					
Bismarck State College					

Lake Region State College					
Williston State College				\$1,050,000	\$1,050,000
University of North Dakota					
UND Medical Center					
North Dakota State University					
State College of Science				1,700,000	1,700,000
Dickinson State University					
Mayville State University					
Minot State University					
Valley City State University				(32,000)	(32,000)
Minot State University - Bottineau					
Forest Service					
Total other funds	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$2,718,000	\$2,718,000

Senate Bill No. 2003 - All Funds Summary

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	SENATE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	HOUSE VERSION	COMPARISON TO HOUSE
University System office	\$387,926,815	\$59,471,851	\$545,036	\$60,016,887	\$59,831,887	\$185,000
Bismarck State College	2,302,800	20,870,803	(16,474)	20,854,329	20,854,329	
Lake Region State College	343,875	5,781,644	(4,118)	5,777,526	5,777,526	
Williston State College	6,910,000	12,755,369	1,134,103	13,889,472	13,889,472	
University of North Dakota	54,331,554	190,429,124	(76,977)	190,352,147	190,537,147	(185,000)
UND Medical Center		31,375,828	(14,826)	31,361,002	31,361,002	
North Dakota State University	34,000,000	11,559,625	(62,749)	11,496,876	11,496,876	
State College of Science	368,920	26,131,076	1,678,004	27,809,080	27,809,080	
Dickinson State University	5,000,000	19,989,206	106,111	20,095,317	20,095,317	
Mayville State University	1,500,000	10,720,486	142,138	10,862,624	10,862,624	
Minot State University	3,535,000	36,371,001	56,718	36,427,719	36,427,719	
Valley City State University	282,000	12,357,687	(42,745)	12,314,942	12,346,942	(32,000)
Minot State University - Bottineau		7,948,210	(4,025)	7,944,185	7,944,185	
Forest Service	<u>3,029,654</u>	<u>3,029,654</u>	<u>(2,370)</u>	<u>3,027,284</u>	<u>3,027,284</u>	
Total all funds	\$499,530,618	\$548,791,564	\$3,437,826	\$552,229,390	\$552,261,390	(\$32,000)
FTE	2196.67	2196.67	1.00	2197.67	2197.67	0.00

Detail of Conference Committee Changes to All Funds

	REDUCES RECOMMENDED FUNDING FOR HEALTH INSURANCE	INCREASES FUNDING FOR BOARD INITIATIVES	DECREASES FUNDING FOR COMMON INFORMATION SERVICES	DECREASES FUNDING FOR OPERATIONS POOL	DECREASES FUNDING FOR STUDENT FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE GRANTS	INCREASES FUNDING FOR THE PROFESSIONAL STUDENT EXCHANGE PROGRAM ¹
University System office	(\$13,280)	\$269,060	(\$400,000)	(\$189,858)	(\$1,271,886)	\$151,000
Bismarck State College	(16,474)					
Lake Region State College	(4,118)					
Williston State College	(5,897)					
University of North Dakota	(76,977)					
UND Medical Center	(14,826)					
North Dakota State University	(62,749)					
State College of Science	(21,996)					
Dickinson State University	(13,715)					
Mayville State University	(7,862)					
Minot State University	(23,282)					
Valley City State University	(10,745)					
Minot State University - Bottineau	(4,025)					
Forest Service	<u>(2,370)</u>					
Total all funds	(\$278,316)	\$269,060	(\$400,000)	(\$189,858)	(\$1,271,886)	\$151,000
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

	PROVIDES FUNDING FOR AN EQUITY POOL ²	INCREASES FUNDING FOR OPERATIONS ³	PROVIDES FUNDING FOR EXTRAORDINARY REPAIRS ⁴	ADJUSTS FUNDING FOR A MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT ⁵	TOTAL ALL FUNDS CHANGES
University System office	\$2,000,000				\$545,036
Bismarck State College					(16,474)
Lake Region State College					(4,118)
Williston State College			\$90,000	\$1,050,000	1,134,103
University of North Dakota					(76,977)
UND Medical Center					(14,826)
North Dakota State University					(62,749)
State College of Science				1,700,000	1,678,004
Dickinson State University		\$119,826			106,111
Mayville State University			150,000		142,138
Minot State University			80,000		56,718
Valley City State University				(32,000)	(42,745)
Minot State University - Bottineau					(4,025)
Forest Service					<u>(2,370)</u>
Total all funds	\$2,000,000	\$119,826	\$320,000	\$2,718,000	\$3,437,826
FTE	0.00	1.00	0.00	0.00	1.00

¹ This amendment increases funding for the professional student exchange program by \$151,000 from the general fund to fund 3 additional veterinary medicine slots. This change was also made by the House.

2 This amendment provides a \$2,000,000 general fund appropriation for an equity pool to be allocated to higher education institutions by the State Board of Higher Education. The State Board of Higher Education may not select a formula for distributing the equity funding until January 1, 2006. A representative of the board shall provide a report to the Budget Section regarding the allocation of the equity pool. This funding was also provided by the House.

3 This amendment increases funding for the operations of Dickinson State University by \$119,826 from the general fund and authorizes 1 FTE position for custodial services and utility costs associated with the addition to Murphy Hall. This change was also made by the House.

4 Williston State College - This amendment provides funding of \$90,000 from the general fund for extraordinary repair needs in Stevens Hall.

Mayville State University - This amendment provides funding of \$150,000 from the general fund for extraordinary repair needs in Old Main.

Minot State University - This amendment provides funding of \$80,000 from the general fund for extraordinary repair needs in the student union ballroom.

These changes were also made by the House.

5 Williston State College - This amendment provides Williston State College with a \$1,050,000 special funds appropriation for an oil well training site on campus. This change was also made by the House.

State College of Science - This amendment increases the capital assets line item for the State College of Science by \$1.7 million from special funds for renovating the college's football stadium and track. This change was also made by the House.

Valley City State University - This amendment removes \$32,000 of special funds for the W. E. Osmon bleacher replacement project and provides the university will receive \$32,000 from North Dakota University System office unspent 2003-05 general fund appropriations to complete the \$282,000 project.

Senate Bill No. 2003 - Other Changes - Conference Committee Action

This amendment also:

- Removes Section 9 of the engrossed bill relating to student financial assistance grants. This change was also made by the House.
- Provides that the State Board of Higher Education may allocate funding of \$150,000 of the funding appropriated for education incentive programs for providing doctoral incentives to students at private baccalaureate degree-granting institutions. The House provided that \$150,000 of the funding appropriated for education incentive programs must be provided to private baccalaureate degree-granting institutions for doctoral incentives.
- Removes Section 19 of the engrossed bill providing for a performance audit of the University of North Dakota School of Medicine and Health Sciences. This change was also made by the House.
- Adds a new section relating to the Career and Technology Institute at Bismarck State College. This section was also added by the House.
- Adds a new section relating to student exchange programs. This section was also added by the House.
- Adds a new section to the bill amending North Dakota Century Code Section 15-62.2-01 to provide that 23.5 percent of the funding appropriated for the student financial assistance program must be allocated to private baccalaureate degree-granting institutions. The House added a section providing that 25 percent of the funding appropriated for the student financial assistance program be allocated to private baccalaureate degree-granting institutions.
- Revises Section 4 of the engrossed bill relating to board initiatives to provide that \$200,000 of the funding appropriated must be allocated for a grant to the space grant consortium. The board is also to consider using a substantial amount of funding for an international student initiative. This change was not made by the House.
- Adds a section providing for the use of unspent 2003-05 general fund appropriations. This change was not made by the House.

Engrossed SB 2003 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. AARSVOLD MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2003 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed SB 2003, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2003: A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the North Dakota university system; to authorize the state board of higher education to issue and sell bonds for capital projects; to provide statements of legislative intent; to provide for reports to the budget section; to provide for a legislative council study; to amend and reenact section 15-62.2-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to student financial assistance grants; and to declare an emergency.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 76 YEAS, 17 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Bellew; Berg; Bernstein; Boe; Boehning; Brandenburg; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Conrad; Damschen; DeKrey; Devlin; Dietrich; Dosch; Froelich; Froseth; Galvin; Grande; Gulleston; Hanson; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Horter; Hunskor; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kerzman; Kingsbury; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Maragos; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Monson; Mueller; Nelson; Nicholas; Norland; Nottestad; Onstad; Pietsch; Porter; Potter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Sandvig; Schmidt; Sitte; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Timm; Uglem; Vigasaa; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Speaker Klein

NAYS: Amerman; Belter; Boucher; Delmore; Delzer; Drovdal; Ekstrom; Glassheim; Haas; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Owens; Pollert; Skarphol; Solberg; Wrangham; Zaiser

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Williams

Engrossed SB 2003 passed, the title was agreed to, and the emergency clause was declared carried.

MOTION

REP. BERG MOVED that the House stand in recess until 9:30 a.m., which motion prevailed.

THE HOUSE RECONVENED, with Speaker Klein presiding.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

SB 2012, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Trenbeath, Schobinger, Tallackson and Reps. Timm, Weisz, Williams) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments on SJ pages 1118-1125, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2012 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1118-1125 of the Senate Journal and pages 1294-1301 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2012 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 2, after "enact" insert "a new section to chapter 24-01," replace the second "and" with a comma, and after "24-08" insert ", and section 57-43.1-03.2"

Page 1, line 3, after "to" insert "the highway performance classification plan,"

Page 1, line 4, replace the first "and" with a comma, replace "medal of honor" with "liberty memorial", and after "bridge" insert ", and refunds of certain fuels taxes paid by native Americans"

Page 1, line 5, replace "section" with "sections" and after "24-01-03" insert ", 24-01-51, 39-04-19, 57-40.3-10, 57-43.1-02, and 57-43.2-02"

Page 1, line 6, after "maintenance" insert ", haying of no-mow areas, motor vehicle registration fees, motor vehicle excise tax revenue, and motor vehicle fuels and special fuels tax rates; to repeal section 39-04-39.5 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to allocation of motor vehicle registration fees; to provide an effective date; to provide a contingent expiration date"

Page 1, line 24, replace "27,185,848" with "27,174,242"

Page 2, line 1, replace "20,048,706" with "20,035,352"

Page 2, line 2, replace "789,997,698" with "863,644,411"

Page 2, line 3, replace "43,271,158" with "43,268,038"

Page 2, line 4, replace "96,117,492" with "169,736,125"

Page 2, line 10, replace "27,185,848" with "27,174,242"

Page 2, line 11, replace "20,048,706" with "20,035,352"

Page 2, line 12, replace "789,997,698" with "863,644,411"

Page 2, line 13, replace "43,271,158" with "43,268,038"

Page 2, line 14, replace "880,503,410" with "954,122,043"

Page 2, line 28, replace "the maintenance" with "maintaining the structural integrity"

Page 2, line 29, after "state" insert "unless an agreement is reached with the municipality"

Page 3, after line 10, insert:

"SECTION 6. A new section to chapter 24-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Highway performance classification plan. To the extent possible, the department of transportation shall implement the highway performance classification plan.

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 24-01-51 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

24-01-51. (Effective January 1, 2006 2008) Haying of no-mow areas. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a person owning land adjacent to an area within the right of way of a highway which is designated as a no-mow or managed-mow area may hay the no-mow or managed-mow area after July fifteenth without any payment or penalty."

Page 3, line 14, after "needed" insert "for the liberty memorial bridge improvement project and the United States highway 2 project improvements"

Page 4, line 9, replace "**Medal of honor**" with "**Liberty memorial**"

Page 4, line 10, replace "medal of honor" with "liberty memorial"

Page 4, after line 11, insert:

"SECTION 10. AMENDMENT. Section 39-04-19 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

39-04-19. Motor vehicle registration fees and mile tax. Motor vehicles required to pay registration fees or a mile tax shall pay the following fees:

1. Nonresidents electing to pay mile tax in lieu of registration, when authorized to do so by the department, shall pay a fee of twenty dollars for a trip permit which is valid for a period of seventy-two hours. All fees collected under the provisions of this subsection must be credited to the highway construction fund.
2. Motor vehicles required to be registered in this state must be furnished license plates upon the payment of the following annual fees; however, if a motor vehicle, including a motorcycle or trailer, first becomes subject to registration other than at the beginning of the registration period, such fees must be prorated on a monthly basis. The minimum fee charged hereunder must be five dollars:

- a. Passenger motor vehicles:

YEARS REGISTERED

1st, 2nd, 7th, 8th, 10th, 11th, 13th and

Gross Weights	3rd, 4th, 5th, and 6th Years	and 9th Years	and 12th Years	Subsequent Years
Less than 3,200	\$60 <u>\$70</u>	\$52 <u>\$62</u>	\$44 <u>\$54</u>	\$36 <u>\$46</u>
3,200 - 4,499	80 <u>90</u>	68 <u>78</u>	56 <u>66</u>	44 <u>54</u>
4,500 - 4,999	98 <u>108</u>	84 <u>91</u>	66 <u>76</u>	50 <u>60</u>
5,000 - 5,999	129 <u>139</u>	107 <u>117</u>	85 <u>95</u>	63 <u>73</u>
6,000 - 6,999	162 <u>172</u>	133 <u>143</u>	104 <u>114</u>	76 <u>86</u>
7,000 - 7,999	195 <u>205</u>	159 <u>169</u>	124 <u>134</u>	89 <u>99</u>
8,000 - 8,999	228 <u>238</u>	186 <u>196</u>	144 <u>154</u>	102 <u>112</u>
9,000 and over	264 <u>271</u>	212 <u>222</u>	164 <u>174</u>	115 <u>125</u>

A house car is subject to registration at the rates prescribed for other vehicles under this subdivision modified by using the weight applicable to a vehicle whose weight is forty percent of that of the house car, but not using a weight of less than four thousand pounds [1814.35 kilograms].

A pickup truck is subject to registration at the rates prescribed for other vehicles under this subdivision by applying the shipping weight of the vehicle to the fee schedule. At a minimum, the registered gross weight displayed on the registration card for a pickup truck must be twice the shipping weight of the vehicle. Unless otherwise exempted by this chapter, the owner of a pickup truck shall request the registered gross weight of the pickup truck be increased to ensure the registered gross weight is sufficient to include the total weight of the vehicle and any load transported on or by the vehicle. For purposes of this subdivision, a pickup truck is a motor vehicle with a manufacturer's gross vehicle weight rating of less than eleven thousand five hundred pounds [5216.31 kilograms], with an unladen weight of less than eight thousand pounds [3628.74 kilograms], and which is equipped with an open box-type bed not exceeding nine feet [2.74 meters] in length.

- b. Schoolbuses, buses for hire, buses owned and operated by religious, charitable, or nonprofit organizations and used exclusively for religious, charitable, or other public nonprofit purposes, and trucks or combination trucks and trailers, including commercial and noncommercial trucks, except those trucks or combinations of trucks and trailers which qualify for registration under this subsection or subsection 5:

Gross Weights	YEARS REGISTERED				
	1st Through 6th Years	7th Through 9th Years	10th Through 12th Years	13th Through 19th Years	20th and Subsequent Years
Not over 4,000	\$58 <u>\$68</u>	\$45 <u>\$55</u>	\$40 <u>\$50</u>	\$37 <u>\$47</u>	\$36 <u>\$46</u>
4,001 - 6,000	63 <u>73</u>	50 <u>60</u>	44 <u>54</u>	38 <u>48</u>	37 <u>47</u>
6,001 - 8,000	68 <u>78</u>	55 <u>65</u>	48 <u>58</u>	39 <u>49</u>	38 <u>48</u>
8,001 - 10,000	73 <u>83</u>	60 <u>70</u>	52 <u>62</u>	44 <u>51</u>	40 <u>50</u>
10,001 - 12,000	78 <u>88</u>	65 <u>75</u>	56 <u>66</u>	43 <u>53</u>	42 <u>52</u>
12,001 - 14,000	83 <u>93</u>	70 <u>80</u>	60 <u>70</u>	46 <u>56</u>	45 <u>55</u>
14,001 - 16,000	88 <u>98</u>	75 <u>85</u>	64 <u>74</u>	49 <u>59</u>	48 <u>58</u>
16,001 - 18,000	93 <u>103</u>	80 <u>90</u>	68 <u>78</u>	54 <u>61</u>	50 <u>60</u>
18,001 - 20,000	96 <u>106</u>	83 <u>93</u>	70 <u>80</u>	52 <u>62</u>	54 <u>61</u>

Gross Weights	YEARS REGISTERED		
	1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th, 5th, 6th, and 7th Years	8th, 9th, 10th, 11th, and 12th Years	13th and Subsequent Years
20,001 - 22,000	\$126 <u>\$136</u>	\$100 <u>\$110</u>	\$87 <u>\$97</u>
22,001 - 26,000	178 <u>188</u>	148 <u>158</u>	132 <u>142</u>
26,001 - 30,000	239 <u>249</u>	197 <u>207</u>	175 <u>185</u>
30,001 - 34,000	305 <u>315</u>	250 <u>260</u>	222 <u>232</u>
34,001 - 38,000	366 <u>376</u>	299 <u>309</u>	265 <u>275</u>
38,001 - 42,000	427 <u>437</u>	348 <u>358</u>	307 <u>317</u>
42,001 - 46,000	488 <u>498</u>	396 <u>406</u>	350 <u>360</u>
46,001 - 50,000	549 <u>559</u>	445 <u>455</u>	393 <u>403</u>
50,001 - 54,000	619 <u>629</u>	503 <u>513</u>	444 <u>454</u>
54,001 - 58,000	680 <u>690</u>	552 <u>562</u>	487 <u>497</u>
58,001 - 62,000	742 <u>752</u>	604 <u>611</u>	530 <u>540</u>
62,001 - 66,000	802 <u>812</u>	649 <u>659</u>	573 <u>583</u>

66,001 - 70,000	863 873	698 708	645 625
70,001 - 74,000	924 934	747 757	668 668
74,001 - 78,000	985 995	796 806	704 711
78,001 - 82,000	1,046 1,056	846 855	744 754
82,001 - 86,000	1,169 1,179	950 960	834 841
86,001 - 90,000	1,294 1,301	1,054 1,064	948 928
90,001 - 94,000	1,413 1,423	1,159 1,169	1,005 1,015
94,001 - 98,000	1,535 1,545	1,264 1,274	1,093 1,103
98,001 - 102,000	1,657 1,667	1,368 1,378	1,180 1,190
102,001 - 105,500	1,779 1,789	1,473 1,483	1,267 1,277

c. Notwithstanding the fees provided by subdivision a of subsection 2, only one-half of the increase in registration fees, rounded up to the nearest dollar, resulting from the reclassification of pickup trucks in 2005 from subdivision b of subsection 2 to subdivision a of subsection 2 is effective from July 1, 2005, through June 30, 2007.

d. Motorcycles, fifteen dollars.

3. Motor vehicles acquired by disabled veterans under the provisions of Public Law 79-663 [38 U.S.C. 3901] are exempt from the payment of state sales or use tax and, if paid, such veterans are entitled to a refund. This exemption also applies to any passenger motor vehicle or pickup truck not exceeding ten thousand pounds [4535.92 kilograms] gross weight but shall apply to no more than two such motor vehicles owned by a disabled veteran at any one time.
4. Every trailer, semitrailer, and farm trailer required to be registered under this chapter must be furnished registration plates upon the payment of a twenty dollar annual fee. Every trailer, semitrailer, or farm trailer not required to be registered under this chapter must be furnished an identification plate upon the payment of a fee of five dollars. Upon the request of a person with a trailer or farm trailer to whom a registration or identification plate is provided under this subsection, the department shall provide a plate of the same size as provided for a motorcycle. The department shall provide notification of this option to the person before the replacement or issuance of the plate.
5. Trucks or combinations of trucks and trailers weighing more than twenty thousand but not more than one hundred five thousand five hundred pounds [more than 9071.84 but not more than 47854.00 kilograms] which are used as farm vehicles only, are entitled to registration under the following fee schedule and the provisions of this subsection. Farm vehicles are considered, for the purpose of this subsection, as trucks or combinations of trucks and trailers weighing more than twenty thousand but not more than one hundred five thousand five hundred pounds [more than 9071.84 but not more than 47854.00 kilograms] owned, or leased for at least one year by a bona fide resident farmer who uses the vehicles exclusively for transporting the farmer's own property or other property on a farm work exchange basis with other farmers between farms and the usual local trading places but not in connection with any commercial retail or wholesale business being conducted from those farms, nor otherwise for hire. In addition to the penalty provided in section 39-04-41, any person violating this subsection shall license for the entire license period the farm vehicle at the higher commercial vehicle rate in accordance with the weight carried by the farm vehicle at the time of the violation.

YEARS REGISTERED

Gross Weights	1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th, 5th, and 6th Years	7th and 8th Years	9th and 10th Years	11th and Subsequent Years
20,001 - 22,000	\$98 \$108	\$84 \$94	\$70 \$80	\$52 \$62
22,001 - 24,000	403 113	88 98	73 83	54 64
24,001 - 26,000	444 121	94 104	77 87	56 66
26,001 - 28,000	422 132	402 112	83 93	60 70
28,001 - 30,000	434 141	440 120	89 99	64 74
30,001 - 32,000	446 156	423 133	400 110	73 83
32,001 - 34,000	456 166	434 141	406 116	77 87
34,001 - 36,000	466 176	439 149	442 122	84 91
36,001 - 38,000	476 186	447 157	448 128	85 95

38,001 - 40,000	486 196	455 165	424 134	89 99
40,001 - 42,000	496 206	463 173	430 140	93 103
42,001 - 44,000	206 216	474 181	436 146	97 107
44,001 - 46,000	216 226	479 189	442 152	404 111
46,001 - 48,000	226 236	487 197	448 158	405 115
48,001 - 50,000	236 246	495 205	454 164	409 119
50,001 - 52,000	256 266	213 223	470 180	423 133
52,001 - 54,000	266 276	224 231	476 186	427 137
54,001 - 56,000	276 286	229 239	482 192	434 141
56,001 - 58,000	286 296	237 247	488 198	435 145
58,001 - 60,000	296 306	245 255	494 204	439 149
60,001 - 62,000	306 316	253 263	200 210	443 153
62,001 - 64,000	316 326	264 271	206 216	447 157
64,001 - 66,000	326 336	269 279	212 222	454 161
66,001 - 68,000	336 346	277 287	218 228	455 165
68,001 - 70,000	346 356	285 295	224 234	459 169
70,001 - 72,000	356 366	293 303	230 240	463 173
72,001 - 74,000	366 376	304 311	236 246	467 177
74,001 - 76,000	376 386	309 319	242 252	474 181
76,001 - 78,000	386 396	317 327	248 258	475 185
78,001 - 80,000	396 406	325 335	254 264	479 189
80,001 - 82,000	406 416	333 343	260 270	483 193
82,001 - 84,000	416 426	355 365	303 313	259 269
84,001 - 86,000	436 446	372 382	317 327	274 281
86,001 - 88,000	456 466	389 399	334 341	283 293
88,001 - 90,000	476 486	406 416	345 355	295 305
90,001 - 92,000	496 506	423 433	359 369	307 317
92,001 - 94,000	516 526	440 450	373 383	319 329
94,001 - 96,000	536 546	457 467	387 397	334 341
96,001 - 98,000	556 566	474 484	404 411	343 353
98,001 - 100,000	576 586	494 501	415 425	355 365
100,001 - 102,000	596 606	508 518	429 439	367 377
102,001 - 104,000	616 626	525 535	443 453	379 389
104,001 - 105,500	636 646	542 552	457 467	394 401

6. A motor vehicle registered in subsection 5 may be used for custom combining operations by displaying identification issued by the department and upon payment of a fee of twenty-five dollars.
7. Thirteen dollars of each registration fee collected under subsections 2 and 5 must be deposited in the state highway fund.

SECTION 11. AMENDMENT. Section 57-40.3-10 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

57-40.3-10. Transfer of revenue. All moneys collected and received under this chapter must be transmitted monthly by the director of the department of transportation to the state treasurer to be transferred and credited ~~to the general fund;~~ as follows:

1. The first one hundred fifty million dollars received during a biennium must be deposited in the state general fund.
2. The first thirty-seven million five hundred thousand dollars received during a biennium exceeding the amount allocated under subsection 1 must be deposited in the state highway fund.
3. Amounts received in excess of the amount allocated under subsections 1 and 2 must be allocated eighty percent to the state general fund and twenty percent to the state highway fund.

SECTION 12. AMENDMENT. Section 57-43.1-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

57-43.1-02. Tax imposed on motor vehicle fuels.

1. Except as otherwise provided in this section, a tax of ~~twenty-one~~ twenty-three cents per gallon [3.79 liters] is imposed on all motor vehicle fuel sold or used in this state.

2. A supplier or distributor shall remit the tax imposed by this section on motor vehicle fuel used, on the wholesale distribution of motor vehicle fuel to a retailer, and on direct sales of motor vehicle fuel to a consumer.
3. The tax imposed by this section does not apply on a sale by a supplier to another supplier, on a sale by a supplier to a distributor, on a sale by a distributor to another distributor, on an export, or on a sale to an exempt consumer.
4. The person required to remit the tax imposed by this section shall pass the tax on to the retailer and to the consumer. A retailer who paid the tax to the supplier or distributor shall pass the tax on to the consumer.
5. The person required to remit the tax imposed by this section shall pay the tax to the commissioner by the twenty-fifth day of the calendar month after the month during which the motor vehicle fuel was sold or used by the person. When the twenty-fifth day of the calendar month falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, the due date is the first working day after the Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday. When payment is made by mail, the payment is timely if the envelope containing the payment is postmarked by the United States postal service or other postal carrier service before midnight of the due date.
6. The commissioner shall pay over all of the money received during each calendar month to the state treasurer.

SECTION 13. Section 57-43.1-03.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

57-43.1-03.2. Refund of tax for fuel purchased by native Americans - Fuels tax refund reserve fund - Continuing appropriation.

1. A native American may file a claim with the tax commissioner for a refund of motor vehicle fuel taxes paid by that person under this chapter or special fuel taxes paid under chapter 57-43.2 if the motor vehicle fuel or special fuel was purchased from a retail fuel dealer located on the Indian reservation where the native American is an enrolled member and the fuel was delivered to the native American on that reservation. The refund provisions of this chapter apply to refund claims made under this section.
2. A fuels tax refund reserve fund is created as a special fund in the state treasury. The tax commissioner shall deposit in that fund such amounts from motor vehicle fuel tax and special fuel tax collections as the attorney general determines necessary to be expended for refunds to which native American government entities may be entitled under qualifying circumstances and conditions determined by the attorney general. There is appropriated as a continuing appropriation out of funds set aside under this subsection so much of the funds as the attorney general determines is necessary to meet the expenditures authorized under this subsection and such funds may be expended for that purpose.

SECTION 14. AMENDMENT. Section 57-43.2-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

57-43.2-02. (Contingent effective date - See note - Effective through June 30, 2005) Tax imposed.

1. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, an excise tax of twenty-one cents per gallon [3.79 liters] is imposed on the sale or delivery of all special fuel sold or used in this state. For the purpose of determining the tax upon compressed natural gas under this section, one hundred twenty cubic feet [3.40 cubic meters] of compressed natural gas is equal to one gallon [3.79 liters] of other special fuel. The tax under this subsection is reduced by one and five-hundredths cents per gallon [3.79 liters] on the sale or delivery of diesel fuel that contains at least two percent biodiesel fuel by weight.
2. A supplier, distributor, or retailer shall remit the tax imposed by this section on special fuel used and on direct sales of special fuel to a customer.

3. The tax imposed by this section does not apply on sales by a supplier to another supplier, on a sale by a supplier to a distributor, on a sale by a distributor to another distributor, on a sale by a distributor to a retailer, on an export, or on a sale to an exempt consumer.
4. The person required to remit the tax imposed by this section shall pass the tax on to the customer.
5. The person required to remit the tax imposed by this section shall pay the tax to the commissioner by the twenty-fifth day of the calendar month after the month during which the special fuel was sold or used by the person. When the twenty-fifth day of the calendar month falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, the due date is the first working day after the Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday. When payment is made by mail, the payment is timely if the envelope containing the payment is postmarked by the United States postal service or other postal carrier service before midnight of the due date.
6. The commissioner shall pay over all of the money received during each calendar month to the state treasurer.

(Effective after June 30, 2005) Tax imposed.

1. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, an excise tax of ~~twenty-one~~ twenty-three cents per gallon [3.79 liters] is imposed on the sale or delivery of all special fuel sold or used in this state. For the purpose of determining the tax upon compressed natural gas under this section, one hundred twenty cubic feet [3.40 cubic meters] of compressed natural gas is equal to one gallon [3.79 liters] of other special fuel.
2. A supplier, distributor, or retailer shall remit the tax imposed by this section on special fuel used and on direct sales of special fuel to a customer.
3. The tax imposed by this section does not apply on sales by a supplier to another supplier, on a sale by a supplier to a distributor, on a sale by a distributor to another distributor, on a sale by a distributor to a retailer, on an export, or on a sale to an exempt consumer.
4. The person required to remit the tax imposed by this section shall pass the tax on to the customer.
5. The person required to remit the tax imposed by this section shall pay the tax to the commissioner by the twenty-fifth day of the calendar month after the month during which the special fuel was sold or used by the person. When the twenty-fifth day of the calendar month falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, the due date is the first working day after the Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday. When payment is made by mail, the payment is timely if the envelope containing the payment is postmarked by the United States postal service or other postal carrier service before midnight of the due date.
6. The commissioner shall pay over all of the money received during each calendar month to the state treasurer.

SECTION 15. REPEAL. Section 39-04-39.5 of the North Dakota Century Code is repealed.

SECTION 16. EFFECTIVE DATE - CONTINGENT EXPIRATION DATE.

Section 13 of this Act is effective for qualifying motor vehicle and special fuel purchases made after December 31, 2004, and is effective until the first day of the first month after the tax commissioner, with the approval of the attorney general, certifies to the governor and the office of the legislative council that an Act of Congress has specifically authorized, or a United States Supreme Court decision has held or may be interpreted to have held, that a state may impose its motor vehicle and special fuel tax laws on native Americans who purchase motor vehicle fuels and special fuels from a retail fuel dealer located on the Indian reservation where the native American is enrolled. Sections 10, 11, 12, and 14 of this Act are effective for registrations and taxable events occurring after June 30, 2005. Section 15 of this Act is effective for registrations occurring after June 30, 2005."

Page 4, line 12, replace "6" with "8"

Renumber accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

Senate Bill No. 2012 - Department of Transportation - Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	SENATE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	HOUSE VERSION	COMPARISON TO HOUSE
Administration	\$27,227,294	\$27,185,848	(\$11,606)	\$27,174,242	\$27,174,242	
Driver's and Vehicle Services	20,081,797	20,048,706	(13,354)	20,035,352	20,035,352	
Highways	736,823,693	789,997,698	73,646,713	863,644,411	863,094,411	\$550,000
Fleet Services	43,280,168	43,271,158	(3,120)	43,268,038	43,268,038	
Total all funds	\$827,412,952	\$880,503,410	\$73,618,633	\$954,122,043	\$953,572,043	\$550,000
Less estimated income	<u>827,412,952</u>	<u>880,503,410</u>	<u>73,618,633</u>	<u>954,122,043</u>	<u>953,572,043</u>	<u>550,000</u>
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
FTE	1044.50	1044.50	0.00	1044.50	1044.55	0.00

Dept. 801 - Department of Transportation - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

	REDUCES RECOMMENDED FUNDING FOR HEALTH INSURANCE	ADDS FUNDING FOR ONE CALL ¹	ADDS HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION FUNDS ²	ADDS FUNDING FOR EMERGENCY RELIEF PROJECTS ³	ADDS FUNDING FOR PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION GRANTS ⁴	TOTAL CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES
Administration	(\$11,606)					(\$11,606)
Driver's and Vehicle Services	(13,354)					(13,354)
Highways	(100,589)	\$168,520	\$17,900,000	\$54,128,782	\$1,550,000	73,646,713
Fleet Services	<u>(3,120)</u>					<u>(3,120)</u>
Total all funds	(\$128,669)	\$168,520	\$17,900,000	\$54,128,782	\$1,550,000	\$73,618,633
Less estimated income	<u>(128,669)</u>	<u>168,520</u>	<u>17,900,000</u>	<u>54,128,782</u>	<u>1,550,000</u>	<u>73,618,633</u>
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

¹ The highways line item is increased by \$168,520 from the highway fund for costs of complying with provisions of Senate Bill No. 2209 which require the department to provide data on the location of utilities on highway rights of way, the same as the House version.

² The highways line item is increased by \$17,900,000, of which \$15,900,000 is federal funds and \$2,000,000 is from the highway fund for highway projects in anticipation of receiving \$202.3 million of federal highway construction funds in federal fiscal year 2005 and \$205 million in federal fiscal year 2006, the same as the House version.

³ The highways line item is increased by \$54,128,782, of which \$43,968,332 is federal funds, \$8,472,520 is state matching, and \$1,687,930 is from the counties for emergency relief projects on highways, the same as the House version.

⁴ The highways line item is increased by \$1,550,000 from the public transportation fund to increase the funding available for public transportation grants as a result of provisions of Senate Bill No. 2348, which increase the public transportation fee on motor vehicle registrations from \$2 to \$3 per year.

The section added by the Senate requiring the department to maintain bridges over navigable waters in the state that it is currently maintaining is changed to require the department to maintain the structural integrity of these bridges unless the department enters into an agreement with the municipality, the same as the House version.

A section is added delaying the effective date from January 1, 2006, to January 1, 2008, of provisions allowing a landowner owning land next to a no-mow area to hay the no-mow or managed-mow area after July 15 without payment or penalty, the same as the House version.

The section added by the Senate authorizing the department to issue grant anticipation revenue vehicle (GARVEE) bonds is changed to limit the authorization to only the Liberty Memorial Bridge project and the United States Highway 2 project, the same as the House version.

The section added by the Senate naming the replacement bridge for the Liberty Memorial Bridge between Bismarck and Mandan the Medal of Honor Bridge is changed to name the replacement bridge the Liberty Memorial Bridge, the same as the House version.

A section is added providing for refunds of fuels taxes paid by Native Americans.

Sections are added providing additional state highway revenue beginning in the 2005-07 biennium by:

- Increasing the motor vehicle fuel (gasoline and gasohol) and special fuels (diesel) tax rate by 2 cents per gallon, from 21 to 23 cents. This revenue will be deposited in the highway tax distribution fund.
- Making pickup registration fees equivalent to passenger vehicles by providing for 50 percent of the increase necessary to make this change during the 2005-07 biennium and the remainder beginning July 2007. This revenue will be deposited in the highway tax distribution fund.
- Increasing annual motor vehicle registration fees by \$10. This revenue will be deposited directly in the state highway fund providing a total of \$13 of each registration fee that is deposited directly in the highway fund.

A section is added allocating motor vehicle excise tax revenues between the general fund and the state highway fund. State aid distribution fund allocations from motor vehicle excise tax collections are not affected.

The following provisions included in the House version for generating additional state highway revenue are removed:

- Increasing the motor vehicle fuel (gasoline and gasohol) and special fuels (diesel) tax rate by 2 cents per gallon, from 21 to 23 cents for deposit in the highway tax distribution fund.
- Increasing the motor vehicle fuel (gasoline and gasohol) tax rate by an additional 2 cents per gallon, from 23 to 25 cents each year during the months of May through October, for deposit in the highway tax distribution fund.
- Increasing annual motor vehicle registration fees by \$10, for deposit directly in the state highway fund providing a total of \$13 of each registration fee that is deposited directly in the highway fund.

Sections added by the House are removed which would have provided that effective July 1, 2009, collections from 1 percent of the current 5 percent motor vehicle excise tax that would have been deposited in the state highway fund rather than in the state aid distribution fund and the general fund.

The section added by the House is removed which would have precluded cities and counties from receiving the additional revenue resulting from provisions of this bill until they develop, in collaboration with the Department of Transportation, a roadway plan. Provisions added by the House are also removed which would have provided \$1 million to the Department of Transportation from funds transferred from the cities' and counties' share of the additional revenue generated by this bill for the development of a roadway plan for cities and counties.

Engrossed SB 2012 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. TIMM MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2012 be adopted.

REQUEST

REP. CHARGING REQUESTED a recorded roll call vote on the motion to adopt the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2012, which request was granted.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the motion to adopt the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2012, the roll was called and there were 64 YEAS, 29 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Brandenburg; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Clark; Damschen; DeKrey; Delzer; Devlin; Dietrich; Dosch; Drovdal; Froseth; Galvin; Glassheim; Grande; Haas; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Horter; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kasper; Keiser;

Kelsch, R.; Kempenich; Kingsbury; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Maragos; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Monson; Nelson; Nicholas; Norland; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Sitte; Skarphol; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Timm; Uglem; Vigesaa; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Wrangham; Zaiser; Speaker Klein

NAYS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Bellew; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Carlson; Charging; Conrad; Delmore; Ekstrom; Froelich; Gulleeson; Hanson; Hunskor; Iverson; Kaldor; Kelsh, S.; Kroeber; Martinson; Meyer, S.; Mueller; Nottestad; Onstad; Owens; Potter; Sandvig; Schmidt; Solberg

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Kerzman

The conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2012 was adopted.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2012: A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the department of transportation; to create and enact a new section to chapter 24-01, section 24-02-40.1, a new section to chapter 24-08, and section 57-43.1-03.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the highway performance classification plan, grant or revenue anticipation financing by the department of transportation, naming of the liberty memorial bridge, and refunds of certain fuels taxes paid by native Americans; to amend and reenact sections 24-01-03, 24-01-51, 39-04-19, 57-40.3-10, 57-43.1-02, and 57-43.2-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to highway and bridge maintenance, haying of no-mow areas, motor vehicle registration fees, motor vehicle excise tax revenue, and motor vehicle fuels and special fuels tax rates; to repeal section 39-04-39.5 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to allocation of motor vehicle registration fees; to provide an effective date; to provide a contingent expiration date.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 66 YEAS, 27 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boucher; Brandenburg; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Clark; Conrad; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Devlin; Dietrich; Ekstrom; Froseth; Galvin; Glassheim; Gulleeson; Haas; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Horter; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, S.; Kingsbury; Klemin; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Maragos; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Monson; Nelson; Nicholas; Norland; Nottestad; Owens; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Schmidt; Sitte; Svedjan; Thorpe; Timm; Uglem; Vigesaa; Wald; Wall; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Zaiser; Speaker Klein

NAYS: Amerman; Bellew; Boe; Boehning; Carlson; Charging; Delzer; Dosch; Drovda; Froelich; Grande; Hanson; Hunskor; Iverson; Kempenich; Koppelman; Kroeber; Meyer, S.; Mueller; Onstad; Ruby; Sandvig; Skarphol; Solberg; Thoreson; Weiler; Wrangham

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Kerzman

Engrossed SB 2012 passed and the title was agreed to.

REQUEST

REP. WEISZ REQUESTED that the following remarks be printed in the Journal, which request was granted.

SB 2012 does not preclude the state from negotiating a gas tax refund with the Native Americans prior to December 31, 2004. We are not limiting or prohibiting negotiations between the state and Native Americans.

MOTION

REP. MONSON MOVED that the House stand in recess until 11:30 a.m., which motion prevailed.

THE HOUSE RECONVENED pursuant to recess taken, with Speaker Klein presiding.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

HB 1154, as reengrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Freborg, Flakoll, Taylor and Reps. R. Kelsch, Haas, Mueller) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the

Senate amendments on HJ pages 1507-1523, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1154 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1507-1523 of the House Journal and pages 1000-1016 of the Senate Journal and that Reengrossed House Bill No. 1154 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 15.1-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to educational association board reimbursement; to amend and reenact sections 15.1-06-04, 15.1-06-06, 15.1-07-28, 15.1-09-01, 15.1-12-26, 15.1-12-27, 15.1-12-29, 15.1-18-07, 15.1-22-01, 15.1-27-04, 15.1-27-05, 15.1-27-06, 15.1-27-07, 15.1-27-11, 15.1-27-15, 15.1-27-35, 15.1-27-37, 15.1-27-39, 15.1-27-40, 15.1-28-03, 15.1-29-03, 15.1-29-04, and 15.1-29-12 of the North Dakota Century Code and section 37 of chapter 667 of the 2003 Session Laws, relating to school calendars, school boards, teacher qualifications, school district dissolutions, the school district equalization factor, weighting factors, supplemental payments, isolated schools, and tuition payments; to repeal sections 15.1-09-42, 15.1-12-11.1, and 15.1-12-11.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to instructional conferences and reorganization bonus payments; to provide for transportation grants; to provide for contingent payments; to provide for teacher compensation; to provide for a report to the legislative council; to provide an appropriation; to provide an effective date; and to declare an emergency.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-06-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-06-04. School calendar - Length.

1. During each school year, a school district shall provide for a school calendar of at least one hundred eighty days, apportioned as follows:
 - a. One hundred seventy-three full days of instruction;
 - b. Three holidays listed in subdivisions b through j of subsection 1 of section 15.1-06-02 and selected by the school board in consultation with district teachers;
 - c. ~~Two days for the attendance of teachers at the North Dakota education association instructional conference; and~~
 - d. Up to two full days during which parent-teacher conferences are held or which are deemed by the school board to be compensatory time for parent-teacher conferences held outside regular school hours; and
 - e. Two days for professional development activities.
 2.
 - a. In meeting the requirements for two days of professional development activities under subsection 1, a school district may require that its teachers attend the North Dakota education association instructional conference and may pay teachers for attending the conference, provided attendance is verified.
 - b. In meeting the requirements for two days of professional development activities under subsection 1, a school district may consider attendance at the North Dakota education association instructional conference to be optional, elect not to pay teachers for attending the instructional conference, and instead direct any resulting savings toward providing alternate professional development opportunities.
 3. A school district may not require the attendance of teachers in school or at any school-sponsored, school-directed, school sanctioned, or school related activities and may not schedule classroom instruction time nor alternate professional development activities on any day that conflicts with the North Dakota education association instructional conference.
- 2- 4. A full day of instruction consists of:

- a. At least five and one-half hours for elementary students, during which time the students are required to be in attendance for the purpose of receiving curricular instruction; and
 - b. At least six hours for high school students, during which time the students are required to be in attendance for the purpose of receiving curricular instruction.
3. 5. If a school's calendar provides for an extension of each schoolday beyond the statutorily required minimum number of hours, and if the extensions when aggregated over an entire school year amount to more than eighty-four hours of additional classroom instruction during the school year, the school is exempt from having to make up six hours of instruction time lost as a result of weather-related closure. In order to make up lost classroom instruction time beyond the six hours, the school must extend its normal school calendar day by at least thirty minutes.
4. 6. A school that does not qualify under the provisions of subsection 3 must extend its normal schoolday by at least thirty minutes to make up classroom instruction time lost as a result of weather-related closure.
5. 7. If because of weather a school must dismiss before completing a full day of instruction, the school is responsible for making up only those hours and portions of an hour between the time of early dismissal and the conclusion of a full day of classroom instruction.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-06-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-06-06. Approval of public and nonpublic schools. Each public and nonpublic school in this state offering elementary or secondary education to students must be approved by the superintendent of public instruction. Except as otherwise provided by law, the superintendent may not approve a school unless:

- 1. Each classroom teacher ~~holds a valid teaching certificate issued~~ is licensed to teach by the education standards and practices board or approved to teach by the education standards and practices board;
- 2. Each classroom teacher is teaching only in those course areas or fields for which the teacher is licensed or for which the teacher has received an exception under section 2 of House Bill No. 1076, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly;
- 3. The students are offered all subjects required by law; and
- 3. 4. The school is in compliance with all local and state health, fire, and safety laws.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-07-28 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-07-28. Educational association - Joint powers agreement - ~~Approval~~ Review by superintendent of public instruction - Criteria. ~~If Before~~ Before school districts participating in an educational association governed by a joint powers agreement ~~under chapter 54-40.3 wish to agreement may receive reimbursement for expenses any moneys, as provided in section 15.1-27-40, the school districts must request that the superintendent of public instruction approve their shall review the joint powers agreement. In order for the superintendent of public instruction to approve a joint powers agreement, the superintendent shall determine and annually and verify that:~~

- 1. a. The ~~participating~~ school districts ~~are contiguous; and~~
- b. ~~(1) The participating in the agreement have:~~
- a. A combined total land mass of the participating school districts exceeds four at least five thousand eight hundred square miles [4035995 1502193 hectares];
- (2) The

- b. ~~A combined total land mass of the participating school districts exceeds two at least four thousand five hundred square miles [647497 1165494 hectares] and the participating school districts number at least six twelve; or~~

~~(3) The~~

- c. ~~A combined total land mass of the participating school districts exceeds two at least four thousand five hundred square miles [1035995 hectares] and the total number of have at least three thousand students in average daily membership in the participating school districts exceeds two thousand five hundred.~~

2. ~~The joint powers agreement provides that a school district contiguous to any school district already participating in the joint powers agreement may become a participant in the agreement at any time.~~

3. ~~The joint powers agreement requires that the participating school districts agree to maintain a joint operating fund, agree to share administrative functions, or agree to implement various common requirements; provided that:~~

- a. ~~If the participating school districts agree to establish a joint operating fund, the joint powers agreement must require that during the first school year following approval, the participating school districts shall establish a joint operating fund equal to at least two percent of the participating districts' total expenditures for the school year ending on the June thirtieth preceding the date of approval; during the second school year following approval, the participating school districts shall establish a joint operating fund equal to at least four percent of the participating districts' total expenditures for the school year ending on the June thirtieth preceding the date of approval; and during the fifth school year following approval, the participating school districts shall establish a joint operating fund equal to at least six percent of the participating districts' total expenditures for the school year ending on the June thirtieth preceding the date of approval;~~

- b. ~~If the participating school districts agree to share administrative functions, the joint powers agreement must require that during the first school year following approval, all of the participating districts shall share in the administration of at least three services; during the third school year following approval, all of the participating districts shall share in the administration of at least five services; and during the fifth school year following approval, all of the participating districts shall share in the administration of at least seven services; and that the list from which the participating districts must select the services to be shared consists of:~~

~~(1) Federal title program management;~~

~~(2) Staff development;~~

~~(3) Special education delivery;~~

~~(4) Curriculum development or delivery;~~

~~(5) Career and technical education delivery;~~

~~(6) Student instructional support;~~

~~(7) Media and technology;~~

~~(8) Business management;~~

~~(9) Distance learning;~~

~~(10) Student counseling;~~

~~(11) Food and nutrition;~~

- (12) ~~Facility safety and health;~~
 - (13) ~~School accreditation and improvement; and~~
 - (14) ~~Transportation; and~~
- e. ~~If the participating school districts agree to implement various common requirements, the joint powers agreement must require that during the first school year following approval, all of the participating districts shall implement at least three requirements; during the third school year following approval, all of the participating districts shall implement at least six requirements; and during the fifth school year following approval, all of the participating districts shall implement at least eight requirements; and that the list from which the participating districts must select the requirements to be implemented consists of:~~
- (1) ~~A common school calendar;~~
 - (2) ~~A common class schedule;~~
 - (3) ~~A common intranet communication system;~~
 - (4) ~~A common class registration process for grades seven through twelve;~~
 - (5) ~~A common curriculum for each grade level from kindergarten through six;~~
 - (6) ~~A common student data system;~~
 - (7) ~~A common school improvement and staff development process;~~
 - (8) ~~Common services, as set forth in a five-year plan;~~
 - (9) ~~A school facilities plan; and~~
 - (10) ~~Joint funding of dual credit and advance placement courses; or~~
- d. A combined total land mass of at least one thousand five hundred square miles [388498 hectares] and have at least seven thousand five hundred students in average daily membership.
2. The school districts participating in the agreement are contiguous to each other or, if the districts are not contiguous to each other, the superintendent of public instruction shall verify that the participating districts can provide sound educational opportunities to their students in a fiscally responsible manner without injuring other school districts or educational associations governed by joint powers agreements and without negatively impacting the ability of other school districts or educational associations governed by joint powers agreements from providing sound educational opportunities to their students in a fiscally responsible manner. A decision by the superintendent of public instruction under this subsection may be appealed to the state board of public school education. A decision by the state board is final.
3. The joint powers agreement requires that the participating school districts maintain a joint operating fund and share various administrative functions and student services in accordance with subsection 4.
4. a. During the first two school years in which an educational association governed by a joint powers agreement is operational, each of the participating school districts shall share in at least two administrative functions and two student services, selected by the district.
- b. During the third and fourth school years in which an educational association governed by a joint powers agreement is operational, each of the participating school districts shall share in at least three administrative functions and three student services, selected by the district.

- c. During the fifth school year in which an educational association governed by a joint powers agreement is operational, and each year thereafter, each participating school district shall share at least five administrative functions and five student services, selected by the district.
- d. For purposes of this subsection:
 - (1) "Administrative functions" means:
 - (a) Business management;
 - (b) Career and technical education services management;
 - (c) Curriculum mapping or development;
 - (d) Data analysis;
 - (e) Federal program support;
 - (f) Federal title program management;
 - (g) Grant writing;
 - (h) School improvement;
 - (i) School safety and environment management;
 - (j) Special education services management;
 - (k) Staff development;
 - (l) Staff retention and recruitment;
 - (m) Staff sharing;
 - (n) Technology support; and
 - (o) Any other functions approved by the superintendent of public instruction.
 - (2) Student services means:
 - (a) Advanced placement classes;
 - (b) Alternative high schools or alternative high school programs;
 - (c) Career and technical education classes;
 - (d) Counseling services;
 - (e) Common elementary curricula;
 - (f) Distance learning classes;
 - (g) Dual credit classes;
 - (h) Foreign language classes;
 - (i) Library and media services;
 - (j) Summer programs;
 - (k) Supplemental instruction programs; and
 - (l) Any other services approved by the superintendent of public instruction.

- e. For purposes of this subsection, if an educational association governed by a joint powers agreement became operational before July 1, 2005, the 2005-06 school year must be considered the association's first year of operation.
- 5. The joint powers agreement provides:
 - a. Criteria for the future participation of school districts that were not parties to the original joint powers agreement;
 - b. An application process by which school districts that were not parties to the original joint powers agreement can become participating districts; and
 - c. A process by which school districts that were not parties to the original joint powers agreement and whose application to participate in the agreement was denied can appeal the decision to the superintendent of public instruction.
- 4. 6. The joint powers agreement provides for the employment and compensation of ~~a chief administrator and other~~ any staff necessary to carry out the provisions of the agreement and the requirements of this ~~section and section 15.1-27-37~~ Act.
- 7. The joint powers agreement provides for a governing board that consists only of individuals who serve on the boards of the participating school districts or designees of the respective school board members, provided however that a joint powers agreement may allow for the inclusion of ex officio nonvoting members on the educational association's board.
- 8. The joint powers agreement provides that the board of the educational association shall meet at least quarterly.
- 9. The joint powers agreement does not permit the educational association to compensate members of the educational association board for attending meetings of the board and that it does not permit the educational association to reimburse members of the board for any expenses incurred in attending meetings of the educational association board.

SECTION 4. A new section to chapter 15.1-07 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Compensation - Reimbursement - Extraordinary service. The board of an educational association established under section 15.1-07-28 may provide compensation and reimbursement to any board member who, at the direction of the board, performs extraordinary service on behalf of the board. For purposes of this section, "extraordinary service" means duties beyond those reasonably expected of members of the board and includes travel to and attendance at national meetings or conventions.

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-09-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-09-01. School board membership - Size and term adjustments.

- 1. The board of a school district is must be composed of five, seven, or nine members, ~~unless:~~
 - a. ~~The electors of the district increase the size of the board under this section;~~
 - b. ~~The size of the board was increased under a prior law; or~~
 - c. ~~The board, on July 1, 1971, was composed of more or fewer than five members, in which case the number of members must remain unchanged unless increased under this section.~~
- 2. The size of any a school district board may be increased to either five, seven, or nine members or decreased to seven or five members if a petition is signed by qualified electors of the school district equal in number

to at least one-third of those who voted at the most recent annual school district election and the change is approved by a majority of the qualified electors of the school district voting on the question at a special election called for that purpose.

3. If a majority of the qualified voters in a school district elect to increase the size of the school board, the additional members must be elected to the board at the next annual school district election in the same manner as other board members.
 - a. ~~If the total number of board members after approval of the increase is five, the terms of two members extend until the first annual election, the terms of two members extend until the second annual election, and the term of the remaining member extends until the third annual election.~~
 - b. ~~If the total number of board members after approval of the increase is seven, the terms of three members extend until the first annual election, the terms of two members extend until the second annual election, and the terms of the remaining two members extend until the third annual election.~~
 - c. ~~If the total number of board members after approval of the increase is nine, the terms of three members extend until the first annual election, the terms of three members extend until the second annual election, and the terms of the remaining three members extend until the third annual election.~~
 - d. ~~The length of the terms specified in this ~~section~~ subsection must be determined by lot.~~
 - e. ~~All board members shall serve for the terms specified in this ~~section~~ subsection and until their successors are elected and qualified.~~
 - f. ~~The length of any term in existence before the increase in board membership and held by a board member who is duly qualified may not be modified.~~
 - g. ~~Terms subsequent to the first term are for the normal period of three years and extend until a successor is elected and qualified.~~
4. If on July 1, 2005, the board of any school district contains only three members, the board must be increased to five members and the additional members must be elected at the next annual school district election, in the same manner as other board members. The initial term of one additional member must be one year and the initial term of the other additional member must be two years. The length of the terms specified in this subsection must be determined by lot. Thereafter, the size of the board may be increased in accordance with subsections 2 and 3.
5. The voters of a school district shall elect school board members at large. If, however, the district has been reorganized, board members may be elected at large, by geographical area, or at large by geographical area.
6. 6. An election on a reorganization proposal takes the place of the petition and election requirements of this section. Approval of the reorganization proposal has the same effect as if the approval were by the election provided for in this section.
7. 7. If the qualified electors of a district approve a reduction in the size of the school board, the excess number of members will serve out existing terms until the number approved by the electors has been reached.
8. 8. If the board of a school district has elected to convert its members' terms to four years and has also increased the number of its board members, the board by lot or by some other random selection method shall provide for a combination of initial terms of office not to exceed four years for the new members. The combination must equalize to the greatest extent possible the number and length of terms for old board members and for new

members to be elected during the next three election years. The members' terms must be staggered and must expire in even-numbered years.

8. 9. Notwithstanding the provisions of this section, the board of education of the city of Fargo consists of nine members.

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-12-26 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-12-26. Dissolution of school district - Grounds.

1. A county committee shall initiate proceedings to dissolve a school district and attach the property to other operating high school districts when it is notified in writing by the county superintendent of schools whose jurisdiction includes the administrative headquarters of the district that:
 - a. The district is financially unable to effectively and efficiently educate its students;
 - b. The district has not operated a school as required by section 15.1-12-24; or
 - c. A school board has determined that dissolution is in the best interest of its students.
2. Except as provided in subsection 3, a county committee shall initiate proceedings under section 15.1-12-27 to attach real property to an operating high school district when it is notified in writing by the county superintendent that:
 - a. Real property has been severed from its school district by the expansion of a city and the severed portion is not contiguous with its district; or
 - b. There exists real property that does not belong to a school district.
3. If a school district reorganization plan which does not include all real property in a district is approved by the electors, the county committee shall, within forty-five days after the election, hold a hearing under section ~~45.4-12-29~~ 15.1-12-27 to attach the remaining property to one or more operating high school districts.
4. Receipt of notice by a county committee under this section:
 - a. Renders an annexation petition involving any real property in the district void, unless the annexation has already been approved by the state board; and
 - b. Prohibits the acceptance of a new annexation petition involving any real property in the district until all dissolution proceedings have been completed.
5. One or more annexation petitions may not be used to annex all of the real property in a school district to surrounding school districts.

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-12-27 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-12-27. Dissolution of school district - Notice - Hearing - Order of attachment.

1. The county superintendent shall schedule and give notice of a public hearing regarding the dissolution of the district and the subsequent attachment of the property to other high school districts. The county superintendent shall publish the notice in the official newspaper of each county that encompasses property in the dissolving district and in the official newspaper of each county that encompasses property in a high school district adjacent to the dissolving district, at least fourteen days before the date of the hearing. The county superintendent shall provide

notice of the public hearing to the business manager of each high school district adjacent to the dissolving district.

2. At the hearing, the board of the dissolving district may propose a particular manner of dissolution.
3. The county committee shall consider testimony and documentary evidence regarding:
 - a. The value and amount of property held by the dissolving school district;
 - b. The amount of all outstanding bonded and other indebtedness;
 - c. The distribution of property and assets among the high school districts to which the dissolved district is attached;
 - d. The taxable valuation of the dissolving district and adjacent high school districts and the taxable valuation of adjacent high school districts under the proposed manner of dissolution;
 - e. The size, geographical features, and boundaries of the dissolving district and of adjacent high school districts;
 - f. The number of students in the dissolving district and in adjacent high school districts;
 - g. The general population of the dissolving district and adjacent high school districts;
 - h. Each school in the dissolving district and in adjacent high school districts, including its name, location, condition, accessibility, and the grade levels it offers;
 - i. The location and condition of roads, highways, and natural barriers in the dissolving district and in adjacent high school districts;
 - j. Conditions affecting the welfare of students in the dissolving district and in adjacent high school districts;
 - k. The boundaries of other governmental entities;
 - l. The educational needs of communities in the dissolving district and in adjacent high school districts;
 - m. Potential savings in school district transportation and administrative services;
 - n. The anticipated future use of the dissolving districts' buildings, sites, and playfields;
 - o. The potential for a reduction in per student valuation disparities between the high school districts to which the dissolved district is attached;
 - p. The potential to equalize or increase the educational opportunities for students from the dissolving district and for students in adjacent high school districts; and
 - q. All other relevant factors.
4. After the hearing, the county committee shall make findings of fact. Subject to final approval by the state board, the county committee may order the district dissolved and its real property attached to one or more contiguous, operating high school districts.
5. Any property ordered attached under this section must have at least one minor residing within its boundaries.

6. The county superintendent shall forward all minutes, records, documentary evidence, and other information regarding the dissolution proceeding together with a copy of the county committee's order to the state board for final approval of the dissolution. The state board shall publish notice of its meeting at which it will consider the dissolution, in the official newspapers of the counties required for publication under subsection 1, at least fourteen days before the meeting.
7. The order of dissolution becomes effective July first following approval by the state board, unless the county committee provides for a different effective date.
8. If the boundaries of the dissolving school district cross county lines, the proceeding to dissolve the district must be conducted jointly by the county committees representing counties containing twenty-five percent or more of the dissolving district's taxable valuation. If, after the hearing, a majority of the county committees are unable to agree upon an order of dissolution and attachment, the county superintendent of the county in which the administrative headquarters of the dissolving school district is located shall notify the state board. The state board shall conduct a public hearing, as required in this section, and order the dissolution of the district and the attachment of its real property to adjacent high school districts in the manner it deems appropriate. The state board shall publish notice of the public hearing in the official newspapers of the counties required for publication under subsection 1, at least fourteen days before the date of the hearing.
9. If any portion of the order providing for the attachment of real property is suspended or voided, the order of dissolution is likewise suspended or voided.

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-12-29 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-12-29. Dissolution of school district - Unobligated cash balance - Tax credits or refunds.

1. ~~Any~~ After ten thousand dollars is set aside, as required by section 15.1-12-28, and after the required amount is deposited in the reimbursement account for job service North Dakota, as required by section 15.1-12-28.1, any remaining unobligated cash balance ~~in excess of ten thousand dollars~~, up to an amount equaling a dissolved school district's general fund expenditure for the last school year before the district's dissolution is a credit for real property owners within the boundaries of the dissolved school district, against taxes levied by the district ~~in to~~ which their property is now situated. ~~The county auditor shall base the credit on the five-year average of the total mills levied for education by the dissolved district attached.~~ If property from the dissolved district is attached to more than one school district, the percentage of the total credit ~~that to which each eligible real property owners receive must be~~ owner is entitled must equal the same percentage of the unobligated cash balance as the ~~that the~~ taxable valuation of the individual's real property bears to the total taxable valuation of the dissolved district's property at the time of the attachment order.
2. Upon approval of the board of county commissioners, any school district required to provide a tax credit under subsection 1 may provide a cash refund in lieu of the tax credit. At the request of the county auditor, the school district holding the unobligated cash balance available under subsection 1 shall pay to the county treasurer the amount to be paid to those who own real property within the dissolved district. The treasurer shall issue the refund to the owner of the property as shown on the county's assessment list at the time of payment. If there is a lien for unpaid taxes against the property, the treasurer shall first apply the property owner's tax credit toward any outstanding balance. Any amount remaining may then be paid to the property owner. The cash refunds must be calculated proportionately to the total taxable value of the dissolved district during the last year taxes were levied.

3. After the requirements of subsection 1 have been met, the county auditor shall distribute any remaining unobligated cash balance among the school districts to which the real property of the dissolved district was attached. The percentage of the remaining unobligated cash balance to which each school district is entitled equals that percentage of the dissolved district's total taxable valuation which was attached to the receiving school district.

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-18-07 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-18-07. (Effective after June 30, 2006) Elementary school teacher qualifications.

1. In order to teach any grade ~~from one through six~~ in an elementary school that offers grades one through six, or in order to teach any grade in an elementary school that offers grades one through eight, an individual must be ~~licensed~~:
 - a. Licensed to teach by the education standards and practices board or approved to teach by the education standards and practices board; and:
 - a- b. (1) Have a major in elementary education; or
 - b- (2) Have a major equivalency in elementary education.
2. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection 1, an individual may teach any grade from one through three in an elementary school provided the individual is ~~licensed~~:
 - a. Licensed to teach by the education standards and practices board or approved to teach by the education standards and practices board; and:
 - a- b. (1) Has a major in early childhood education; or
 - b- (2) Has a major equivalency in early childhood education.
3. ~~In order to teach any grade from one through eight in a self-contained classroom, an individual must be licensed to teach by the education standards and practices board and:~~
 - a- ~~Have a major in elementary education; or~~
 - b- ~~Have a major equivalency in elementary education.~~

SECTION 10. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-22-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-22-01. Kindergarten - Establishment by board - ~~Petition for establishment Request by parent~~ - Levy.

1. Upon its own motion, the board of a school district may establish a free public kindergarten ~~for the instruction during a school year of resident children below school age.~~
2. If the board receives a ~~petition signed by qualified electors residing in the district equal in number to at least twenty percent of those who voted in the most recent annual school district election, the board must submit the question of establishing a kindergarten to the electorate at the next annual or special school district election. The margins of electoral approval provided in section 57-15-14 must be applied~~ written request to provide kindergarten from the parent of a student who will be enrolled in the kindergarten, the board shall either provide at least a half-day kindergarten program for the student or pay the tuition required for the student to attend at least a half-day kindergarten program in another school district.
3. The board of a school district that establishes a kindergarten under this section may levy a tax pursuant to subdivision p of subsection 1 of section 57-15-14.2.

SECTION 11. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-04. Per student payment. The per student payment to which each school district is entitled for the first year of the biennium is two thousand ~~five~~ seven hundred ~~nine~~ sixty-eight dollars. The per student payment to which each school district is entitled for the second year of the biennium is two thousand ~~six~~ eight hundred ~~twenty-three~~ eighty-two dollars. The per student amount is the basis for calculating state payments to school districts, as provided in sections 15.1-27-06 and 15.1-27-07.

SECTION 12. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-05 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-05. (Effective through June 30, 2008) School district equalization factor.

1. To determine the amount of payments due a school district, the superintendent of public instruction shall add the tuition apportionment payments, per student payments, special education aid, transportation aid, and teacher compensation payments for which a school district is eligible and from that total subtract the following:
 - a. The product of ~~thirty-six~~ thirty-eight mills times the taxable valuation of property in the district;
 - b. The amount by which the unobligated general fund balance of the district on the preceding June thirtieth is in excess of fifty percent of its actual expenditures, plus twenty thousand dollars; and
 - c. If the mills levied by the district for general fund purposes, plus the mills levied for high school transportation and high school tuition purposes are fewer than one hundred forty, the number of mills by which the district's levies are below one hundred forty multiplied by the taxable valuation of property in the district.
2. Beginning July 1, 2006, and each year thereafter, the number of mills used by the superintendent of public instruction in determining the product required by subdivision a of subsection 1 must be increased by ~~two~~ three over the number of mills used in determining the product required by that subdivision the previous year.

(Effective after June 30, 2008) School district equalization factor.

1. To determine the amount of payments due a school district, the superintendent of public instruction shall add the tuition apportionment payments, per student payments, special education aid, transportation aid, and teacher compensation payments for which a school district is eligible and from that total subtract the following:
 - a. The product of the number of mills prescribed in subsection 2 times the taxable valuation of property in the district;
 - b. The amount by which the unobligated general fund balance of the district on the preceding June thirtieth is in excess of forty-five percent of its actual expenditures, plus twenty thousand dollars; and
 - c. If the mills levied by the district for general fund purposes, plus the mills levied for high school transportation and high school tuition purposes are fewer than one hundred forty, the number of mills by which the district's levies are below one hundred forty multiplied by the taxable valuation of property in the district.
2. The number of mills used by the superintendent of public instruction in determining the product required by subdivision a of subsection 1 must be increased by ~~two~~ three over the number of mills used in determining the product required by that subdivision the previous year.

SECTION 13. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-06. Per student payments - Weighting factors - High school students. The superintendent of public instruction shall make payments each year, as provided for in this section, to each school district operating a high school and to each school district contracting to educate high school students in a federal school, subject to adjustment as provided in section 15.1-27-21.

1. Each district having under ~~seventy-five~~ one hundred twenty students in average daily membership in grades nine through twelve is entitled to receive the amount of money that results from multiplying the factor ~~1.625 adjusted by eighty-five percent of the difference between 1.625 and the factor~~ representing the five-year average cost of education per student for this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, by the number of students in grades nine through twelve who are registered in that district, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04. ~~Beginning July 1, 2004, the factor is that which represents the five-year average cost of education per student in this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction.~~
2. Each district having at least ~~seventy-five~~ one hundred twenty but fewer than ~~one~~ three hundred ~~fifty~~ students in average daily membership in grades nine through twelve is entitled to receive the amount of money that results from multiplying the factor ~~1.335 adjusted by eighty-five percent of the difference between 1.335 and the factor~~ representing the five-year average cost of education per student for this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, by the number of students in grades nine through twelve who are registered in that district, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04. ~~Beginning July 1, 2004, the factor is that which represents the five-year average cost of education per student in this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction.~~
3. Each district having at least ~~one~~ three hundred ~~fifty~~ but fewer than ~~five hundred fifty~~ students in average daily membership in grades nine through twelve is entitled to receive the amount of money that results from multiplying the factor ~~1.24 adjusted by eighty-five percent of the difference between 1.24 and the factor~~ representing the five-year average cost of education per student for this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, by the number of students in grades nine through twelve who are registered in that district, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04. ~~Beginning July 1, 2004, the factor is that which represents the five-year average cost of education per student in this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction.~~
4. ~~Each district having at least five hundred fifty students in average daily membership in grades nine through twelve is entitled to receive the amount of money that results from multiplying the factor 1.14 adjusted by eighty-five percent of the difference between 1.14 and the factor representing the five-year average cost of education per student for this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, by the number of students in grades nine through twelve who are registered in that district, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04. Beginning July 1, 2004, the factor is that which represents the five-year average cost of education per student in this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction.~~
5. 4. Each district having an approved alternative high school education program is entitled to receive the amount of money that results from multiplying the factor in:
 - a. Subsection 1 by the number of students registered in the alternative education program, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04, if fewer than ~~seventy-five~~ one hundred twenty students in average daily membership are enrolled in the alternative education program.
 - b. Subsection 2 by the number of students registered in the alternative education program, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04, if at least ~~seventy-five~~ one hundred twenty but

fewer than ~~one three hundred fifty~~ students in average daily membership are enrolled in the alternative education program.

- c. Subsection 3 by the number of students registered in the alternative education program, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04, if at least ~~one three hundred fifty but fewer than five hundred fifty~~ students in average daily membership are enrolled in the alternative education program.
 - d. ~~Subsection 4 by the number of students registered in the alternative education program, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04, if at least five hundred fifty students in average daily membership are enrolled in the alternative education program.~~
6. 5. In order to be eligible for enumeration under this section, a student:
- a. Must have completed the work of the eighth grade;
 - b. Must not have completed the work of the twelfth grade; and
 - c. Must be a resident of this state or a nonresident attending a school in this state under the auspices of a foreign student exchange program.
6. In calculating payments under this section and subsections 1 through 4 of section 15.1-27-07, the superintendent of public instruction shall use 1.0 as the factor that represents the lowest five-year average cost of education among all elementary and high school weighting categories other than kindergarten and shall use proportionately increased factors to represent the five-year average cost of education in all remaining weighting categories except kindergarten.

SECTION 14. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-07 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-07. Per student payments - Weighting factors - Elementary school students. The superintendent of public instruction shall make payments each year, as provided for in this section, to each school district operating an elementary school and to each school district contracting to educate elementary students in a federal school, subject to adjustment as provided in section 15.1-27-21.

- 1. ~~a. Each district having only a one-room rural school is entitled to receive the amount of money that results from multiplying the factor 1.28 adjusted by eighty five percent of the difference between 1.28 and the factor representing the five year average cost of education per student for this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, by the number of students in average daily membership in grades one through eight in that school, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04. Beginning July 1, 2004, the factor is that which represents the five year average cost of education per student in this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction. The payment level provided for in this subdivision is applicable only to the first sixteen students.~~
- b. ~~If the one-room rural school has more than sixteen students in average daily membership in grades one through eight, the district in which the school is located is entitled to receive ninety percent of the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04 for each additional student. The district is not entitled to any payment for more than twenty students in average daily membership.~~
- c. ~~If a one-room rural school is located in a district having another elementary school, the weighting factor for the students in grades one through six must be based on the average daily membership in the district in grades one through six, as provided in this section.~~
- d. ~~If a one-room rural school is located in a school district with another school that has students in grade seven or eight, the weighting factor for the students in grade seven or eight must be the same as that provided for in subsection 5.~~

2. 1. ~~Except as provided in subsection 1, each~~ Each school district having fewer than one hundred students in average daily membership in grades one through six is entitled to receive the amount of money that results from multiplying the factor ~~1.09 adjusted by eighty five percent of the difference between 1.09 and the factor~~ representing the five-year average cost of education per student for this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, by the number of students in average daily membership in grades one through six in the district, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04. ~~Beginning July 1, 2004, the factor is that which represents the five-year average cost of education per student in this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction. The payment provided for in this subsection is applicable only to the first twenty five students in average daily membership per classroom or per teacher.~~
3. 2. Each school district having at least one hundred students ~~but fewer than one thousand students~~ in average daily membership in grades one through six is entitled to receive the amount of money that results from multiplying the factor ~~.905 adjusted by eighty five percent of the difference between .905 and the factor~~ representing the five-year average cost of education per student for this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, by the number of students in average daily membership in grades one through six in the district, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04. ~~Beginning July 1, 2004, the factor is that which represents the five-year average cost of education per student in this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction. The payment provided for in this subsection is applicable only to the first thirty students in average daily membership per classroom or per teacher.~~
4. ~~Each school district having at least one thousand students in average daily membership in grades one through six is entitled to receive the amount of money that results from multiplying the factor .95 adjusted by eighty five percent of the difference between .95 and the factor representing the five-year average cost of education per student for this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, by the number of students in average daily membership in grades one through six in the district, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04. Beginning July 1, 2004, the factor is that which represents the five-year average cost of the education per student in this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction. The payment provided for in this subsection is applicable only to the first thirty students in average daily membership per classroom or per teacher.~~
5. 3. Each school district having students in grades seven and eight is entitled to receive the amount of money that results from multiplying the factor ~~4.04 adjusted by eighty five percent of the difference between 1.01 and the factor~~ representing the five-year average cost of education per student for this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, by the number of students in average daily membership in grades seven and eight in the district, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04. ~~Beginning July 1, 2004, the factor is that which represents the five-year average cost of education per student in this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction. The payment provided for in this subsection is applicable only to the first thirty students in average daily membership per classroom or per teacher. The payments provided for in this subsection are not available for students who attend a one-room rural school if that school is the only one in the district that offers educational services to students in grades seven and eight.~~
6. 4. Each school district having a special education program approved by the director of special education is entitled to receive, for each student who is enrolled in the program and who is at least three years of age but less than the compulsory age for school attendance, the amount of money that results from multiplying the factor ~~4.04 adjusted by eighty five percent of the difference between 1.01 and the factor~~ representing the five-year average cost of education per student for this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, by the number of special education students in average daily membership in the program who are at least three years of age but less than the compulsory age for school attendance, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04.

~~Beginning July 1, 2004, the factor is that which represents the five-year average cost of education per student in this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction.~~

- ~~7.~~ 5.
 - a. Each school district operating a kindergarten as provided for in section 15.1-22-02 is entitled to receive the amount of money that results from multiplying the factor ~~.50 adjusted by eighty-five percent of the difference between .50 and the factor~~ representing the five-year average cost of education per student for this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, by the number of kindergarten students in average daily membership in the district, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04. ~~Beginning July 1, 2004, the factor is that which represents the five-year average cost of education per student in this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction.~~ The payment provided for in this subsection is applicable only to the first twenty-five students in average daily membership per classroom or per teacher.
 - b. In order to receive the full per student payment available under this section, a district must operate a kindergarten program that provides the equivalent of ninety full days of classroom instruction during a twelve-month period. A district is entitled to a prorated payment under this section if it operates a kindergarten program of shorter duration.
- ~~8.~~ 6. Each school district that educates students who are also enrolled in nonpublic schools is entitled to receive proportionate payments under this section.
- ~~9.~~ 7. Each school district is entitled to receive as much in total payments for elementary students as it would have received if it had the highest number of students in the next lower category.
- ~~10.~~ 8. A school district is not entitled to any payments provided for by this chapter unless each teacher employed by the district:
 - a. Holds a teaching license issued by the education standards and practices board; or
 - b. Has been approved to teach by the education standards and practices board.
9. In calculating payments under subsections 1 through 4 and under section 15.1-27-06, the superintendent of public instruction shall use 1.0 as the factor that represents the lowest five-year average cost of education among the elementary and high school weighting categories other than kindergarten and shall use proportionately increased factors to represent the five-year average cost of education in all remaining weighting categories except kindergarten.

SECTION 15. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-11 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-11. High school districts - Supplemental payments.

1. The superintendent of public instruction shall calculate the average valuation of property per student by dividing the number of students in average daily membership in grades one through twelve in a high school district into the sum of:
 - a. The district's latest available net assessed and equalized taxable valuation of property; plus
 - b. All tuition payments and county ~~and unrestricted federal~~ revenue received by the district, divided by the total of the district's general fund levy, high school transportation levy, and high school tuition levy.
2. ~~If the~~ The superintendent of public instruction shall verify that:
 - a. The quotient arrived at under subsection 1 is less than the latest available statewide average taxable valuation per student and if the;

- b. The district's educational expenditure per student is below the most recent available statewide average cost of education per student;
 - c. The district has a general fund levy of at least one hundred eighty mills; and
 - d. The district's unobligated general fund balance on the preceding June thirtieth is not in excess of thirty-five percent of its actual expenditures, plus twenty thousand dollars.
3. If the superintendent of public instruction determines that the district meets all the requirements of subsection 2, the superintendent ~~of public instruction~~ shall:
- a. Determine the difference between the latest available statewide average taxable valuation per student and the average taxable valuation per student in the high school district;
 - b. Multiply the result determined under subdivision a by the number of students in average daily membership in grades one through twelve in the high school district;
 - c. Multiply the result determined under subdivision b by the number of general fund mills levied by the district in excess of one hundred fifty, provided that any mills levied by the district which are in excess of two hundred ten may not be used in this calculation; and
 - d. Multiply the result determined under subdivision c by a factor calculated by the superintendent of public instruction to result in the expenditure, over the course of the biennium, of the full amount provided for the purpose of this section.
- e. 4. The result of the calculations under this section is the supplemental payment to which a high school district is entitled, in addition to any other amount provided under chapter 15.1-27.

SECTION 16. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-15 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-15. Per student payments - Isolated schools.

- 1. If an elementary school has fewer than fifty students and fifteen percent or more of its students would have to travel beyond a fifteen-mile [24.15-kilometer] radius from their residences in order to attend another school, the weighting factor provided under section 15.1-27-07 must be increased by ~~twenty~~ twenty-five percent ~~for the first fifteen students~~. If the school has fewer than fifteen students, the payment received must be for fifteen students.
- 2. If a high school has fewer than thirty-five students and fifteen percent or more of its students would have to travel beyond a twenty-mile [32.2-kilometer] radius from their residences in order to attend another school, the weighting factor provided under section 15.1-27-06 must be increased by ~~twenty~~ twenty-five percent ~~for the first twenty students~~. If the school has fewer than twenty students, the payment received must be for twenty students.

SECTION 17. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-35 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-35. Average daily membership - Calculation. Average daily membership is calculated by adding the total number of days that each student in a given classroom, school, or school district is in attendance during a school calendar and the total number of days that each student in a given classroom, school, or school district is absent during a school calendar, and then dividing the sum by one hundred eighty. For purposes of calculating average daily membership, all students are deemed to be in attendance on:

1. The three holidays listed in subdivisions b through j of subsection 1 of section 15.1-06-02 and selected by the school board in consultation with district teachers;
2. The two days set aside for ~~the attendance of teachers at the North Dakota education association instructional conference~~ professional development activities under section 15.1-06-04; and
3. The two full days, or portions thereof, during which parent-teacher conferences are held or which are deemed by the board of the district to be compensatory time for parent-teacher conferences held outside regular school hours.

SECTION 18. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-37 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-37. Compensation of teachers - Claim for reimbursement - Rules.

1. On or before October first of each year or within thirty days after the conclusion of the negotiation process provided for in chapter 15.1-16, the board of a school district may file a claim with the superintendent of public instruction for the reimbursement of moneys to be expended by the district during the school year to at least maintain the level of compensation provided to teachers employed by the district during the ~~2002-03~~ preceding school year.
2. The claim must include:
 - a. The number of full-time equivalent teachers employed by the district as of September fifteenth of the current school year;
 - b. The number of full-time equivalent teachers whose level of compensation will be at least equal to that provided during the ~~2002-03~~ preceding school year; and
 - c. The total amount of any compensation increases provided to full-time equivalent teachers over the level of compensation provided during the ~~2002-03~~ preceding school year.
3.
 - a. ~~For the 2003-04 school year, the~~ The reimbursement provided for in this section may not exceed three thousand dollars multiplied by the number of full-time equivalent teachers employed by the district as of September ~~15, 2003~~.
 - b. ~~For the 2004-05 school year, the reimbursement provided for in this section may not exceed three thousand dollars multiplied by the number of full-time equivalent teachers employed by the district as of September 15, 2004.~~
 - e. ~~For the 2003-04 school year, the~~ fifteenth of the current school year.
 - b. The reimbursement under this section for each individual employed as of September ~~15, 2003~~ fifteenth of the current school year, as a full-time equivalent teacher for the first school year since becoming licensed to teach by the education standards and practices board or approved to teach by the education standards and practices board, may not exceed one thousand dollars.
 - d. ~~For the 2004-05 school year, the reimbursement under this section for each individual employed as of September 15, 2004, as a full-time equivalent teacher for the first school year since becoming licensed to teach by the education standards and practices board or approved to teach by the education standards and practices board, may not exceed one thousand dollars.~~
4. For purposes of this section, the claim of a district may include proportionate expenditures made by the district to compensate individuals employed as teachers by the special education unit or the area career and technology center to which the district belongs.

5. The superintendent of public instruction may adopt rules regarding claims for and the payment of reimbursements under this section.

SECTION 19. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-39 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-39. Annual salary - Minimum amount.

1. Beginning with the ~~2003-04~~ 2005-06 school year, the board of each school district shall provide to each full-time teacher, under contract for a period of nine months, a minimum salary level for the contract period equal to at least ~~twenty-one~~ twenty-two thousand dollars.
2. Beginning with the ~~2004-05~~ 2006-07 school year, the board of each school district shall provide to each full-time teacher, under contract for a period of nine months, a minimum salary level for the contract period equal to at least ~~twenty-one~~ twenty-two thousand five hundred dollars.

SECTION 20. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-40 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-40. Approved joint powers agreement - ~~Reimbursement by superintendent of public instruction~~ Report of expenses.

1. ~~The individual employed as a chief administrator for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of a joint powers agreement and any requirements under section 15.1-07-27 shall executive director of an educational association governed by a joint powers agreement which the superintendent of public instruction has verified as meeting the requirements of section 15.1-07-28 shall annually submit to the superintendent of public instruction, at the time and in the manner designated by the superintendent, receipts for expenses incurred during a school year in delivering services and programs under section 15.1-07-27.~~
2. ~~The superintendent of public instruction, upon verifying the receipts, shall reimburse the chief administrator of the joint powers agreement for any expenses incurred in delivering services and programs under the auspices of the joint powers agreement as provided in section 15.1-07-27. The reimbursement may not exceed the lesser of:~~
 - a. ~~The total expenses incurred in delivering services and programs under section 15.1-07-27; or~~
 - b. ~~Fifty thousand dollars.~~
3. ~~The chief administrator a report detailing all expenses incurred by the educational association and shall attribute the expenses on a per student basis by participating school district.~~
2. ~~The executive director shall deposit any moneys received under subsection 2 in the participating districts' by or on behalf of the association into the educational association's joint operating fund.~~
4. ~~The superintendent of public instruction may not provide any reimbursement to a chief administrator under this section unless the joint powers agreement under which the services and programs are delivered has been approved by the superintendent.~~

SECTION 21. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-28-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-28-03. State tuition fund - Apportionment - Payment. On or before the third Monday in each January, February, March, April, August, September, October, November, and December, the office of management and budget shall certify to the superintendent of public instruction the amount of the state tuition fund. The superintendent shall apportion the fund among the school districts of the state in proportion to the number of school-age children residing in each district, as shown by the latest enumeration provided for by law and pay the amount apportioned to each school district. The superintendent shall make the payments required by this section at the same time as the per student payments required under chapter 15.1-27.

SECTION 22. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-29-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-29-03. Education of students in other districts - Payment of tuition and transportation.

1. After taking into account the best interests of all affected parties, the board of a school district may elect to send its students to another school district. In this instance, the board ~~may~~ shall pay for the students' tuition for the students and transportation. The board may arrange, and when petitioned to do so by qualified electors of the district equal in number to at least a majority of those who voted in the most recent annual school district election shall arrange, with other boards to send students to the other districts and to pay for their tuition and transportation.
2. If a district does not provide educational services to an entire grade level, the students in that grade level may attend a public school of their choice outside their district of residence without going through the procedures outlined in section 15.1-29-05. The board of the students' school district of residence shall pay for the students' tuition to the admitting district and transportation. For purposes of determining whether educational services are provided to an entire grade level, districts cooperating with each other in the joint provision of educational services under a plan approved by the superintendent of public instruction are considered to be a single district.

SECTION 23. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-29-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-29-04. Payment of tuition and transportation by sending districts - Interest on late payments. ~~If a school board approves the payment of the board of a school district agrees to pay tuition for a student attending school in another district or if a district under this chapter, if it is required to make pay tuition payments under the provisions of this chapter, or if it is required to pay tuition and transportation under this chapter, the board of the sending district shall pay at least fifty percent of the annual tuition charge to the admitting district on or before December thirty-first and any remaining amount on or before May thirty-first. If payment is not received by the admitting district within thirty days after the date on which payment is due, simple interest at the rate of six percent per annum accrues to any amount due.~~

SECTION 24. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-29-12 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-29-12. Tuition payments - Determination.

1. Except as provided in section 15.1-29-13, a school district sending a student to another district for purposes of education shall pay the full cost of education incurred by the admitting district.
2.
 - a. The admitting district shall determine the cost of education per student for its kindergarten, elementary, and high school students on the basis of its average daily membership and those expenditures permitted in determining the cost of education per student in section 15.1-27-03.
 - b. To the cost of education per student, the admitting district shall add the latest available statewide average per student cost for extracurricular activities and the state average capital outlay per student. The state average capital outlay per student is determined by dividing the total of all school districts' annual expenditures for sinking and interest funds, tax receipts to the building funds, and general fund expenditures for capital outlay by the average daily membership of the state.
 - c. The admitting district shall subtract the following from the amount arrived at under subdivision b:
 - (1) The weighted per student payment received by the admitting district, less the average amount per North Dakota resident student enrolled in the school district realized from the deductions applied under section 15.1-27-06; and

- (2) Any credit for taxes paid to the admitting district by the student's parent.
- d. The amount remaining is the full cost of education incurred by the admitting district and the tuition amount payable for the individual student.
- ~~3. If the student's school district of residence and the student's parent are both paying tuition, the credit allowed under subdivision c of subsection 2 for taxes paid to the admitting district by the student's parent must be proportionately credited to the student's district of residence and the student's parent.~~
4. This chapter does not affect the right of a school board to charge and collect tuition from students who are not residents of this state, in accordance with section 15.1-29-02.

SECTION 25. TRANSPORTATION GRANTS - DISTRIBUTION.

1. During each year of the 2005-07 biennium, the superintendent of public instruction shall distribute from the grants - state school aid line item in House Bill No. 1013, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, fifty percent of \$33,500,000 as state transportation aid payments.
2.
 - a. During the first year of the biennium, the superintendent of public instruction shall calculate the payment to which each school district is entitled based on the state transportation formula as it existed on June 30, 2001, except that the superintendent shall provide reimbursement for in-city mileage at the rate of fifty cents for schoolbuses having a capacity of ten or more students and reimbursement for vehicles having a capacity of nine or fewer students and transporting students who live outside the incorporated limits of a city at the rate of forty cents per mile. The superintendent of public instruction shall use the latest available student enrollment count in each school district.
 - b. During the second year of the biennium, the superintendent of public instruction shall distribute to each school district the same amount that the district received under this section for transportation services provided during the first year of the biennium.
3. If insufficient moneys exist to fully meet the requirements of this section, the superintendent of public instruction shall prorate the payments according to the percentage of the total amount to which each school district is entitled.
4. Nothing in this section permits reimbursement for any costs incurred in providing transportation for student attendance at extracurricular activities or events.

SECTION 26. AMENDMENT. Section 37 of chapter 667 of the 2003 Session Laws is amended and reenacted as follows:

SECTION 37. CONTINGENT PAYMENTS - DISTRIBUTION. If any moneys appropriated for per student payments and transportation payments in the grants - state school aid line item in Senate Bill No. 2013 remain after payment of all statutory obligations for per student and transportation payments during the biennium beginning July 1, 2003, and ending June 30, 2005, the superintendent of public instruction shall distribute the remaining moneys as follows:

1. The superintendent of public instruction shall use the first \$119,190, or so much of that amount as may be necessary, for the purpose of reimbursing eligible school districts that received reduced amounts of state aid. For the purposes of this subsection, an eligible school district is one that received a reduction in state aid during the second year of the 2003-05 biennium because the district's general fund levy fell below one hundred forty mills as the result of a reorganization or

the dissolution of a contiguous district. The following affected districts listed are entitled to receive reimbursements:

<u>Velva 1</u>	<u>\$24,355</u>
<u>TGU 60</u>	<u>93,514</u>
<u>Lewis and Clark</u>	<u>1,321</u>

2. The superintendent of public instruction shall return the next \$759,000 to the state general fund.
3. The superintendent of public instruction shall use the ~~first~~ next \$250,000, or so much of that amount as ~~is~~ may be necessary, for the purpose of providing reimbursements to the chief administrators of joint powers agreements pursuant to section 19 of this Act.
- ~~2-~~ 4. The superintendent of public instruction shall use the next \$1,000,000, or so much of that amount as ~~is~~ may be necessary, for the purpose of providing reorganization bonuses, pursuant to section 15.1-12-11.1, to school districts having reorganizations effective after July 1, 2003, and before July 1, 2005. If insufficient moneys exist to fully meet the requirements of this subsection, the superintendent of public instruction shall prorate the payments according to that percentage of the amount available to which a school district is entitled.
- ~~3-~~ 5. The superintendent of public instruction shall use the remainder of the moneys to provide additional per student payments on a prorated basis, according to the average daily membership of each school district during the 2004-05 school year.

SECTION 27. CONTINGENCY - RETURN OF MONEYS TO THE GENERAL FUND. If any moneys appropriated for per student payments and transportation payments in the grants - state school aid line item in House Bill No. 1013, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, remain after payment of all statutory obligations for per student and transportation payments during the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007, and if section 26 of this Act does not become effective before July 1, 2005, the superintendent of public instruction shall return the first \$759,000 to the state general fund.

SECTION 28. CONTINGENCY. If any moneys appropriated for per student payments and transportation payments in the grants - state school aid line item in House Bill No. 1013, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, remain after payment of all statutory obligations for per student and transportation payments during the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007, and after the superintendent of public instruction has fulfilled any directives contained in section 27 of this Act, the superintendent shall distribute the remaining moneys as follows:

1. The superintendent of public instruction shall use the first \$450,000, or so much of that amount as may be necessary, to provide additional payments to school districts serving English language learners in accordance with section 15.1-27-12.
2. The superintendent of public instruction shall use the next \$1,000,000, or so much of that amount as may be necessary, for the purpose of providing additional per student payments to school districts participating in eligible educational associations in accordance with section 32 of this Act.
3. The superintendent of public instruction shall use the remainder of the moneys to provide additional per student payments on a prorated basis according to the latest available average daily membership of each school district.

SECTION 29. CONTINGENCY PAYMENTS - TEACHER COMPENSATION - ADDITIONAL PER STUDENT PAYMENTS. If any moneys appropriated by the legislative assembly to the grants - teacher compensation line item in House Bill No. 1013, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, remain after completion of all statutory obligations, the superintendent of public instruction shall use the remaining moneys to provide additional per student payments on a prorated basis, according to the latest available average daily membership of each school district.

SECTION 30. TEACHER COMPENSATION - USE OF NEW MONEYS.

1. During the 2005-07 biennium, the board of each school district shall use an amount equal to at least seventy percent of all new moneys received for per student payments under section 15.1-27-04 and tuition apportionment payments under section 15.1-28-03 for the purpose of increasing the compensation paid to teachers and for the purpose of providing compensation to teachers who begin employment with the district on or after July 1, 2005.
2. For purposes of this section, "new moneys" means any increase in the amount received by a district for per student payments under section 15.1-27-04 and tuition apportionment payments under section 15.1-28-03 between the 2003-05 biennium and the 2005-07 biennium.
3. For purposes of this section, school districts providing educational services under a cooperative agreement approved by the superintendent of public instruction are treated as a single district.
4.
 - a. The provisions of this section do not apply to a school district if the board of the school district, after a public hearing at which public testimony and documentary evidence are accepted, determines in its discretion and by an affirmative vote of two-thirds of its members that complying with the provisions of subsection 1 would place the school district in the position of having insufficient fiscal resources to meet its other obligations.
 - b. Within ten days of the vote required by subdivision a, the board shall notify the superintendent of public instruction of its action and shall file a report detailing the grounds for its determination and action.
 - c. The superintendent of public instruction shall report all notices received under this subsection to an interim committee designated by the legislative council.

SECTION 31. REPORT TO LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL - EDUCATIONAL ASSOCIATIONS GOVERNED BY JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS. At the conclusion of each school year during the 2005-07 biennium, the superintendent of public instruction shall compile a report covering the operations of each educational association governed by a joint powers agreement and verified by the superintendent of public instruction as meeting the requirements of section 15.1-07-28. The report must include the administrative functions and student services in which members of each educational association participated and the direct and indirect benefits of such participation. The report must specifically address whether school district participation resulted in expanded course offerings, improved state and national test results, administrative consolidations, instructional sharing, increased or improved professional development opportunities, and cost-savings to each school district. The superintendent of public instruction shall present the reports to an interim committee designated by the legislative council.

SECTION 32. APPROPRIATION - ELIGIBLE EDUCATIONAL ASSOCIATIONS.

1. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$1,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the superintendent of public instruction for the purpose of providing payments to school districts that are members of eligible educational associations, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007.
2.
 - a. During June 2006 the superintendent of public instruction shall distribute seventy-five percent of the money appropriated under subsection 1 to eligible school districts on a per student basis. The total amount to which a school district is entitled under this subdivision may not exceed the amount expended by the school district during the 2005-06 school year to participate in an eligible educational association.
 - b. During June 2007 the superintendent of public instruction shall distribute the remaining money appropriated under subsection 1 to eligible school districts on a per student basis. The total amount to

which a school district is entitled under this subdivision may not exceed the amount expended by the school district during the 2006-07 school year to participate in an eligible educational association.

3. For purposes of this section, an "eligible educational association" is one that is governed by a joint powers agreement that the superintendent of public instruction has verified as meeting the requirements of section 15.1-07-28.

SECTION 33. APPROPRIATION - REORGANIZATION BONUSES - CONTINGENCY. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$759,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the superintendent of public instruction for the purpose of providing a reorganization bonus to any school district having a reorganization effective on July 1, 2005, pursuant to section 15.1-12-11.1, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007. If any moneys remain after the superintendent of public instruction completes the payment of bonuses for any reorganization effective on July 1, 2005, the superintendent shall use the remaining moneys to provide additional per student payments on a prorated basis, according to the latest available average daily membership of each school district.

SECTION 34. APPROPRIATION - TRANSPORTATION EFFICIENCY TRAINING. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$30,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the superintendent of public instruction for the purpose of contracting to provide transportation efficiency training to school district personnel, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007.

SECTION 35. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the permanent oil tax trust fund, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$1,300,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the superintendent of public instruction for the purpose of providing additional per student payments, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007.

SECTION 36. REPEAL. Section 15.1-09-42 of the North Dakota Century Code is repealed.

SECTION 37. REPEAL. Section 15.1-12-11.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is repealed.

SECTION 38. REPEAL. Section 15.1-12-11.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is repealed.

SECTION 39. EFFECTIVE DATE. Sections 1, 17, and 36 of this Act become effective on July 1, 2006, and section 38 of this Act becomes effective on December 31, 2005.

SECTION 40. EMERGENCY. Section 26 of this Act is declared to be an emergency measure."

Renumber accordingly

Reengrossed HB 1154 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. R. KELSCH MOVED that the conference committee report on Reengrossed HB 1154 be adopted.

REQUEST

REP. MONSON REQUESTED a recorded roll call vote on the motion to adopt the conference committee report on Reengrossed HB 1154, which request was granted.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the motion to adopt the conference committee report on Reengrossed HB 1154, the roll was called and there were 29 YEAS, 62 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Boe; Boucher; Conrad; Delmore; Ekstrom; Froelich; Glassheim; Gulletson; Hanson; Hunsakor; Kaldor; Kelsh, S.; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Metcalf; Meyer, S.;

Mueller; Nelson; Nottestad; Onstad; Potter; Sandvig; Schmidt; Solberg; Thorpe; Wall; Williams

NAYS: Bellew; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehning; Brandenburg; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Damschen; DeKrey; Delzer; Devlin; Dietrich; Dosch; Drovdal; Froseth; Galvin; Haas; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Horter; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kempenich; Kingsbury; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Maragos; Martinson; Meier, L.; Monson; Nicholas; Norland; Owens; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Sitte; Skarphol; Svedjan; Thoreson; Timm; Uglem; Vigasaa; Wald; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Wrangham; Speaker Klein

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Grande; Kerzman; Zaiser

The conference committee report on Reengrossed HB 1154 was rejected.

MOTION

REP. MONSON MOVED that the House stand in recess until 2:30 p.m., which motion prevailed.

THE HOUSE RECONVENED pursuant to recess taken, with Speaker Klein presiding.

CONSIDERATION OF MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

REP. BERG MOVED that the House do concur in the Senate amendments to HB 1050 as printed on HJ pages 1718-1719, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

HB 1050, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order of business.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1050: A BILL for an Act to provide a statement of legislative intent regarding state employee compensation adjustments; and to provide an appropriation for additional state employee compensation.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 90 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Bellew; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Conrad; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; Devlin; Dietrich; Dosch; Drovdal; Ekstrom; Froelich; Froseth; Galvin; Glassheim; Gullson; Haas; Hanson; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Horter; Hunskor; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kingsbury; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Maragos; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Monson; Mueller; Nelson; Nicholas; Nottestad; Onstad; Owens; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Sandvig; Schmidt; Sitte; Skarphol; Solberg; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Timm; Uglem; Vigasaa; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Wrangham; Zaiser; Speaker Klein

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Brandenburg; Grande; Kerzman; Norland

Engrossed HB 1050 passed and the title was agreed to.

MOTION

REP. MONSON MOVED that the House stand in recess until 5:30 p.m., which motion prevailed.

THE HOUSE RECONVENED pursuant to recess taken, with Speaker Klein presiding.

MOTION

REP. BERG MOVED that the House reconvene the conference committee on SB 2023, which motion prevailed.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

SB 2023, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Kringstad, Grindberg, Krauter and Reps. Carlson, Skarphol, Glassheim) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments on SJ pages 1154-1158, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2023 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1154-1158 of the Senate Journal and pages 1363-1366 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2023 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 4, after "projects" insert "; to provide a statement of legislative intent" and after "study" insert "; to provide an appropriation; to amend and reenact section 48-01.1-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the use of a construction manager"

Page 1, line 20, replace "3,500,000" with "3,632,691"

Page 1, line 21, replace "3,300,000" with "3,500,000"

Page 2, line 7, replace "350,000" with "270,000"

Page 2, line 13, replace "28,595,557" with "28,848,248"

Page 2, after line 19, insert:

"The central grasslands research extension center may obtain and utilize federal and other funds to assist in the construction of an office addition at the central grasslands research extension center. There is appropriated to the central grasslands research extension center the sum of \$80,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, from any federal acts, private grants, gifts and donations, or other funds that may become available for this project for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2007."

Page 3, line 11, replace "35,895,557" with "36,228,248"

Page 4, after line 2, insert:

"SECTION 4. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - OLD MAIN RENOVATION. It is the intent of the fifty-ninth legislative assembly that no state funding be used for any renovation projects of old main at Minot state university - Bottineau."

Page 4, line 4, remove "- HERITAGE CENTER"

Page 4, line 7, remove "This study must include the long-term needs of the North Dakota heritage center."

Page 4, after line 9, insert:

"SECTION 6. APPROPRIATION - HERITAGE CENTER STUDY. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$150,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the office of management and budget for the purpose of conducting a study regarding an expanded heritage center, including archive storage, exhibit area, and all other such spaces necessary to complete the facility as outlined in the North Dakota state capitol complex master plan dated December 14, 2000. The study also must examine an alternate location for a comparable replacement facility on the capitol grounds taking into account the cost to retrofit the existing heritage center and long-range plans for the capitol grounds. The office of management and budget shall present the results of the study to the sixtieth legislative assembly.

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 48-01.1-09 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

48-01.1-09. Use of construction manager. If a governing body uses a construction manager on a public improvement, the construction manager must be a licensed contractor. The architect awarded the design contract and the construction manager awarded the construction management contract for a public improvement shall carry out their contractual duties as agents to the public improvement entity. The architect and construction manager may not construct any portion of the public improvement and may not contract with any contractor or subcontractor to construct any portion of the work. The construction manager awarded the contract for ~~construction of~~ a public improvement shall bond the entire cost of the project through a single bond; or through bonds provided by all bid packages and the construction manager's bond for the full amount of the construction manager's services. If the total of the bonds is less than the total project bid, the construction manager shall bond the difference between the total of the bonds and the total project bid."

Renumber accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:**Senate Bill No. 2023 - Summary of Conference Committee Action**

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	SENATE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	HOUSE VERSION	COMPARISON TO HOUSE
Office of Management and Budget						
Total all funds	\$3,155,000	\$3,155,000	\$150,000	\$3,305,000	\$3,305,000	\$0
Less estimated income	<u>3,155,000</u>	<u>3,155,000</u>		<u>3,155,000</u>	<u>3,155,000</u>	
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$150,000	\$150,000	\$150,000	\$0
Attorney General						
Total all funds	\$3,632,691	\$3,500,000	\$132,691	\$3,632,691	\$3,632,691	\$0
Less estimated income	<u>3,632,691</u>	<u>3,500,000</u>	<u>132,691</u>	<u>3,632,691</u>	<u>3,632,691</u>	
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
University of North Dakota						
Total all funds	\$2,331,554	\$2,331,554	\$0	\$2,331,554	\$2,331,554	\$0
Less estimated income	<u>2,331,554</u>	<u>2,331,554</u>		<u>2,331,554</u>	<u>2,331,554</u>	
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
North Dakota State University						
Total all funds	\$3,500,000	\$3,300,000	\$200,000	\$3,500,000	\$3,500,000	\$0
Less estimated income	<u>3,500,000</u>	<u>3,300,000</u>	<u>200,000</u>	<u>3,500,000</u>	<u>3,500,000</u>	
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
State College of Science						
Total all funds	\$736,000	\$736,000	\$0	\$736,000	\$736,000	\$0
Less estimated income	<u>736,000</u>	<u>736,000</u>		<u>736,000</u>	<u>736,000</u>	
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
Dickinson State University						
Total all funds	\$4,100,557	\$4,100,557	\$0	\$4,100,557	\$4,100,557	\$0
Less estimated income	<u>4,100,557</u>	<u>4,100,557</u>		<u>4,100,557</u>	<u>4,100,557</u>	
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
Minot State University - Bottineau						
Total all funds	\$0	\$2,500,000	\$0	\$2,500,000	\$2,500,000	\$0
Less estimated income		<u>2,500,000</u>		<u>2,500,000</u>	<u>2,500,000</u>	
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
Department of Human Services						
Total all funds	\$455,000	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
Less estimated income	<u>455,000</u>					
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation						
Total all funds	\$3,586,510	\$1,564,000	\$0	\$1,564,000	\$1,564,000	\$0
Less estimated income	<u>3,586,510</u>	<u>1,564,000</u>		<u>1,564,000</u>	<u>1,564,000</u>	
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
Branch Research Centers						
Total all funds	\$1,320,000	\$2,040,000	\$0	\$2,040,000	\$1,690,000	\$350,000
Less estimated income	<u>1,320,000</u>	<u>2,040,000</u>		<u>2,040,000</u>	<u>1,690,000</u>	<u>350,000</u>
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
Main Research Station						
Total all funds	\$4,500,000	\$7,000,000	\$0	\$7,000,000	\$7,000,000	\$0
Less estimated income	<u>4,500,000</u>	<u>7,000,000</u>		<u>7,000,000</u>	<u>7,000,000</u>	
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
State Historical Society						
Total all funds	\$1,600,000	\$7,300,000	\$0	\$7,300,000	\$1,600,000	\$5,700,000
Less estimated income	<u>1,600,000</u>	<u>7,300,000</u>		<u>7,300,000</u>	<u>1,600,000</u>	<u>5,700,000</u>
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
Parks and Recreation Department						
Total all funds	\$700,000	\$700,000	\$0	\$700,000	\$700,000	\$0
Less estimated income	<u>700,000</u>	<u>700,000</u>		<u>700,000</u>	<u>700,000</u>	
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
Bill Total						
Total all funds	\$29,617,312	\$38,227,111	\$482,691	\$38,709,802	\$32,659,802	\$6,050,000
Less estimated income	<u>29,617,312</u>	<u>38,227,111</u>	<u>332,691</u>	<u>38,559,802</u>	<u>32,509,802</u>	<u>6,050,000</u>
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$150,000	\$150,000	\$150,000	\$0

Senate Bill No. 2023 - Office of Management and Budget - Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	SENATE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	HOUSE VERSION	COMPARISON TO HOUSE
Operating expenses						
Capital assets	\$3,155,000	\$3,155,000	\$150,000	\$150,000	\$150,000	
Total all funds	\$3,155,000	\$3,155,000	\$150,000	\$3,305,000	\$3,305,000	\$0
Less estimated income	<u>3,155,000</u>	<u>3,155,000</u>		<u>3,155,000</u>	<u>3,155,000</u>	
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$150,000	\$150,000	\$150,000	\$0

FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
-----	------	------	------	------	------	------

Dept. 110 - Office of Management and Budget - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

	PROVIDES FUNDING FOR A STUDY OF EXPANDING THE HERITAGE CENTER ¹	TOTAL CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES
Operating expenses	\$150,000	\$150,000
Capital assets		
Total all funds	\$150,000	\$150,000
Less estimated income		
General fund	\$150,000	\$150,000
FTE	0.00	0.00

¹ This amendment provides a \$150,000 general fund appropriation to the Office of Management and Budget for the purpose of conducting a study regarding an expansion of the Heritage Center, the same as the House version.

Senate Bill No. 2023 - Attorney General - Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	SENATE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	HOUSE VERSION	COMPARISON TO HOUSE
Capital assets	<u>\$3,632,691</u>	<u>\$3,500,000</u>	<u>\$132,691</u>	<u>\$3,632,691</u>	<u>\$3,632,691</u>	
Total all funds	\$3,632,691	\$3,500,000	\$132,691	\$3,632,691	\$3,632,691	\$0
Less estimated income	<u>3,632,691</u>	<u>3,500,000</u>	<u>132,691</u>	<u>3,632,691</u>	<u>3,632,691</u>	
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

Dept. 125 - Attorney General - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

	RESTORES FUNDING FOR CRIME LAB ADDITION AND RENOVATION ¹	TOTAL CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES
Capital assets	<u>\$132,691</u>	<u>\$132,691</u>
Total all funds	\$132,691	\$132,691
Less estimated income	<u>132,691</u>	<u>132,691</u>
General fund	\$0	\$0
FTE	0.00	0.00

¹ This amendment fully restores funding for the crime lab addition and renovation to \$3,632,691, the same as the House version.

Senate Bill No. 2023 - University of North Dakota - Conference Committee Action

The conference committee did not change the House or Senate version for the University of North Dakota.

Senate Bill No. 2023 - North Dakota State University - Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	SENATE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	HOUSE VERSION	COMPARISON TO HOUSE
Capital assets	<u>\$3,500,000</u>	<u>\$3,300,000</u>	<u>\$200,000</u>	<u>\$3,500,000</u>	<u>\$3,500,000</u>	
Total all funds	\$3,500,000	\$3,300,000	\$200,000	\$3,500,000	\$3,500,000	\$0
Less estimated income	<u>3,500,000</u>	<u>3,300,000</u>	<u>200,000</u>	<u>3,500,000</u>	<u>3,500,000</u>	
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

Dept. 235 - North Dakota State University - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

RESTORES
FUNDING FOR

	HAZARDOUS MATERIAL HANDLING AND STORAGE FACILITY ¹	TOTAL CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES
Capital assets	<u>\$200,000</u>	<u>\$200,000</u>
Total all funds	\$200,000	\$200,000
Less estimated income	<u>200,000</u>	<u>200,000</u>
General fund	\$0	\$0
FTE	0.00	0.00

¹ This amendment fully restores funding for the hazardous material handling and storage facility to \$3,500,000, the same as the House version.

Senate Bill No. 2023 - State College of Science - Conference Committee Action

The conference committee did not change the House or Senate version for the State College of Science.

Senate Bill No. 2023 - Dickinson State University - Conference Committee Action

The conference committee did not change the House or Senate version for Dickinson State University.

Senate Bill No. 2023 - Minot State University - Bottineau - Conference Committee Action

The conference committee did not change the House or Senate version for Minot State University - Bottineau Thatcher Hall addition but added a section of legislative intent regarding the renovation of Old Main at Minot State University - Bottineau.

Senate Bill No. 2023 - Department of Human Services - Conference Committee Action

The conference committee did not change the House or Senate version for the Department of Human Services.

Senate Bill No. 2023 - Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation - Conference Committee Action

The conference committee did not change the House or Senate version for the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation.

Senate Bill No. 2023 - Branch Research Centers - Conference Committee Action

The conference committee provided a total of \$350,000 to the Central Grasslands Research Extension Center for an office addition, with \$270,000 from bond proceeds and \$80,000 from federal and other funds. The Senate version provided \$350,000 for the office addition, all from bond proceeds, and the House version had removed funding for this project.

Senate Bill No. 2023 - Main Research Station - Conference Committee Action

The conference committee did not change the House or Senate version for the Main Research Station.

Senate Bill No. 2023 - State Historical Society - Conference Committee Action

The conference committee provided total funding of \$5,700,000 for the Historical Society and Heritage Center research collections expansion project, consisting of \$5,500,000 of bond proceeds and \$200,000 of federal and other funds, the same as the Senate version. The House had removed funding for this project.

Senate Bill No. 2023 - Parks and Recreation Department - Conference Committee Action

The conference committee did not change the House or Senate version for the Parks and Recreation Department.

Senate Bill No. 2023 - Other Changes - Conference Committee Action

This amendment also adds a section to amend Section 48-01.1-09 relating to the use of a construction manager, the same as the House version.

Engrossed SB 2023 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. CARLSON MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2023 be adopted.

REQUEST

REP. SKARPHOL REQUESTED a recorded roll call vote on the motion to adopt the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2023, which request was granted.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the motion to adopt the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2023, the roll was called and there were 45 YEAS, 44 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Boe; Boucher; Carlisle; Charging; Conrad; Delmore; Dosch; Ekstrom; Froelich; Glassheim; Gulleson; Hanson; Hawken; Herbel; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsh, S.; Kingsbury; Klemin; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Maragos; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Mueller; Nelson; Nottestad; Onstad; Owens; Porter; Potter; Sandvig; Schmidt; Solberg; Thorpe; Weiler; Williams; Zaiser

NAYS: Bellew; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehning; Brusegaard; Carlson; Clark; DeKrey; Delzer; Devlin; Dietrich; Drovdal; Froseth; Galvin; Haas; Headland; Horter; Iverson; Kasper; Kelsch, R.; Kempenich; Koppelman; Kreidt; Monson; Nicholas; Pietsch; Pollert; Price; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Sitte; Skarphol; Svedjan; Thoreson; Timm; Uglem; Vigesaa; Wald; Wall; Weisz; Wieland; Wrangham; Speaker Klein

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Brandenburg; Damschen; Grande; Kerzman; Norland

The conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2023 was adopted.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2023: A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for capital projects of various state departments; to provide an appropriation for state facility energy improvement capital projects of various state departments and institutions; to authorize the industrial commission to issue and sell evidences of indebtedness for capital projects; to provide a statement of legislative intent; to provide for a legislative council study; to provide an appropriation; to amend and reenact section 48-01.1-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the use of a construction manager; and to declare an emergency.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 56 YEAS, 33 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Boe; Boucher; Carlisle; Charging; Conrad; DeKrey; Delmore; Dosch; Ekstrom; Froelich; Froseth; Glassheim; Gulleson; Haas; Hanson; Hawken; Herbel; Horter; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsh, S.; Kingsbury; Klemin; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Maragos; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Mueller; Nelson; Nicholas; Nottestad; Onstad; Owens; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Sandvig; Schmidt; Sitte; Solberg; Thorpe; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Williams; Zaiser; Speaker Klein

NAYS: Bellew; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehning; Brusegaard; Carlson; Clark; Delzer; Devlin; Dietrich; Drovdal; Galvin; Headland; Iverson; Kasper; Kelsch, R.; Kempenich; Koppelman; Kreidt; Monson; Price; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Skarphol; Svedjan; Thoreson; Timm; Uglem; Vigesaa; Weisz; Wieland; Wrangham

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Brandenburg; Damschen; Grande; Kerzman; Norland

Engrossed SB 2023 passed, the title was agreed to, but the emergency clause lost.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

HB 1154, as reengrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Freborg, Flakoll, Taylor and Reps. R. Kelsch, Haas, Mueller) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the

Senate amendments on HJ pages 1507-1523, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1154 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1507-1523 of the House Journal and pages 1000-1016 of the Senate Journal and that Reengrossed House Bill No. 1154 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 15.1-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to educational association board reimbursement; to amend and reenact sections 15.1-06-04, 15.1-06-06, 15.1-07-28, 15.1-09-01, 15.1-12-26, 15.1-12-27, 15.1-12-29, 15.1-18-07, 15.1-22-01, 15.1-27-04, 15.1-27-05, 15.1-27-06, 15.1-27-07, 15.1-27-11, 15.1-27-15, 15.1-27-35, 15.1-27-37, 15.1-27-39, 15.1-27-40, 15.1-28-03, 15.1-29-03, 15.1-29-04, and 15.1-29-12 of the North Dakota Century Code and section 37 of chapter 667 of the 2003 Session Laws, relating to school calendars, school boards, teacher qualifications, school district dissolutions, the school district equalization factor, weighting factors, supplemental payments, isolated schools, and tuition payments; to repeal sections 15.1-09-42, 15.1-12-11.1, and 15.1-12-11.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to instructional conferences and reorganization bonus payments; to provide for transportation grants; to provide for contingent payments; to provide for teacher compensation; to provide for a report to the legislative council; to provide an appropriation; to provide an effective date; and to declare an emergency.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-06-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-06-04. School calendar - Length.

1. During each school year, a school district shall provide for a school calendar of at least one hundred eighty days, apportioned as follows:
 - a. One hundred seventy-three full days of instruction;
 - b. Three holidays listed in subdivisions b through j of subsection 1 of section 15.1-06-02 and selected by the school board in consultation with district teachers;
 - c. ~~Two days for the attendance of teachers at the North Dakota education association instructional conference; and~~
 - d. Up to two full days during which parent-teacher conferences are held or which are deemed by the school board to be compensatory time for parent-teacher conferences held outside regular school hours; and
 - e. Two days for professional development activities.
 2.
 - a. In meeting the requirements for two days of professional development activities under subsection 1, a school district may require that its teachers attend the North Dakota education association instructional conference and may pay teachers for attending the conference, provided attendance is verified.
 - b. In meeting the requirements for two days of professional development activities under subsection 1, a school district may consider attendance at the North Dakota education association instructional conference to be optional, elect not to pay teachers for attending the instructional conference, and instead direct any resulting savings toward providing alternate professional development opportunities.
 3. A school district may not require the attendance of teachers in school or at any school-sponsored, school-directed, school sanctioned, or school related activities and may not schedule classroom instruction time nor alternate professional development activities on any day that conflicts with the North Dakota education association instructional conference.
- 2- 4. A full day of instruction consists of:

- a. At least five and one-half hours for elementary students, during which time the students are required to be in attendance for the purpose of receiving curricular instruction; and
 - b. At least six hours for high school students, during which time the students are required to be in attendance for the purpose of receiving curricular instruction.
3. 5. If a school's calendar provides for an extension of each schoolday beyond the statutorily required minimum number of hours, and if the extensions when aggregated over an entire school year amount to more than eighty-four hours of additional classroom instruction during the school year, the school is exempt from having to make up six hours of instruction time lost as a result of weather-related closure. In order to make up lost classroom instruction time beyond the six hours, the school must extend its normal school calendar day by at least thirty minutes.
4. 6. A school that does not qualify under the provisions of subsection 3 must extend its normal schoolday by at least thirty minutes to make up classroom instruction time lost as a result of weather-related closure.
5. 7. If because of weather a school must dismiss before completing a full day of instruction, the school is responsible for making up only those hours and portions of an hour between the time of early dismissal and the conclusion of a full day of classroom instruction.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-06-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-06-06. Approval of public and nonpublic schools. Each public and nonpublic school in this state offering elementary or secondary education to students must be approved by the superintendent of public instruction. Except as otherwise provided by law, the superintendent may not approve a school unless:

- 1. Each classroom teacher ~~holds a valid teaching certificate issued~~ is licensed to teach by the education standards and practices board or approved to teach by the education standards and practices board;
- 2. Each classroom teacher is teaching only in those course areas or fields for which the teacher is licensed or for which the teacher has received an exception under section 2 of House Bill No. 1076, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly;
- 3. The students are offered all subjects required by law; and
- 3. 4. The school is in compliance with all local and state health, fire, and safety laws.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-07-28 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-07-28. Educational association - Joint powers agreement - ~~Approval~~ Review by superintendent of public instruction - Criteria. ~~Before school districts participating in an educational association governed by a joint powers agreement under chapter 54-40.3 wish to agree to an agreement may receive reimbursement for expenses any moneys, as provided in section 15.1-27-40, the school districts must request that the superintendent of public instruction approve their shall review the joint powers agreement. In order for the superintendent of public instruction to approve a joint powers agreement, the superintendent shall determine and annually and verify that:~~

- 1. a. The participating school districts ~~are contiguous; and~~
- b. ~~(1) The participating in the agreement have:~~
- a. A combined total land mass of the participating school districts exceeds four at least five thousandeight hundred square miles [4035995 1502193 hectares];
- (2) The

- b. ~~A combined total land mass of the participating school districts exceeds two at least four thousand five hundred square miles [647497 1165494 hectares] and the participating school districts number at least six twelve; or~~

~~(3) The~~

- c. ~~A combined total land mass of the participating school districts exceeds two at least four thousand five hundred square miles [1035995 hectares] and the total number of have at least three thousand students in average daily membership in the participating school districts exceeds two thousand five hundred.~~

2. ~~The joint powers agreement provides that a school district contiguous to any school district already participating in the joint powers agreement may become a participant in the agreement at any time.~~

3. ~~The joint powers agreement requires that the participating school districts agree to maintain a joint operating fund, agree to share administrative functions, or agree to implement various common requirements; provided that:~~

- a. ~~If the participating school districts agree to establish a joint operating fund, the joint powers agreement must require that during the first school year following approval, the participating school districts shall establish a joint operating fund equal to at least two percent of the participating districts' total expenditures for the school year ending on the June thirtieth preceding the date of approval; during the second school year following approval, the participating school districts shall establish a joint operating fund equal to at least four percent of the participating districts' total expenditures for the school year ending on the June thirtieth preceding the date of approval; and during the fifth school year following approval, the participating school districts shall establish a joint operating fund equal to at least six percent of the participating districts' total expenditures for the school year ending on the June thirtieth preceding the date of approval;~~

- b. ~~If the participating school districts agree to share administrative functions, the joint powers agreement must require that during the first school year following approval, all of the participating districts shall share in the administration of at least three services; during the third school year following approval, all of the participating districts shall share in the administration of at least five services; and during the fifth school year following approval, all of the participating districts shall share in the administration of at least seven services; and that the list from which the participating districts must select the services to be shared consists of:~~

~~(1) Federal title program management;~~

~~(2) Staff development;~~

~~(3) Special education delivery;~~

~~(4) Curriculum development or delivery;~~

~~(5) Career and technical education delivery;~~

~~(6) Student instructional support;~~

~~(7) Media and technology;~~

~~(8) Business management;~~

~~(9) Distance learning;~~

~~(10) Student counseling;~~

~~(11) Food and nutrition;~~

- (12) ~~Facility safety and health;~~
 - (13) ~~School accreditation and improvement; and~~
 - (14) ~~Transportation; and~~
- e. ~~If the participating school districts agree to implement various common requirements, the joint powers agreement must require that during the first school year following approval, all of the participating districts shall implement at least three requirements; during the third school year following approval, all of the participating districts shall implement at least six requirements; and during the fifth school year following approval, all of the participating districts shall implement at least eight requirements; and that the list from which the participating districts must select the requirements to be implemented consists of:~~
- (1) ~~A common school calendar;~~
 - (2) ~~A common class schedule;~~
 - (3) ~~A common intranet communication system;~~
 - (4) ~~A common class registration process for grades seven through twelve;~~
 - (5) ~~A common curriculum for each grade level from kindergarten through six;~~
 - (6) ~~A common student data system;~~
 - (7) ~~A common school improvement and staff development process;~~
 - (8) ~~Common services, as set forth in a five-year plan;~~
 - (9) ~~A school facilities plan; and~~
 - (10) ~~Joint funding of dual credit and advance placement courses; or~~
- d. A combined total land mass of at least one thousand five hundred square miles [388498 hectares] and have at least seven thousand five hundred students in average daily membership.
2. The school districts participating in the agreement are contiguous to each other or, if the districts are not contiguous to each other, the superintendent of public instruction shall verify that the participating districts can provide sound educational opportunities to their students in a fiscally responsible manner without injuring other school districts or educational associations governed by joint powers agreements and without negatively impacting the ability of other school districts or educational associations governed by joint powers agreements from providing sound educational opportunities to their students in a fiscally responsible manner. A decision by the superintendent of public instruction under this subsection may be appealed to the state board of public school education. A decision by the state board is final.
3. The joint powers agreement requires that the participating school districts maintain a joint operating fund and share various administrative functions and student services in accordance with subsection 4.
4. a. During the first two school years in which an educational association governed by a joint powers agreement is operational, each of the participating school districts shall share in at least two administrative functions and two student services, selected by the district.
- b. During the third and fourth school years in which an educational association governed by a joint powers agreement is operational, each of the participating school districts shall share in at least three administrative functions and three student services, selected by the district.

- c. During the fifth school year in which an educational association governed by a joint powers agreement is operational, and each year thereafter, each participating school district shall share at least five administrative functions and five student services, selected by the district.
- d. For purposes of this subsection:
 - (1) "Administrative functions" means:
 - (a) Business management;
 - (b) Career and technical education services management;
 - (c) Curriculum mapping or development;
 - (d) Data analysis;
 - (e) Federal program support;
 - (f) Federal title program management;
 - (g) Grant writing;
 - (h) School improvement;
 - (i) School safety and environment management;
 - (j) Special education services management;
 - (k) Staff development;
 - (l) Staff retention and recruitment;
 - (m) Staff sharing;
 - (n) Technology support; and
 - (o) Any other functions approved by the superintendent of public instruction.
 - (2) Student services means:
 - (a) Advanced placement classes;
 - (b) Alternative high schools or alternative high school programs;
 - (c) Career and technical education classes;
 - (d) Counseling services;
 - (e) Common elementary curricula;
 - (f) Distance learning classes;
 - (g) Dual credit classes;
 - (h) Foreign language classes;
 - (i) Library and media services;
 - (j) Summer programs;
 - (k) Supplemental instruction programs; and
 - (l) Any other services approved by the superintendent of public instruction.

- e. For purposes of this subsection, if an educational association governed by a joint powers agreement became operational before July 1, 2005, the 2005-06 school year must be considered the association's first year of operation.
- 5. The joint powers agreement provides:
 - a. Criteria for the future participation of school districts that were not parties to the original joint powers agreement;
 - b. An application process by which school districts that were not parties to the original joint powers agreement can become participating districts; and
 - c. A process by which school districts that were not parties to the original joint powers agreement and whose application to participate in the agreement was denied can appeal the decision to the superintendent of public instruction.
- 4. 6. The joint powers agreement provides for the employment and compensation of ~~a chief administrator and other~~ any staff necessary to carry out the provisions of the agreement and the requirements of this ~~section and section 15.1-27-37~~ Act.
- 7. The joint powers agreement provides for a governing board that consists only of individuals who serve on the boards of the participating school districts or designees of the respective school board members, provided however that a joint powers agreement may allow for the inclusion of ex officio nonvoting members on the educational association's board.
- 8. The joint powers agreement provides that the board of the educational association shall meet at least quarterly.
- 9. The joint powers agreement does not permit the educational association to compensate members of the educational association board for attending meetings of the board and that it does not permit the educational association to reimburse members of the board for any expenses incurred in attending meetings of the educational association board.

SECTION 4. A new section to chapter 15.1-07 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Compensation - Reimbursement - Extraordinary service. The board of an educational association established under section 15.1-07-28 may provide compensation and reimbursement to any board member who, at the direction of the board, performs extraordinary service on behalf of the board. For purposes of this section, "extraordinary service" means duties beyond those reasonably expected of members of the board and includes travel to and attendance at national meetings or conventions.

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-09-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-09-01. School board membership - Size and term adjustments.

- 1. The board of a school district ~~is~~ must be composed of five, seven, or nine members, ~~unless:~~
 - a. ~~The electors of the district increase the size of the board under this section;~~
 - b. ~~The size of the board was increased under a prior law; or~~
 - c. ~~The board, on July 1, 1971, was composed of more or fewer than five members, in which case the number of members must remain unchanged unless increased under this section.~~
- 2. The size of ~~any~~ a school district board may be increased to ~~either five, seven, or nine~~ members or decreased to seven or five members if a petition is signed by qualified electors of the school district equal in number

to at least one-third of those who voted at the most recent annual school district election and the change is approved by a majority of the qualified electors of the school district voting on the question at a special election called for that purpose.

3. If a majority of the qualified voters in a school district elect to increase the size of the school board, the additional members must be elected to the board at the next annual school district election in the same manner as other board members.
 - a. ~~If the total number of board members after approval of the increase is five, the terms of two members extend until the first annual election, the terms of two members extend until the second annual election, and the term of the remaining member extends until the third annual election.~~
 - b. ~~If the total number of board members after approval of the increase is seven, the terms of three members extend until the first annual election, the terms of two members extend until the second annual election, and the terms of the remaining two members extend until the third annual election.~~
 - c. ~~If the total number of board members after approval of the increase is nine, the terms of three members extend until the first annual election, the terms of three members extend until the second annual election, and the terms of the remaining three members extend until the third annual election.~~
 - d. ~~The length of the terms specified in this ~~section~~ subsection must be determined by lot.~~
 - e. ~~All board members shall serve for the terms specified in this ~~section~~ subsection and until their successors are elected and qualified.~~
 - f. ~~The length of any term in existence before the increase in board membership and held by a board member who is duly qualified may not be modified.~~
 - g. ~~Terms subsequent to the first term are for the normal period of three years and extend until a successor is elected and qualified.~~
4. If on July 1, 2005, the board of any school district contains only three members, the board must be increased to five members and the additional members must be elected at the next annual school district election, in the same manner as other board members. The initial term of one additional member must be one year and the initial term of the other additional member must be two years. The length of the terms specified in this subsection must be determined by lot. Thereafter, the size of the board may be increased in accordance with subsections 2 and 3.
5. The voters of a school district shall elect school board members at large. If, however, the district has been reorganized, board members may be elected at large, by geographical area, or at large by geographical area.
6. An election on a reorganization proposal takes the place of the petition and election requirements of this section. Approval of the reorganization proposal has the same effect as if the approval were by the election provided for in this section.
7. If the qualified electors of a district approve a reduction in the size of the school board, the excess number of members will serve out existing terms until the number approved by the electors has been reached.
8. If the board of a school district has elected to convert its members' terms to four years and has also increased the number of its board members, the board by lot or by some other random selection method shall provide for a combination of initial terms of office not to exceed four years for the new members. The combination must equalize to the greatest extent possible the number and length of terms for old board members and for new

members to be elected during the next three election years. The members' terms must be staggered and must expire in even-numbered years.

8. 9. Notwithstanding the provisions of this section, the board of education of the city of Fargo consists of nine members.

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-12-26 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-12-26. Dissolution of school district - Grounds.

1. A county committee shall initiate proceedings to dissolve a school district and attach the property to other operating high school districts when it is notified in writing by the county superintendent of schools whose jurisdiction includes the administrative headquarters of the district that:
 - a. The district is financially unable to effectively and efficiently educate its students;
 - b. The district has not operated a school as required by section 15.1-12-24; or
 - c. A school board has determined that dissolution is in the best interest of its students.
2. Except as provided in subsection 3, a county committee shall initiate proceedings under section 15.1-12-27 to attach real property to an operating high school district when it is notified in writing by the county superintendent that:
 - a. Real property has been severed from its school district by the expansion of a city and the severed portion is not contiguous with its district; or
 - b. There exists real property that does not belong to a school district.
3. If a school district reorganization plan which does not include all real property in a district is approved by the electors, the county committee shall, within forty-five days after the election, hold a hearing under section ~~45.4-12-29~~ 15.1-12-27 to attach the remaining property to one or more operating high school districts.
4. Receipt of notice by a county committee under this section:
 - a. Renders an annexation petition involving any real property in the district void, unless the annexation has already been approved by the state board; and
 - b. Prohibits the acceptance of a new annexation petition involving any real property in the district until all dissolution proceedings have been completed.
5. One or more annexation petitions may not be used to annex all of the real property in a school district to surrounding school districts.

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-12-27 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-12-27. Dissolution of school district - Notice - Hearing - Order of attachment.

1. The county superintendent shall schedule and give notice of a public hearing regarding the dissolution of the district and the subsequent attachment of the property to other high school districts. The county superintendent shall publish the notice in the official newspaper of each county that encompasses property in the dissolving district and in the official newspaper of each county that encompasses property in a high school district adjacent to the dissolving district, at least fourteen days before the date of the hearing. The county superintendent shall provide

notice of the public hearing to the business manager of each high school district adjacent to the dissolving district.

2. At the hearing, the board of the dissolving district may propose a particular manner of dissolution.
3. The county committee shall consider testimony and documentary evidence regarding:
 - a. The value and amount of property held by the dissolving school district;
 - b. The amount of all outstanding bonded and other indebtedness;
 - c. The distribution of property and assets among the high school districts to which the dissolved district is attached;
 - d. The taxable valuation of the dissolving district and adjacent high school districts and the taxable valuation of adjacent high school districts under the proposed manner of dissolution;
 - e. The size, geographical features, and boundaries of the dissolving district and of adjacent high school districts;
 - f. The number of students in the dissolving district and in adjacent high school districts;
 - g. The general population of the dissolving district and adjacent high school districts;
 - h. Each school in the dissolving district and in adjacent high school districts, including its name, location, condition, accessibility, and the grade levels it offers;
 - i. The location and condition of roads, highways, and natural barriers in the dissolving district and in adjacent high school districts;
 - j. Conditions affecting the welfare of students in the dissolving district and in adjacent high school districts;
 - k. The boundaries of other governmental entities;
 - l. The educational needs of communities in the dissolving district and in adjacent high school districts;
 - m. Potential savings in school district transportation and administrative services;
 - n. The anticipated future use of the dissolving districts' buildings, sites, and playfields;
 - o. The potential for a reduction in per student valuation disparities between the high school districts to which the dissolved district is attached;
 - p. The potential to equalize or increase the educational opportunities for students from the dissolving district and for students in adjacent high school districts; and
 - q. All other relevant factors.
4. After the hearing, the county committee shall make findings of fact. Subject to final approval by the state board, the county committee may order the district dissolved and its real property attached to one or more contiguous, operating high school districts.
5. Any property ordered attached under this section must have at least one minor residing within its boundaries.

6. The county superintendent shall forward all minutes, records, documentary evidence, and other information regarding the dissolution proceeding together with a copy of the county committee's order to the state board for final approval of the dissolution. The state board shall publish notice of its meeting at which it will consider the dissolution, in the official newspapers of the counties required for publication under subsection 1, at least fourteen days before the meeting.
7. The order of dissolution becomes effective July first following approval by the state board, unless the county committee provides for a different effective date.
8. If the boundaries of the dissolving school district cross county lines, the proceeding to dissolve the district must be conducted jointly by the county committees representing counties containing twenty-five percent or more of the dissolving district's taxable valuation. If, after the hearing, a majority of the county committees are unable to agree upon an order of dissolution and attachment, the county superintendent of the county in which the administrative headquarters of the dissolving school district is located shall notify the state board. The state board shall conduct a public hearing, as required in this section, and order the dissolution of the district and the attachment of its real property to adjacent high school districts in the manner it deems appropriate. The state board shall publish notice of the public hearing in the official newspapers of the counties required for publication under subsection 1, at least fourteen days before the date of the hearing.
9. If any portion of the order providing for the attachment of real property is suspended or voided, the order of dissolution is likewise suspended or voided.

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-12-29 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-12-29. Dissolution of school district - Unobligated cash balance - Tax credits or refunds.

1. ~~Any~~ After ten thousand dollars is set aside, as required by section 15.1-12-28, and after the required amount is deposited in the reimbursement account for job service North Dakota, as required by section 15.1-12-28.1, any remaining unobligated cash balance ~~in excess of ten thousand dollars~~, up to an amount equaling a dissolved school district's general fund expenditure for the last school year before the district's dissolution is a credit for real property owners within the boundaries of the dissolved school district, against taxes levied by the district ~~into~~ which their property is now situated. ~~The county auditor shall base the credit on the five-year average of the total mills levied for education by the dissolved district attached. If property from the dissolved district is attached to more than one school district, the percentage of the total credit that to which each eligible real property owners receive must be owner is entitled must equal the same percentage of the unobligated cash balance as the that the taxable valuation of the individual's real property bears to the total taxable valuation of the dissolved district's property at the time of the attachment order.~~
2. Upon approval of the board of county commissioners, any school district required to provide a tax credit under subsection 1 may provide a cash refund in lieu of the tax credit. At the request of the county auditor, the school district holding the unobligated cash balance available under subsection 1 shall pay to the county treasurer the amount to be paid to those who own real property within the dissolved district. The treasurer shall issue the refund to the owner of the property as shown on the county's assessment list at the time of payment. If there is a lien for unpaid taxes against the property, the treasurer shall first apply the property owner's tax credit toward any outstanding balance. Any amount remaining may then be paid to the property owner. The cash refunds must be calculated proportionately to the total taxable value of the dissolved district during the last year taxes were levied.

3. After the requirements of subsection 1 have been met, the county auditor shall distribute any remaining unobligated cash balance among the school districts to which the real property of the dissolved district was attached. The percentage of the remaining unobligated cash balance to which each school district is entitled equals that percentage of the dissolved district's total taxable valuation which was attached to the receiving school district.

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-18-07 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-18-07. (Effective after June 30, 2006) Elementary school teacher qualifications.

1. In order to teach any grade ~~from one through six~~ in an elementary school that offers grades one through six, or in order to teach any grade in an elementary school that offers grades one through eight, an individual must be ~~licensed~~:
 - a. Licensed to teach by the education standards and practices board or approved to teach by the education standards and practices board; and:
 - a- b. (1) Have a major in elementary education; or
 - b- (2) Have a major equivalency in elementary education.
2. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection 1, an individual may teach any grade from one through three in an elementary school provided the individual is ~~licensed~~:
 - a. Licensed to teach by the education standards and practices board or approved to teach by the education standards and practices board; and:
 - a- b. (1) Has a major in early childhood education; or
 - b- (2) Has a major equivalency in early childhood education.
3. ~~In order to teach any grade from one through eight in a self-contained classroom, an individual must be licensed to teach by the education standards and practices board and:~~
 - a- ~~Have a major in elementary education; or~~
 - b- ~~Have a major equivalency in elementary education.~~

SECTION 10. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-22-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-22-01. Kindergarten - Establishment by board -~~Petition for establishment~~ Request by parent - Levy.

1. Upon its own motion, the board of a school district may establish a free public kindergarten ~~for the instruction during a school year of resident children below school age.~~
2. If the board receives a ~~petition signed by qualified electors residing in the district equal in number to at least twenty percent of those who voted in the most recent annual school district election, the board must submit the question of establishing a kindergarten to the electorate at the next annual or special school district election. The margins of electoral approval provided in section 57-15-14 must be applied~~ written request to provide kindergarten from the parent of a student who will be enrolled in the kindergarten, the board shall either provide at least a half-day kindergarten program for the student or pay the tuition required for the student to attend at least a half-day kindergarten program in another school district.
3. The board of a school district that establishes a kindergarten under this section may levy a tax pursuant to subdivision p of subsection 1 of section 57-15-14.2.

SECTION 11. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-04. Per student payment. The per student payment to which each school district is entitled for the first year of the biennium is two thousand ~~five~~ seven hundred ~~ninety-five~~ dollars. The per student payment to which each school district is entitled for the second year of the biennium is two thousand ~~six~~ eight hundred ~~twenty-three~~ seventy-nine dollars. The per student amount is the basis for calculating state payments to school districts, as provided in sections 15.1-27-06 and 15.1-27-07.

SECTION 12. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-05 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-05. (Effective through June 30, 2008) School district equalization factor.

1. To determine the amount of payments due a school district, the superintendent of public instruction shall add the tuition apportionment payments, per student payments, special education aid, transportation aid, and teacher compensation payments for which a school district is eligible and from that total subtract the following:
 - a. The product of ~~thirty-six~~ thirty-eight mills times the taxable valuation of property in the district;
 - b. The amount by which the unobligated general fund balance of the district on the preceding June thirtieth is in excess of fifty percent of its actual expenditures, plus twenty thousand dollars; and
 - c. If the mills levied by the district for general fund purposes, plus the mills levied for high school transportation and high school tuition purposes are fewer than one hundred forty, the number of mills by which the district's levies are below one hundred forty multiplied by the taxable valuation of property in the district.
2. Beginning July 1, 2006, and each year thereafter, the number of mills used by the superintendent of public instruction in determining the product required by subdivision a of subsection 1 must be increased by ~~two~~ three over the number of mills used in determining the product required by that subdivision the previous year.

(Effective after June 30, 2008) School district equalization factor.

1. To determine the amount of payments due a school district, the superintendent of public instruction shall add the tuition apportionment payments, per student payments, special education aid, transportation aid, and teacher compensation payments for which a school district is eligible and from that total subtract the following:
 - a. The product of the number of mills prescribed in subsection 2 times the taxable valuation of property in the district;
 - b. The amount by which the unobligated general fund balance of the district on the preceding June thirtieth is in excess of forty-five percent of its actual expenditures, plus twenty thousand dollars; and
 - c. If the mills levied by the district for general fund purposes, plus the mills levied for high school transportation and high school tuition purposes are fewer than one hundred forty, the number of mills by which the district's levies are below one hundred forty multiplied by the taxable valuation of property in the district.
2. The number of mills used by the superintendent of public instruction in determining the product required by subdivision a of subsection 1 must be increased by ~~two~~ three over the number of mills used in determining the product required by that subdivision the previous year.

SECTION 13. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-06. Per student payments - Weighting factors - High school students. The superintendent of public instruction shall make payments each year, as provided for in this section, to each school district operating a high school and to each school district contracting to educate high school students in a federal school, subject to adjustment as provided in section 15.1-27-21.

1. Each district having under ~~seventy-five~~ one hundred twenty students in average daily membership in grades nine through twelve is entitled to receive the amount of money that results from multiplying the factor ~~1.625 adjusted by eighty-five percent of the difference between 1.625 and the~~ factor representing the five-year average cost of education per student for this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, by the number of students in grades nine through twelve who are registered in that district, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04. ~~Beginning July 1, 2004, the factor is that which represents the five-year average cost of education per student in this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction.~~
2. Each district having at least ~~seventy-five~~ one hundred twenty but fewer than ~~one three hundred fifty~~ students in average daily membership in grades nine through twelve is entitled to receive the amount of money that results from multiplying the factor ~~1.335 adjusted by eighty-five percent of the difference between 1.335 and the~~ factor representing the five-year average cost of education per student for this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, by the number of students in grades nine through twelve who are registered in that district, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04. ~~Beginning July 1, 2004, the factor is that which represents the five-year average cost of education per student in this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction.~~
3. Each district having at least ~~one three hundred fifty~~ but fewer than ~~five hundred fifty~~ students in average daily membership in grades nine through twelve is entitled to receive the amount of money that results from multiplying the factor ~~1.24 adjusted by eighty-five percent of the difference between 1.24 and the~~ factor representing the five-year average cost of education per student for this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, by the number of students in grades nine through twelve who are registered in that district, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04. ~~Beginning July 1, 2004, the factor is that which represents the five-year average cost of education per student in this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction.~~
4. ~~Each district having at least five hundred fifty students in average daily membership in grades nine through twelve is entitled to receive the amount of money that results from multiplying the factor 1.14 adjusted by eighty-five percent of the difference between 1.14 and the factor representing the five-year average cost of education per student for this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, by the number of students in grades nine through twelve who are registered in that district, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04. Beginning July 1, 2004, the factor is that which represents the five-year average cost of education per student in this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction.~~
5. 4. Each district having an approved alternative high school education program is entitled to receive the amount of money that results from multiplying the factor in:
 - a. Subsection 1 by the number of students registered in the alternative education program, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04, if fewer than ~~seventy-five~~ one hundred twenty students in average daily membership are enrolled in the alternative education program.
 - b. Subsection 2 by the number of students registered in the alternative education program, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04, if at least ~~seventy-five~~ one hundred twenty but

fewer than ~~one three hundred fifty~~ students in average daily membership are enrolled in the alternative education program.

- c. Subsection 3 by the number of students registered in the alternative education program, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04, if at least ~~one three hundred fifty but fewer than five hundred fifty~~ students in average daily membership are enrolled in the alternative education program.
 - d. ~~Subsection 4 by the number of students registered in the alternative education program, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04, if at least five hundred fifty students in average daily membership are enrolled in the alternative education program.~~
6. 5. In order to be eligible for enumeration under this section, a student:
- a. Must have completed the work of the eighth grade;
 - b. Must not have completed the work of the twelfth grade; and
 - c. Must be a resident of this state or a nonresident attending a school in this state under the auspices of a foreign student exchange program.
6. In calculating payments under this section and subsections 1 through 4 of section 15.1-27-07, the superintendent of public instruction shall use 1.0 as the factor that represents the lowest five-year average cost of education among all elementary and high school weighting categories other than kindergarten and shall use proportionately increased factors to represent the five-year average cost of education in all remaining weighting categories except kindergarten.

SECTION 14. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-07 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-07. Per student payments - Weighting factors - Elementary school students. The superintendent of public instruction shall make payments each year, as provided for in this section, to each school district operating an elementary school and to each school district contracting to educate elementary students in a federal school, subject to adjustment as provided in section 15.1-27-21.

- 1. ~~a. Each district having only a one-room rural school is entitled to receive the amount of money that results from multiplying the factor 1.28 adjusted by eighty five percent of the difference between 1.28 and the factor representing the five year average cost of education per student for this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, by the number of students in average daily membership in grades one through eight in that school, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04. Beginning July 1, 2004, the factor is that which represents the five year average cost of education per student in this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction. The payment level provided for in this subdivision is applicable only to the first sixteen students.~~
- b. ~~If the one-room rural school has more than sixteen students in average daily membership in grades one through eight, the district in which the school is located is entitled to receive ninety percent of the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04 for each additional student. The district is not entitled to any payment for more than twenty students in average daily membership.~~
- c. ~~If a one-room rural school is located in a district having another elementary school, the weighting factor for the students in grades one through six must be based on the average daily membership in the district in grades one through six, as provided in this section.~~
- d. ~~If a one-room rural school is located in a school district with another school that has students in grade seven or eight, the weighting factor for the students in grade seven or eight must be the same as that provided for in subsection 5.~~

2. 1. ~~Except as provided in subsection 1, each~~ Each school district having fewer than one hundred students in average daily membership in grades one through six is entitled to receive the amount of money that results from multiplying the factor ~~1.09 adjusted by eighty five percent of the difference between 1.09 and the factor~~ representing the five-year average cost of education per student for this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, by the number of students in average daily membership in grades one through six in the district, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04. ~~Beginning July 1, 2004, the factor is that which represents the five-year average cost of education per student in this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction. The payment provided for in this subsection is applicable only to the first twenty five students in average daily membership per classroom or per teacher.~~
3. 2. Each school district having at least one hundred students ~~but fewer than one thousand students~~ in average daily membership in grades one through six is entitled to receive the amount of money that results from multiplying the factor ~~.905 adjusted by eighty five percent of the difference between .905 and the factor~~ representing the five-year average cost of education per student for this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, by the number of students in average daily membership in grades one through six in the district, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04. ~~Beginning July 1, 2004, the factor is that which represents the five-year average cost of education per student in this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction. The payment provided for in this subsection is applicable only to the first thirty students in average daily membership per classroom or per teacher.~~
4. ~~Each school district having at least one thousand students in average daily membership in grades one through six is entitled to receive the amount of money that results from multiplying the factor .95 adjusted by eighty five percent of the difference between .95 and the factor representing the five-year average cost of education per student for this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, by the number of students in average daily membership in grades one through six in the district, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04. Beginning July 1, 2004, the factor is that which represents the five-year average cost of the education per student in this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction. The payment provided for in this subsection is applicable only to the first thirty students in average daily membership per classroom or per teacher.~~
5. 3. Each school district having students in grades seven and eight is entitled to receive the amount of money that results from multiplying the factor ~~4.04 adjusted by eighty five percent of the difference between 1.01 and the factor~~ representing the five-year average cost of education per student for this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, by the number of students in average daily membership in grades seven and eight in the district, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04. ~~Beginning July 1, 2004, the factor is that which represents the five-year average cost of education per student in this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction. The payment provided for in this subsection is applicable only to the first thirty students in average daily membership per classroom or per teacher. The payments provided for in this subsection are not available for students who attend a one-room rural school if that school is the only one in the district that offers educational services to students in grades seven and eight.~~
6. 4. Each school district having a special education program approved by the director of special education is entitled to receive, for each student who is enrolled in the program and who is at least three years of age but less than the compulsory age for school attendance, the amount of money that results from multiplying the factor ~~4.01 adjusted by eighty five percent of the difference between 1.01 and the factor~~ representing the five-year average cost of education per student for this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, by the number of special education students in average daily membership in the program who are at least three years of age but less than the compulsory age for school attendance, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04.

~~Beginning July 1, 2004, the factor is that which represents the five-year average cost of education per student in this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction.~~

- ~~7.~~ 5.
 - a. Each school district operating a kindergarten as provided for in section 15.1-22-02 is entitled to receive the amount of money that results from multiplying the factor ~~50~~ adjusted by eighty five percent of the difference between .50 and the factor representing the five-year average cost of education per student for this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, by the number of kindergarten students in average daily membership in the district, times the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04. ~~Beginning July 1, 2004, the factor is that which represents the five-year average cost of education per student in this category, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction.~~ The payment provided for in this subsection is applicable only to the first twenty-five students in average daily membership per classroom or per teacher.
 - b. In order to receive the full per student payment available under this section, a district must operate a kindergarten program that provides the equivalent of ninety full days of classroom instruction during a twelve-month period. A district is entitled to a prorated payment under this section if it operates a kindergarten program of shorter duration.
- ~~8.~~ 6. Each school district that educates students who are also enrolled in nonpublic schools is entitled to receive proportionate payments under this section.
- ~~9.~~ 7. Each school district is entitled to receive as much in total payments for elementary students as it would have received if it had the highest number of students in the next lower category.
- ~~10.~~ 8. A school district is not entitled to any payments provided for by this chapter unless each teacher employed by the district:
 - a. Holds a teaching license issued by the education standards and practices board; or
 - b. Has been approved to teach by the education standards and practices board.
9. In calculating payments under subsections 1 through 4 and under section 15.1-27-06, the superintendent of public instruction shall use 1.0 as the factor that represents the lowest five-year average cost of education among the elementary and high school weighting categories other than kindergarten and shall use proportionately increased factors to represent the five-year average cost of education in all remaining weighting categories except kindergarten.

SECTION 15. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-11 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-11. High school districts - Supplemental payments.

1. The superintendent of public instruction shall calculate the average valuation of property per student by dividing the number of students in average daily membership in grades one through twelve in a high school district into the sum of:
 - a. The district's latest available net assessed and equalized taxable valuation of property; plus
 - b. All tuition payments and county ~~and unrestricted federal~~ revenue received by the district, divided by the total of the district's general fund levy, high school transportation levy, and high school tuition levy.
2. ~~If the~~ The superintendent of public instruction shall verify that:
 - a. The quotient arrived at under subsection 1 is less than the latest available statewide average taxable valuation per student and if the;

- b. The district's educational expenditure per student is below the most recent available statewide average cost of education per student;
 - c. The district has a general fund levy of at least one hundred eighty mills; and
 - d. The district's unobligated general fund balance on the preceding June thirtieth is not in excess of thirty-five percent of its actual expenditures, plus twenty thousand dollars.
3. If the superintendent of public instruction determines that the district meets all the requirements of subsection 2, the superintendent ~~of public instruction~~ shall:
- a. Determine the difference between the latest available statewide average taxable valuation per student and the average taxable valuation per student in the high school district;
 - b. Multiply the result determined under subdivision a by the number of students in average daily membership in grades one through twelve in the high school district;
 - c. Multiply the result determined under subdivision b by the number of general fund mills levied by the district in excess of one hundred fifty, provided that any mills levied by the district which are in excess of two hundred ten may not be used in this calculation; and
 - d. Multiply the result determined under subdivision c by a factor calculated by the superintendent of public instruction to result in the expenditure, over the course of the biennium, of the full amount provided for the purpose of this section.
- e. 4. The result of the calculations under this section is the supplemental payment to which a high school district is entitled, in addition to any other amount provided under chapter 15.1-27.

SECTION 16. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-15 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-15. Per student payments - Isolated schools.

- 1. If an elementary school has fewer than fifty students and fifteen percent or more of its students would have to travel beyond a fifteen-mile [24.15-kilometer] radius from their residences in order to attend another school, the weighting factor provided under section 15.1-27-07 must be increased by ~~twenty~~ twenty-five percent ~~for the first fifteen students~~. If the school has fewer than fifteen students, the payment received must be for fifteen students.
- 2. If a high school has fewer than thirty-five students and fifteen percent or more of its students would have to travel beyond a twenty-mile [32.2-kilometer] radius from their residences in order to attend another school, the weighting factor provided under section 15.1-27-06 must be increased by ~~twenty~~ twenty-five percent ~~for the first twenty students~~. If the school has fewer than twenty students, the payment received must be for twenty students.

SECTION 17. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-35 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-35. Average daily membership - Calculation. Average daily membership is calculated by adding the total number of days that each student in a given classroom, school, or school district is in attendance during a school calendar and the total number of days that each student in a given classroom, school, or school district is absent during a school calendar, and then dividing the sum by one hundred eighty. For purposes of calculating average daily membership, all students are deemed to be in attendance on:

1. The three holidays listed in subdivisions b through j of subsection 1 of section 15.1-06-02 and selected by the school board in consultation with district teachers;
2. The two days set aside for ~~the attendance of teachers at the North Dakota education association instructional conference~~ professional development activities under section 15.1-06-04; and
3. The two full days, or portions thereof, during which parent-teacher conferences are held or which are deemed by the board of the district to be compensatory time for parent-teacher conferences held outside regular school hours.

SECTION 18. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-37 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-37. Compensation of teachers - Claim for reimbursement - Rules.

1. On or before October first of each year or within thirty days after the conclusion of the negotiation process provided for in chapter 15.1-16, the board of a school district may file a claim with the superintendent of public instruction for the reimbursement of moneys to be expended by the district during the school year to at least maintain the level of compensation provided to teachers employed by the district during the ~~2002-03~~ preceding school year.
2. The claim must include:
 - a. The number of full-time equivalent teachers employed by the district as of September fifteenth of the current school year;
 - b. The number of full-time equivalent teachers whose level of compensation will be at least equal to that provided during the ~~2002-03~~ preceding school year; and
 - c. The total amount of any compensation increases provided to full-time equivalent teachers over the level of compensation provided during the ~~2002-03~~ preceding school year.
3. ~~For the 2003-04 school year, the~~ The reimbursement provided for in this section may not exceed three thousand dollars multiplied by the number of full-time equivalent teachers employed by the district as of September ~~15, 2003.~~
 - ~~b. For the 2004-05 school year, the reimbursement provided for in this section may not exceed three thousand dollars multiplied by the number of full-time equivalent teachers employed by the district as of September 15, 2004.~~
 - ~~e. For the 2003-04 school year, the~~ fifteenth of the current school year.
 - b. The reimbursement under this section for each individual employed as of September 15, 2003 fifteenth of the current school year, as a full-time equivalent teacher for the first school year since becoming licensed to teach by the education standards and practices board or approved to teach by the education standards and practices board, may not exceed one thousand dollars.
 - ~~d. For the 2004-05 school year, the reimbursement under this section for each individual employed as of September 15, 2004, as a full-time equivalent teacher for the first school year since becoming licensed to teach by the education standards and practices board or approved to teach by the education standards and practices board, may not exceed one thousand dollars.~~
4. For purposes of this section, the claim of a district may include proportionate expenditures made by the district to compensate individuals employed as teachers by the special education unit or the area career and technology center to which the district belongs.

5. The superintendent of public instruction may adopt rules regarding claims for and the payment of reimbursements under this section.

SECTION 19. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-39 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-39. Annual salary - Minimum amount.

1. Beginning with the ~~2003-04~~ 2005-06 school year, the board of each school district shall provide to each full-time teacher, under contract for a period of nine months, a minimum salary level for the contract period equal to at least ~~twenty-one~~twenty-two thousand dollars.
2. Beginning with the ~~2004-05~~ 2006-07 school year, the board of each school district shall provide to each full-time teacher, under contract for a period of nine months, a minimum salary level for the contract period equal to at least ~~twenty-one~~twenty-two thousand five hundred dollars.

SECTION 20. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-40 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-40. Approved joint powers agreement - Reimbursement by superintendent of public instruction Report of expenses.

1. ~~The individual employed as a chief administrator for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of a joint powers agreement and any requirements under section 15.1-07-27 shall~~ executive director of an educational association governed by a joint powers agreement which the superintendent of public instruction has verified as meeting the requirements of section 15.1-07-28 shall annually submit to the superintendent of public instruction, at the time and in the manner designated by the superintendent, receipts for expenses incurred during a school year in delivering services and programs under section 15.1-07-27.
2. ~~The superintendent of public instruction, upon verifying the receipts, shall reimburse the chief administrator of the joint powers agreement for any expenses incurred in delivering services and programs under the auspices of the joint powers agreement as provided in section 15.1-07-27. The reimbursement may not exceed the lesser of:~~
 - a. ~~The total expenses incurred in delivering services and programs under section 15.1-07-27; or~~
 - b. ~~Fifty thousand dollars.~~
3. ~~The chief administrator~~ a report detailing all expenses incurred by the educational association and shall attribute the expenses on a per student basis by participating school district.
2. ~~The executive director shall deposit any moneys received under subsection 2 in the participating districts by or on behalf of the association into the educational association's joint operating fund.~~
4. ~~The superintendent of public instruction may not provide any reimbursement to a chief administrator under this section unless the joint powers agreement under which the services and programs are delivered has been approved by the superintendent.~~

SECTION 21. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-28-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-28-03. State tuition fund - Apportionment - Payment. On or before the third Monday in each January, February, March, April, August, September, October, November, and December, the office of management and budget shall certify to the superintendent of public instruction the amount of the state tuition fund. The superintendent shall apportion the fund among the school districts of the state in proportion to the number of school-age children residing in each district, as shown by the latest enumeration provided for by law and pay the amount apportioned to each school district. The superintendent shall make the payments required by this section at the same time as the per student payments required under chapter 15.1-27.

SECTION 22. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-29-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-29-03. Education of students in other districts - Payment of tuition and transportation.

1. After taking into account the best interests of all affected parties, the board of a school district may elect to send its students to another school district. In this instance, the board ~~may~~shall pay for the students' tuition for the students and transportation. The board may arrange, and when petitioned to do so by qualified electors of the district equal in number to at least a majority of those who voted in the most recent annual school district election shall arrange, with other boards to send students to the other districts and to pay for their tuition and transportation.
2. If a district does not provide educational services to an entire grade level, the students in that grade level may attend a public school of their choice outside their district of residence without going through the procedures outlined in section 15.1-29-05. The board of the students' school district of residence shall pay for the students' tuition to the admitting district and transportation. For purposes of determining whether educational services are provided to an entire grade level, districts cooperating with each other in the joint provision of educational services under a plan approved by the superintendent of public instruction are considered to be a single district.

SECTION 23. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-29-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-29-04. Payment of tuition and transportation by sending districts - Interest on late payments. ~~If a school board approves the payment of the board of a school district agrees to pay tuition for a student attending school in another district or if a district under this chapter, if it is required to make pay tuition payments under the provisions of this chapter, or if it is required to pay tuition and transportation under this chapter, the board of the sending district shall pay at least fifty percent of the annual tuition charge to the admitting district on or before December thirty-first and any remaining amount on or before May thirty-first. If payment is not received by the admitting district within thirty days after the date on which payment is due, simple interest at the rate of six percent per annum accrues to any amount due.~~

SECTION 24. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-29-12 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-29-12. Tuition payments - Determination.

1. Except as provided in section 15.1-29-13, a school district sending a student to another district for purposes of education shall pay the full cost of education incurred by the admitting district.
2.
 - a. The admitting district shall determine the cost of education per student for its kindergarten, elementary, and high school students on the basis of its average daily membership and those expenditures permitted in determining the cost of education per student in section 15.1-27-03.
 - b. To the cost of education per student, the admitting district shall add the latest available statewide average per student cost for extracurricular activities and the state average capital outlay per student. The state average capital outlay per student is determined by dividing the total of all school districts' annual expenditures for sinking and interest funds, tax receipts to the building funds, and general fund expenditures for capital outlay by the average daily membership of the state.
 - c. The admitting district shall subtract the following from the amount arrived at under subdivision b:
 - (1) The weighted per student payment received by the admitting district, less the average amount per North Dakota resident student enrolled in the school district realized from the deductions applied under section 15.1-27-06; and

- (2) Any credit for taxes paid to the admitting district by the student's parent.
- d. The amount remaining is the full cost of education incurred by the admitting district and the tuition amount payable for the individual student.
- ~~3. If the student's school district of residence and the student's parent are both paying tuition, the credit allowed under subdivision c of subsection 2 for taxes paid to the admitting district by the student's parent must be proportionately credited to the student's district of residence and the student's parent.~~
4. This chapter does not affect the right of a school board to charge and collect tuition from students who are not residents of this state, in accordance with section 15.1-29-02.

SECTION 25. TRANSPORTATION GRANTS - DISTRIBUTION.

1. During each year of the 2005-07 biennium, the superintendent of public instruction shall distribute from the grants - state school aid line item in House Bill No. 1013, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, fifty percent of \$33,500,000 as state transportation aid payments.
2.
 - a. During the first year of the biennium, the superintendent of public instruction shall calculate the payment to which each school district is entitled based on the state transportation formula as it existed on June 30, 2001, except that the superintendent shall provide reimbursement for in-city mileage at the rate of fifty cents for schoolbuses having a capacity of ten or more students and reimbursement for vehicles having a capacity of nine or fewer students and transporting students who live outside the incorporated limits of a city at the rate of forty cents per mile. The superintendent of public instruction shall use the latest available student enrollment count in each school district.
 - b. During the second year of the biennium, the superintendent of public instruction shall distribute to each school district the same amount that the district received under this section for transportation services provided during the first year of the biennium.
3. If insufficient moneys exist to fully meet the requirements of this section, the superintendent of public instruction shall prorate the payments according to the percentage of the total amount to which each school district is entitled.
4. Nothing in this section permits reimbursement for any costs incurred in providing transportation for student attendance at extracurricular activities or events.

SECTION 26. AMENDMENT. Section 37 of chapter 667 of the 2003 Session Laws is amended and reenacted as follows:

SECTION 37. CONTINGENT PAYMENTS - DISTRIBUTION. If any moneys appropriated for per student payments and transportation payments in the grants - state school aid line item in Senate Bill No. 2013 remain after payment of all statutory obligations for per student and transportation payments during the biennium beginning July 1, 2003, and ending June 30, 2005, the superintendent of public instruction shall distribute the remaining moneys as follows:

1. The superintendent of public instruction shall use the first \$119,190, or so much of that amount as may be necessary, for the purpose of reimbursing eligible school districts that received reduced amounts of state aid. For the purposes of this subsection, an eligible school district is one that received a reduction in state aid during the second year of the 2003-05 biennium because the district's general fund levy fell below one hundred forty mills as the result of a reorganization or

the dissolution of a contiguous district. The following affected districts listed are entitled to receive reimbursements:

<u>Velva 1</u>	<u>\$24,355</u>
<u>TGU 60</u>	<u>93,514</u>
<u>Lewis and Clark</u>	<u>1,321</u>

2. The superintendent of public instruction shall return the next \$759,000 to the state general fund.
3. The superintendent of public instruction shall use the ~~first~~ next \$250,000, or so much of that amount as ~~is~~ may be necessary, for the purpose of providing reimbursements to the chief administrators of joint powers agreements pursuant to section 19 of this Act.
- ~~2-~~ 4. The superintendent of public instruction shall use the next \$1,000,000, or so much of that amount as ~~is~~ may be necessary, for the purpose of providing reorganization bonuses, pursuant to section 15.1-12-11.1, to school districts having reorganizations effective after July 1, 2003, and before July 1, 2005. If insufficient moneys exist to fully meet the requirements of this subsection, the superintendent of public instruction shall prorate the payments according to that percentage of the amount available to which a school district is entitled.
- ~~3-~~ 5. The superintendent of public instruction shall use the remainder of the moneys to provide additional per student payments on a prorated basis, according to the average daily membership of each school district during the 2004-05 school year.

SECTION 27. CONTINGENCY - RETURN OF MONEYS TO THE GENERAL FUND. If any moneys appropriated for per student payments and transportation payments in the grants - state school aid line item in House Bill No. 1013, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, remain after payment of all statutory obligations for per student and transportation payments during the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007, and if section 26 of this Act does not become effective before July 1, 2005, the superintendent of public instruction shall return the first \$759,000 to the state general fund.

SECTION 28. CONTINGENCY. If any moneys appropriated for per student payments and transportation payments in the grants - state school aid line item in House Bill No. 1013, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, remain after payment of all statutory obligations for per student and transportation payments during the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007, and after the superintendent of public instruction has fulfilled any directives contained in section 27 of this Act, the superintendent shall distribute the remaining moneys as follows:

1. The superintendent of public instruction shall use the first \$450,000, or so much of that amount as may be necessary, to provide additional payments to school districts serving English language learners in accordance with section 15.1-27-12.
2. The superintendent of public instruction shall use the next \$1,000,000, or so much of that amount as may be necessary, for the purpose of providing additional per student payments to school districts participating in eligible educational associations in accordance with section 32 of this Act.
3. The superintendent of public instruction shall use the remainder of the moneys to provide additional per student payments on a prorated basis according to the latest available average daily membership of each school district.

SECTION 29. CONTINGENCY PAYMENTS - TEACHER COMPENSATION - ADDITIONAL PER STUDENT PAYMENTS. If any moneys appropriated by the legislative assembly to the grants - teacher compensation line item in House Bill No. 1013, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, remain after completion of all statutory obligations, the superintendent of public instruction shall use the remaining moneys to provide additional per student payments on a prorated basis, according to the latest available average daily membership of each school district.

SECTION 30. TEACHER COMPENSATION - USE OF NEW MONEYS.

1. During the 2005-07 biennium, the board of each school district shall use an amount equal to at least seventy percent of all new moneys received for per student payments under section 15.1-27-04 and tuition apportionment payments under section 15.1-28-03 for the purpose of increasing the compensation paid to teachers and for the purpose of providing compensation to teachers who begin employment with the district on or after July 1, 2005.
2. For purposes of this section, "new moneys" means any increase in the amount received by a district for per student payments under section 15.1-27-04 and tuition apportionment payments under section 15.1-28-03 between the 2003-05 biennium and the 2005-07 biennium.
3. For purposes of this section, school districts providing educational services under a cooperative agreement approved by the superintendent of public instruction are treated as a single district.
4.
 - a. The provisions of this section do not apply to a school district if the board of the school district, after a public hearing at which public testimony and documentary evidence are accepted, determines in its discretion and by an affirmative vote of two-thirds of its members that complying with the provisions of subsection 1 would place the school district in the position of having insufficient fiscal resources to meet its other obligations.
 - b. Within ten days of the vote required by subdivision a, the board shall notify the superintendent of public instruction of its action and shall file a report detailing the grounds for its determination and action.
 - c. The superintendent of public instruction shall report all notices received under this subsection to an interim committee designated by the legislative council.

SECTION 31. REPORT TO LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL - EDUCATIONAL ASSOCIATIONS GOVERNED BY JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS. At the conclusion of each school year during the 2005-07 biennium, the superintendent of public instruction shall compile a report covering the operations of each educational association governed by a joint powers agreement and verified by the superintendent of public instruction as meeting the requirements of section 15.1-07-28. The report must include the administrative functions and student services in which members of each educational association participated and the direct and indirect benefits of such participation. The report must specifically address whether school district participation resulted in expanded course offerings, improved state and national test results, administrative consolidations, instructional sharing, increased or improved professional development opportunities, and cost-savings to each school district. The superintendent of public instruction shall present the reports to an interim committee designated by the legislative council.

SECTION 32. APPROPRIATION - ELIGIBLE EDUCATIONAL ASSOCIATIONS.

1. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$1,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the superintendent of public instruction for the purpose of providing payments to school districts that are members of eligible educational associations, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007.
2.
 - a. During June 2006 the superintendent of public instruction shall distribute seventy-five percent of the money appropriated under subsection 1 to eligible school districts on a per student basis. The total amount to which a school district is entitled under this subdivision may not exceed the amount expended by the school district during the 2005-06 school year to participate in an eligible educational association.
 - b. During June 2007 the superintendent of public instruction shall distribute the remaining money appropriated under subsection 1 to eligible school districts on a per student basis. The total amount to

which a school district is entitled under this subdivision may not exceed the amount expended by the school district during the 2006-07 school year to participate in an eligible educational association.

3. For purposes of this section, an "eligible educational association" is one that is governed by a joint powers agreement that the superintendent of public instruction has verified as meeting the requirements of section 15.1-07-28.

SECTION 33. APPROPRIATION - REORGANIZATION BONUSES - CONTINGENCY. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$759,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the superintendent of public instruction for the purpose of providing a reorganization bonus to any school district having a reorganization effective on July 1, 2005, pursuant to section 15.1-12-11.1, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007. If any moneys remain after the superintendent of public instruction completes the payment of bonuses for any reorganization effective on July 1, 2005, the superintendent shall use the remaining moneys to provide additional per student payments on a prorated basis, according to the latest available average daily membership of each school district.

SECTION 34. APPROPRIATION - TRANSPORTATION EFFICIENCY TRAINING. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$30,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the superintendent of public instruction for the purpose of contracting to provide transportation efficiency training to school district personnel, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007.

SECTION 35. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$700,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the superintendent of public instruction for the purpose of providing additional per student payments, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007.

SECTION 36. REPEAL. Section 15.1-09-42 of the North Dakota Century Code is repealed.

SECTION 37. REPEAL. Section 15.1-12-11.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is repealed.

SECTION 38. REPEAL. Section 15.1-12-11.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is repealed.

SECTION 39. EFFECTIVE DATE. Sections 1, 17, and 36 of this Act become effective on July 1, 2006, and section 38 of this Act becomes effective on December 31, 2005.

SECTION 40. EMERGENCY. Section 26 of this Act is declared to be an emergency measure."

Renumber accordingly

Reengrossed HB 1154 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. R. KELSCH MOVED that the conference committee report on Reengrossed HB 1154 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Reengrossed HB 1154, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1154: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 15.1-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to educational association board reimbursement; to amend and reenact sections 15.1-06-04, 15.1-06-06, 15.1-07-28, 15.1-09-01, 15.1-12-26, 15.1-12-27, 15.1-12-29, 15.1-18-07, 15.1-22-01, 15.1-27-04, 15.1-27-05, 15.1-27-06, 15.1-27-07, 15.1-27-11, 15.1-27-15, 15.1-27-35, 15.1-27-37, 15.1-27-39, 15.1-27-40, 15.1-28-03, 15.1-29-03, 15.1-29-04, and 15.1-29-12 of the North Dakota Century Code and section 37 of chapter 667 of the 2003 Session Laws, relating to school calendars, school boards, teacher qualifications, school district dissolutions, the

school district equalization factor, weighting factors, supplemental payments, isolated schools, and tuition payments; to repeal sections 15.1-09-42, 15.1-12-11.1, and 15.1-12-11.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to instructional conferences and reorganization bonus payments; to provide for transportation grants; to provide for contingent payments; to provide for teacher compensation; to provide for a report to the legislative council; to provide an appropriation; to provide an effective date; and to declare an emergency.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 55 YEAS, 33 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 6 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Berg; Bernstein; Boehning; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; DeKrey; Delmore; Devlin; Dietrich; Dosch; Froelich; Froseth; Glassheim; Haas; Hawken; Horter; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kingsbury; Klemin; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Maragos; Martinson; Meier, L.; Monson; Nelson; Nicholas; Nottestad; Owens; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Schmidt; Sitte; Svedjan; Timm; Uglem; Vigasaa; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Zaiser; Speaker Klein

NAYS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Bellew; Belter; Boe; Boucher; Conrad; Delzer; Drovdal; Ekstrom; Galvin; Hanson; Headland; Herbel; Hunskor; Iverson; Kaldor; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kreidt; Kroeber; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Mueller; Onstad; Ruby; Sandvig; Skarphol; Solberg; Thoreson; Thorpe; Williams; Wrangham

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Brandenburg; Damschen; Grande; Gulleson; Kerzman; Norland

Reengrossed HB 1154 passed, the title was agreed to, but the emergency clause lost.

MOTION

REP. MONSON MOVED that the House stand in recess until 7:00 p.m., which motion prevailed.

THE HOUSE RECONVENED pursuant to recess taken, with Speaker Klein presiding.

CONSIDERATION OF MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

REP. CARLSON MOVED that the House do concur in the Senate amendments to Engrossed HB 1035, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed HB 1035, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order of business.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1035: A BILL for an Act to provide for a state government performance and accountability system pilot project.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 87 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Bellew; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Conrad; DeKrey; Delmore; Devlin; Dietrich; Dosch; Ekstrom; Froelich; Froseth; Galvin; Glassheim; Gulleson; Haas; Hanson; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Horter; Hunskor; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kingsbury; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Maragos; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Monson; Mueller; Nelson; Nicholas; Nottestad; Onstad; Owens; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Sandvig; Schmidt; Sitte; Skarphol; Solberg; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Timm; Uglem; Vigasaa; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Wrangham; Zaiser; Speaker Klein

NAYS: Delzer; Drovdal

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Brandenburg; Damschen; Grande; Kerzman; Norland

Engrossed HB 1035 passed and the title was agreed to.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

SB 2037, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Krebsbach, Fischer, Nelson and Reps. Skarphol, Monson, Glassheim) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments on SJ pages 971-972, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2037 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 971 and 972 of the Senate Journal and pages 1238-1240 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2037 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "15-10" insert "and a new section to chapter 54-59"

Page 1, line 2, after "technology" insert "and information technology planning"

Page 4, line 28, remove "or"

Page 4, line 29, remove the overstrike over "or"

Page 4, remove the overstrike over lines 30 and 31

Page 5, remove the overstrike over lines 1 and 2

Page 5, line 20, after "systems" insert an underscored comma

Page 5, line 27, after "the" insert "state information technology", remove the overstrike over "advisory", and after "committee" insert "and the information technology committee"

Page 8, after line 22, insert:

"16. Shall establish specific standards, policies, and guidelines to support the migration to a small number of operating system platforms."

Page 10, line 6, after the second boldfaced period insert:

"1."

Page 10, line 14, after the period insert "The asset management plan must include data regarding each business application asset of the entity, the age of the asset, and the planned replacement cycle for the asset."

"2."

Page 10, line 20, after the period insert:

"3."

Page 10, line 25, after the period insert:

"4."

Page 11, line 1, replace "1." with "a."

Page 11, line 5, replace "2." with "b."

Page 11, line 6, replace "3." with "c."

Page 11, line 9, replace "4." with "d."

Page 11, after line 10, insert:

"5. The department shall develop a long-term plan for the cost-effective, needs-based replacement or upgrade of all business applications over a period of ten years or more. The process must include participation of affected agencies and institutions and must incorporate the standards, policies, and guidelines developed by the enterprise architecture process. The state information technology advisory committee shall prioritize each application replacement project as provided in section 54-59-02.1."

Page 12, line 23, overstrike "the public employees retirement system, the retirement"

Page 12, line 24, overstrike "and investment office," and remove "the oil and gas division and the geological survey"

Page 12, line 25, remove "of the industrial commission, the public service commission, the water commission,"

Page 13, line 3, after the period insert "This chapter does not require or permit the public employees retirement system or the retirement and investment office to engage in activities or make expenditures that may affect their compliance with the qualification statutes and regulations promulgated by the internal revenue service. Notwithstanding section 12 of this Act, an exemption granted to the oil and gas division and the geological survey of the industrial commission, the public service commission, or the water commission by the office of management and budget under this section before the effective date of this Act must continue in effect until August 1, 2009."

SECTION 12. A new section to chapter 54-59 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Information technology planning - Exemptions - Appeals. Except as otherwise provided in section 54-59-22, the department shall review any exemption granted under section 54-59-22 when the exempted agency or institution determines to replace an application or data base. Based upon the information provided by the agency or institution, the chief information officer shall determine whether to allow the continuation of the exemption. In making the determination whether to continue an exemption, the chief information officer shall consider the information provided in the technology plan of the agency or institution, the business case of the agency or institution for the exemption, and the need to create overall government efficiencies, cost-savings, and improvement of services. If the agency or institution disagrees with the decision of the chief information officer, the agency or institution may appeal the decision to the state information technology advisory committee. An agency or institution may appeal a decision of the state information technology advisory committee to the director of the office of management and budget, who may make a final decision regarding the continuation of an exemption."

Renumber accordingly

Engrossed SB 2037 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. SKARPHOL MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2037 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed SB 2037, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2037: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 15-10 and new section to chapter 54-59 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to higher education information technology and information technology planning; and to amend and reenact subsection 11 of section 28-32-01 and sections 54-35-15.2, 54-59-02.1, 54-59-05, 54-59-07, 54-59-09, 54-59-11, 54-59-19, 54-59-21, and 54-59-22 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to exclusion of certain policies, standards, and guidelines of the information technology department from compliance with the Administrative Agencies Practice Act, powers and duties of the information technology committee and the information technology department, prioritization of proposed major information technology projects, access to the criminal justice information sharing system, and information technology plans and reports.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 35 YEAS, 54 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Boe; Boucher; Conrad; DeKrey; Delmore; Dosch; Ekstrom; Froelich; Glassheim; Guleson; Haas; Hawken; Hunsakor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, S.; Kingsbury; Kroeber; Maragos; Meier, L.; Meyer, S.; Nicholas; Nottestad; Onstad; Porter; Potter; Sandvig; Schmidt; Solberg; Thorpe; Zaiser

NAYS: Bellew; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehning; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Delzer; Devlin; Dietrich; Drovda; Froseth; Galvin; Hanson; Headland; Herbel; Horter; Iverson; Kasper; Keiser; Kempenich; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar;

Martinson; Metcalf; Monson; Mueller; Nelson; Owens; Pietsch; Pollert; Price; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Sitte; Skarphol; Svedjan; Thoreson; Timm; Uglem; Vigesaa; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Wrangham; Speaker Klein

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Brandenburg; Damschen; Grande; Kerzman; Norland

Engrossed SB 2037 lost.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

SB 2001, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Holmberg, Kringstad, Lindaas and Reps. Monson, Carlson, Glassheim) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments on SJ pages 1182-1186, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2001 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1182-1186 of the Senate Journal and pages 1349-1352 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2001 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 2, after the semicolon insert "to provide for governance of a legislative applications replacement system project; to provide for applications and transfers; to provide for a legislative council study; to amend and reenact section 54-03-20 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to compensation of members of the legislative assembly; to provide an effective date;"

Page 2, line 5, replace "253,551" with "601,739"

Page 2, line 7, replace "100,000" with "226,085"

Page 2, line 9, replace "456,700" with "930,973"

Page 2, line 12, replace "255,125" with "251,007"

Page 2, line 16, replace "47,034" with "42,916"

Page 2, line 17, replace "503,734" with "973,889"

Page 2, line 26, replace "5,736,429" with "6,084,617"

Page 2, line 28, replace "106,000" with "232,085"

Page 2, line 30, replace "9,017,952" with "9,492,225"

Page 3, line 2, replace "5,171,154" with "5,167,036"

Page 3, line 5, replace "7,579,890" with "7,575,772"

Page 3, line 6, replace "16,597,842" with "17,067,997"

Page 3, after line 16, insert:

"SECTION 5. LEGISLATIVE APPLICATIONS REPLACEMENT SYSTEM GOVERNANCE. The legislative council shall develop, during the 2005-06 interim, a design, an analysis, and a plan for implementation of a replacement system for legislative applications. The legislative council staff and the information technology department staff shall develop a project plan. The legislative council's interim legislative management committee shall review the project plan and may request revisions to the plan before adopting the plan. The legislative council chairman may appoint an executive steering group for the project which may consist of members from the legislative council staff, members from the information technology department staff, and legislators. The project plan must be developed in a phased approach and must include a process for soliciting suggestions from members of the legislative assembly regarding system functions. After completion of a project phase, the legislative management committee shall review and approve the deliverables from the completed phase before any consideration may be made for a subsequent phase. The individual designated as the project manager shall provide reports regarding the project as required by chapters 54-35 and 54-59.

SECTION 6. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY - PRINTING OF BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS. The legislative council, through its legislative management committee, shall study, during the 2005-06 interim, the feasibility and desirability of arranging for the printing of bills and resolutions for the sixtieth legislative assembly by using computers and high-speed printers rather than printing multiple copies of all bills and having copies available in the bill and journal room. The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation necessary to implement the recommendations, to the sixtieth legislative assembly.

SECTION 7. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY - LEGISLATIVE MEETING ROOMS. The legislative council, through its legislative management committee, shall study, during the 2005-06 interim, the need for additional legislative committee meeting rooms. The legislative council may expend any funds available for the remodeling of legislative meeting rooms if the study concludes that additional meeting rooms are needed. The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation necessary to implement the recommendations, to the sixtieth legislative assembly.

SECTION 8. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY - DIVISION CHAIRMEN PAY. The legislative council, through its legislative management committee, shall study, during the 2005-06 interim, the appropriateness of increasing the daily compensation for chairmen of substantive standing committee divisions established by rule of the house or senate. The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation necessary to implement the recommendations, to the sixtieth legislative assembly.

SECTION 9. APPLICATION AND TRANSFER AUTHORITY. North Dakota Century Code sections 54-16-04 and 54-44.1-11 do not apply to chapter 1 of the 2003 Session Laws. Any unexpended funds from the appropriations in chapter 1 of the 2003 Session Laws may be used to assist in the cost of the legislative applications replacement project, including preplanning costs. The director of the office of management and budget and the state treasurer shall make transfers of funds between the line items and the agencies of the legislative branch within section 1 of that chapter as requested by the chairman of the legislative council or the chairman's designee.

SECTION 10. AMENDMENT. Section 54-03-20 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

54-03-20. Compensation and expense reimbursement of members of the legislative assembly.

1. Each member of the legislative assembly of the state of North Dakota is entitled to receive as compensation for services the sum of one hundred twenty-five dollars for each calendar day during any organizational, special, or regular legislative session and for each day that member attends a meeting of a legislative committee between the organizational session and the regular session as authorized by legislative rule.
2. Each member of the legislative assembly is entitled to receive reimbursement for lodging, which may not exceed a maximum of six hundred fifty dollars per calendar month for lodging in state, at the rates and in the manner provided in section 44-08-04 for each calendar day during the period of any organizational, special, or regular session.
3.
 - a. Members of the legislative assembly who receive reimbursement for lodging are also entitled to reimbursement for travel for not to exceed one round trip taken during any calendar week, or portion of a week, the legislative assembly is in session, between their residences and the place of meeting of the legislative assembly, at the rate provided for state employees with the additional limitation that reimbursement for travel by common carrier may be only at the cost of coach fare and may not exceed one and one-half times the amount the member would be entitled to receive as mileage reimbursement for travel by motor vehicle.
 - b. A member of the legislative assembly who does not receive reimbursement for lodging and whose place of residence in the legislative district that the member represents is not within the city of Bismarck is entitled to reimbursement at the rate provided for state employees for necessary travel for not to exceed one round trip taken

per day between the residence and the place of meeting of the legislative assembly when it is in session and may receive reimbursement for lodging at the place of meeting of the legislative assembly as provided in section 44-08-04 for each calendar day for which round trip travel reimbursement is not claimed, provided that the total reimbursement may not exceed six hundred fifty dollars per month.

4. The amount to which each legislator is entitled must be paid following the organizational session in December and following each month during a regular or special session.
5. If during a special session, the legislative assembly adjourns for more than three days, a member of the legislative assembly is entitled to receive compensation during those days only while in attendance at a standing committee if the legislator is a member of that committee, a majority or minority leader, or a legislator who is not on that committee but who has the approval of a majority or minority leader to attend.
6. A day, or portion of a day, spent in traveling to or returning from an organizational, special, or regular session or a legislative committee meeting must be included as a calendar day during a legislative session or as a day of a legislative committee meeting for the purposes of this section.
7.
 - a. In addition, each member is entitled to receive during the term for which the member was elected, as compensation for the execution of public duties during the biennium, the sum of ~~two~~ three hundred fifty dollars a month, which is payable every six months or monthly, at the member's option.
 - b. If a member dies or resigns from office during the member's term, the member may be paid only the allowances provided for in this section for the period for which the member was actually a member.
 - c. The majority and minority leaders of the house and senate and the chairman of the legislative council, if the chairman is not a majority or minority leader, are each entitled to receive as compensation, in addition to any other compensation or expense reimbursement provided by law, the sum of two hundred fifty dollars per month during the biennium for their execution of public duties.
8. Attendance at any organizational, special, or regular session of the legislative assembly by any member is a conclusive presumption of entitlement as set out in this section and compensation and expense allowances must be excluded from gross income for income tax purposes to the extent permitted for federal income tax purposes under section 127 of the Economic Recovery Tax Act of 1981 [Pub. L. 97-34; 95 Stat. 202; 26 U.S.C. 162(i)].

SECTION 11. EFFECTIVE DATE. Section 10 of this Act becomes effective on July 1, 2005."

Renumber accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

Senate Bill No. 2001 - Summary of Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	SENATE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	HOUSE VERSION	COMPARISON TO HOUSE
Legislative Assembly						
Total all funds	\$13,117,952	\$9,017,952	\$474,273	\$9,492,225	\$9,180,314	\$311,911
Less estimated income						
General fund	\$13,117,952	\$9,017,952	\$474,273	\$9,492,225	\$9,180,314	\$311,911
Legislative Council						
Total all funds	\$7,598,596	\$7,579,890	(\$4,118)	\$7,575,772	\$7,575,772	\$0
Less estimated income						
General fund	\$7,598,596	\$7,579,890	(\$4,118)	\$7,575,772	\$7,575,772	\$0
Bill Total						
Total all funds	\$20,716,548	\$16,597,842	\$470,155	\$17,067,997	\$16,756,086	\$311,911
Less estimated income						
General fund	\$20,716,548	\$16,597,842	\$470,155	\$17,067,997	\$16,756,086	\$311,911

Senate Bill No. 2001 - Legislative Assembly - Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	SENATE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	HOUSE VERSION	COMPARISON TO HOUSE
Salaries and wages	\$5,736,429	\$5,736,429	\$348,188	\$6,084,617	\$5,898,791	\$185,826
Operating expenses	2,997,773	2,997,773		2,997,773	2,997,773	
Capital assets	6,000	106,000	126,085	232,085	106,000	126,085
National Conference of State Legislatures	177,750	177,750		177,750	177,750	
Legislative applications replacement	4,200,000					
Total all funds	\$13,117,952	\$9,017,952	\$474,273	\$9,492,225	\$9,180,314	\$311,911
Less estimated income						
General fund	\$13,117,952	\$9,017,952	\$474,273	\$9,492,225	\$9,180,314	\$311,911
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

Dept. 150 - Legislative Assembly - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

	REDUCES RECOMMENDED FUNDING FOR HEALTH INSURANCE	ADDS FUNDING FOR COMMITTEE ROOMS ¹	ADDS FUNDING FOR SOUND SYSTEM ²	ADDS FUNDING FOR LEGISLATOR MONTHLY COMPENSATION ³	TOTAL CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES
Salaries and wages	(\$16,100)			\$364,288	\$348,188
Operating expenses					
Capital assets		\$100,000	\$26,085		126,085
National Conference of State Legislatures					
Legislative applications replacement					
Total all funds	(\$16,100)	\$100,000	\$26,085	\$364,288	\$474,273
Less estimated income					
General fund	(\$16,100)	\$100,000	\$26,085	\$364,288	\$474,273
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

¹ The capital assets line item is increased by \$100,000 from the general fund to provide a total of \$200,000 for designing and remodeling space in the Capitol for an additional committee room or for refurbishing committee rooms.

² The capital assets line item is increased by \$26,085 from the general fund for replacing sound system mixers in the House chamber.

³ A section is added increasing, effective July 1, 2005, legislators' monthly compensation by \$100 per month, from \$250 to \$350 per month.

A section is added providing for the governance of the legislative applications replacement system computer project by the Legislative Council. The House had added a similar section relating to the development and oversight of the project.

A section is added requiring a Legislative Council study of the feasibility of printing bills and resolutions using high-speed printers for the 2007 legislative session. The House had added a section of legislative intent that the Legislative Council arrange for this for the 2007 session.

A section is added requiring a Legislative Council study of the need for additional legislative committee meeting rooms.

A section is added allowing for continuation of any unspent 2003-05 biennium appropriation authority of the legislative branch for costs of the legislative applications replacement system computer project, the same as the House version.

Sections and funding added by the House increasing legislator pay by \$10 per day during legislative sessions are removed.

Sections and funding added by the House are removed which provided that chairmen of standing committee divisions receive an additional \$5 per day during legislative sessions, the same as standing committee chairmen, which was to be retroactive to January 1, 2005. A section is added providing that the Legislative Management Committee study, during the interim, the appropriateness of increasing the daily compensation for these division chairmen.

Senate Bill No. 2001 - Legislative Council - Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	SENATE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	HOUSE VERSION	COMPARISON TO HOUSE
Salaries and wages	\$5,189,860	\$5,171,154	(\$4,118)	\$5,167,036	\$5,167,036	
Operating expenses	2,367,736	2,367,736		2,367,736	2,367,736	
Capital assets	41,000	41,000		41,000	41,000	
Total all funds	\$7,598,596	\$7,579,890	(\$4,118)	\$7,575,772	\$7,575,772	\$0
Less estimated income						
General fund	\$7,598,596	\$7,579,890	(\$4,118)	\$7,575,772	\$7,575,772	\$0
FTE	33.00	33.00	0.00	33.00	33.00	0.00

Dept. 160 - Legislative Council - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

	REDUCES RECOMMENDED FUNDING FOR HEALTH INSURANCE	TOTAL CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES
Salaries and wages	(\$4,118)	(\$4,118)
Operating expenses		
Capital assets		
Total all funds	(\$4,118)	(\$4,118)
Less estimated income		
General fund	(\$4,118)	(\$4,118)
FTE	0.00	0.00

Engrossed SB 2001 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. MONSON MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2001 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed SB 2001, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2001: A BILL for an Act providing an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the legislative branch of state government; to provide for governance of a legislative applications replacement system project; to provide for applications and transfers; to provide for a legislative council study; to amend and reenact section 54-03-20 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to compensation of members of the legislative assembly; to provide an effective date; and to declare an emergency.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 59 YEAS, 30 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Bellew; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boe; Boucher; Brandenburg; Carlisle; Charging; Clark; Conrad; DeKrey; Delmore; Dietrich; Dosch; Drovdal; Froseth; Galvin; Haas; Hanson; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Horter; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kelsch, R.; Kempenich; Kingsbury; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Maragos; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Monson; Nelson; Nicholas; Nottestad; Owens; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Schmidt; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Timm; Uglem; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Wrangham; Speaker Klein

NAYS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Boehning; Carlson; Delzer; Devlin; Ekstrom; Froelich; Glassheim; Guleson; Hunsakor; Iverson; Kaldor; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsh, S.; Klemin; Koppelman; Kroeber; Meyer, S.; Mueller; Onstad; Potter; Ruby; Sandvig; Sitte; Skarphol; Solberg; Vigasaa; Zaiser

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Brusegaard; Damschen; Grande; Kerzman; Norland

Engrossed SB 2001 passed, the title was agreed to, but the emergency clause lost.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

HB 1015, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Stenehjem, Holmberg, O'Connell and Reps. Berg, Svedjan, Boucher) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the Senate amendments on HJ pages 1857-1862, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1015 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1857-1862 of the House Journal and pages 1548-1554 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1015 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 4, after the semicolon insert "to create and enact two new sections to House Bill No. 1286, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, and a new section to Senate Bill No. 2012, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, relating to open records requests and to interpretation of provisions relating to refunds of certain fuels taxes paid by native Americans;" and remove "section 4-28-08,"

Page 1, line 5, remove "subsection 6 of section 37-17.1-06, and" and replace "54-23.2-01, 54-52.1-06, and 57-40.6-12" with "4-01-21, 15.1-02-02, 15.1-06-06, 26.1-01-09, 27-02-02, 27-05-03, 49-01-05, 54-03-20, 54-09-05, 54-10-10, 54-11-13, 54-12-11, 54-44.1-06, 54-44.1-06.1, 57-01-04, and 57-40.6-02"

Page 1, line 6, after "Code" insert "and section 5 of House Bill No. 1518, section 12 of Senate Bill No. 2015, and section 20 of House Bill No. 1043, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly", after "to" insert "salaries of elected officials, school calendars, lodging reimbursement for members of the legislative assembly, preparation of the budget data, voter approval of imposition of fees for emergency services communication systems," and replace "fund, the division of" with "levy, a legislative council study of the department of corrections and rehabilitation, and the effective date of streamlined sales tax agreement complying amendments; to repeal section 9 of Senate Bill No. 2015, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, relating to composite schedules for teacher salaries; to provide for a legislative council study; to provide legislative intent; and to declare an emergency."

Page 1, remove lines 7 and 8

Page 1, line 24, replace "\$1,876,214" with "\$1,892,438"

Page 1, line 25, replace "(94,850)" with "12,350"

Page 2, line 4, replace "\$312,926" with "\$221,950"

Page 2, line 5, replace "(514,476)" with "(410,608)"

Page 2, line 6, replace "201,550" with "188,658"

Page 2, line 13, replace "13,512,017" with "13,495,793"

Page 2, line 14, replace "11,233,906" with "11,341,106"

Page 2, line 18, replace "27,316,061" with "27,407,037"

Page 2, line 19, replace "7,374,000" with "7,477,868"

Page 2, line 20, replace "19,942,061" with "19,929,169"

Page 3, line 11, replace "\$5,000,000 or such greater amount as may be available" with "\$6,800,000"

Page 3, replace lines 22 through 31 with:

"SECTION 10. AMENDMENT. Section 4-01-21 of the North Dakota Century Code, as amended by House Bill No. 1009, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, is amended and reenacted as follows:

4-01-21. Salary of agriculture commissioner. The annual salary of the agriculture commissioner is ~~seventy-one~~ seventy-two thousand ~~nine~~ six hundred ~~seventy~~ sixty-nine dollars through June 30, 2006, and ~~seventy-four~~ seventy-five thousand ~~eight~~ eighty-five hundred ~~forty-nine~~ seventy-six dollars thereafter.

SECTION 11. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-02-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, as amended by House Bill No. 1013, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-02-02. Salary. The annual salary of the superintendent of public instruction is ~~seventy-nine~~eighty thousand ~~seven~~five hundred ~~fifty-seven~~thirty-one dollars through June 30, 2006, ~~eighty-two~~and eighty-three thousand ~~ninety-seven~~hundred forty-seven dollars thereafter.

SECTION 12. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-06-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, as amended and reenacted by House Bill No. 1154, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-06-06. Approval of public and nonpublic schools. Each public and nonpublic school in this state offering elementary or secondary education to students must be approved by the superintendent of public instruction. Except as otherwise provided by law, the superintendent may not approve a school unless:

1. Each classroom teacher is licensed to teach by the education standards and practices board or approved to teach by the education standards and practices board;
2. Each classroom teacher is teaching only in those course areas or fields for which the teacher is licensed or for which the teacher has received an exception under section 2 of House Bill No. 1076, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly;
3. The students are offered all subjects required by law;and
4. ~~The school is in compliance with the calendar requirements set forth in section 15.1-06-04; and~~
5. The school is in compliance with all local and state health, fire, and safety laws.

SECTION 13. AMENDMENT. Section 26.1-01-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, as amended by House Bill No. 1010, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, is amended and reenacted as follows:

26.1-01-09. Salary of commissioner. The annual salary of the commissioner is ~~seventy~~seventy-three thousand ~~eighty-five~~sixty-one ~~sixty-eight~~sixty-eight dollars thereafter.

SECTION 14. AMENDMENT. Section 27-02-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, as amended by Senate Bill No. 2002, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, is amended and reenacted as follows:

27-02-02. Salaries of justices of supreme court. The annual salary of each justice of the supreme court is ~~one hundred~~two ~~thirty~~three thousand ~~ninety-six~~eighty-seven dollars through June 30, 2006, and ~~one hundred~~sixty-seven thousand ~~one~~two hundred ~~eighty~~eighty dollars thereafter. The chief justice of the supreme court is entitled to receive an additional ~~two~~three thousand ~~ninety-six~~eighty-six ~~fifteen~~fifteen dollars per annum through June 30, 2006, and ~~three thousand~~three thousand ~~one hundred~~one hundred ~~fifty~~thirty-six dollars per annum thereafter.

SECTION 15. AMENDMENT. Section 27-05-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, as amended by Senate Bill No. 2002, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, is amended and reenacted as follows:

27-05-03. Salaries and expenses of district judges. The annual salary of each district judge is ~~ninety-three~~ninety-four thousand ~~three~~two hundred ~~ninety-one~~ninety-eight dollars through June 30, 2006, and ~~ninety-seven~~ninety-eight thousand ~~one~~one hundred ~~twenty-seven~~seventy dollars thereafter. Each district judge is entitled to travel expenses including mileage and subsistence while engaged in the discharge of official duties outside the city in which the judge's chambers are located. The salary and expenses are payable monthly in the manner provided by law. A presiding judge of a judicial district is entitled to receive an additional ~~two thousand~~two thousand ~~seven hundred~~seventy-nine dollars per annum; through June 30, 2006, and ~~two thousand~~two thousand ~~eight hundred~~sixty-two ~~ninety~~ninety dollars thereafter.

SECTION 16. AMENDMENT. Section 49-01-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, as amended by House Bill No. 1008, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, is amended and reenacted as follows:

49-01-05. Salary of commissioners. The annual salary of a commissioner is ~~seventy-one thousand nine hundred sixty-nine~~ seventy-two thousand nine hundred sixty-nine dollars through June 30, 2006, and ~~seventy-four thousand eight hundred forty-nine~~ seventy-five thousand eight hundred forty-nine dollars thereafter. All fees received or charged by any commissioner for any act or service rendered in any official capacity must be accounted for and paid over by the commissioner monthly to the state treasurer and must be credited to the general fund of the state.

SECTION 17. AMENDMENT. Section 54-03-20 of the North Dakota Century Code, as amended by section 1 of Senate Bill No. 2059 as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, is amended and reenacted as follows:

54-03-20. Compensation and expense reimbursement of members of the legislative assembly.

1. Each member of the legislative assembly is entitled to receive as compensation for services the sum of one hundred twenty-five dollars for each calendar day during any organizational, special, or regular legislative session and for each day that member attends a meeting of a legislative committee between the organizational session and the regular session as authorized by legislative rule.
2.
 - a. Each member of the legislative assembly is entitled to receive reimbursement for lodging, which may not exceed a maximum of nine hundred dollars per calendar month for lodging in state, at the rates and in the manner provided in section 44-08-04 for each calendar day during the period of any organizational, special, or regular session.
 - b. Notwithstanding subdivision a:
 - (1) A member of the legislative assembly may elect to be reimbursed for less than the amount to which the legislator is entitled under this subsection by claiming the lesser amount on a voucher submitted with the receipt required by section 44-08-04.
 - (2) The legislative council may establish guidelines that may result in a reduced maximum reimbursement for a single dwelling in which two or more legislators share lodging and the total rent for that dwelling exceeds the amount to which a legislator is entitled under subdivision a.
3.
 - a. Members of the legislative assembly who receive reimbursement for lodging are also entitled to reimbursement for travel for not to exceed one round trip taken during any calendar week, or portion of a week, the legislative assembly is in session, between their residences and the place of meeting of the legislative assembly, at the rate provided for state employees with the additional limitation that reimbursement for travel by common carrier may be only at the cost of coach fare and may not exceed one and one-half times the amount the member would be entitled to receive as mileage reimbursement for travel by motor vehicle.
 - b. A member of the legislative assembly who does not receive reimbursement for lodging and whose place of residence in the legislative district that the member represents is not within the city of Bismarck is entitled to reimbursement at the rate provided for state employees for necessary travel for not to exceed one round trip taken per day between the residence and the place of meeting of the legislative assembly when it is in session and may receive reimbursement for lodging at the place of meeting of the legislative assembly as provided in section 44-08-04 for each calendar day for which round trip travel reimbursement is not claimed, provided that the total reimbursement may not exceed nine hundred dollars per month.

4. The amount to which each legislator is entitled must be paid following the organizational session in December and following each month during a regular or special session.
5. If during a special session, the legislative assembly adjourns for more than three days, a member of the legislative assembly is entitled to receive compensation during those days only while in attendance at a standing committee if the legislator is a member of that committee, a majority or minority leader, or a legislator who is not on that committee but who has the approval of a majority or minority leader to attend.
6. A day, or portion of a day, spent in traveling to or returning from an organizational, special, or regular session or a legislative committee meeting must be included as a calendar day during a legislative session or as a day of a legislative committee meeting for the purposes of this section.
7.
 - a. In addition, each member is entitled to receive during the term for which the member was elected, as compensation for the execution of public duties during the biennium, the sum of two hundred fifty dollars a month, which is payable every six months or monthly, at the member's option.
 - b. If a member dies or resigns from office during the member's term, the member may be paid only the allowances provided for in this section for the period for which the member was actually a member.
 - c. The majority and minority leaders of the house and senate and the chairman of the legislative council, if the chairman is not a majority or minority leader, are each entitled to receive as compensation, in addition to any other compensation or expense reimbursement provided by law, the sum of two hundred fifty dollars per month during the biennium for their execution of public duties.
8. Attendance at any organizational, special, or regular session of the legislative assembly by any member is a conclusive presumption of entitlement as set out in this section and compensation and expense allowances must be excluded from gross income for income tax purposes to the extent permitted for federal income tax purposes under section 127 of the Economic Recovery Tax Act of 1981 [Pub. L. 97-34; 95 Stat. 202; 26 U.S.C. 162(i)].

SECTION 18. AMENDMENT. Section 54-09-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, as amended by House Bill No. 1002, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, is amended and reenacted as follows:

54-09-05. Salary of secretary of state. The annual salary of the secretary of state is seventy thousand ~~fifty-nine~~ seventy-three hundred ~~thirty-nine~~ thirty-nine dollars through June 30, 2006, and ~~seventy-two~~ seventy-three thousand ~~eight~~ eight hundred ~~sixty-one~~ sixty-eight dollars thereafter.

SECTION 19. AMENDMENT. Section 54-10-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, as amended by House Bill No. 1004, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, is amended and reenacted as follows:

54-10-10. Salary of state auditor. The annual salary of the state auditor is seventy thousand ~~fifty-nine~~ seventy-three hundred ~~thirty-nine~~ thirty-nine dollars through June 30, 2006, ~~seventy-two~~ seventy-three thousand ~~eight~~ eight hundred ~~sixty-one~~ sixty-eight dollars thereafter.

SECTION 20. AMENDMENT. Section 54-11-13 of the North Dakota Century Code, as amended by House Bill No. 1005, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, is amended and reenacted as follows:

54-11-13. Salary of state treasurer. The annual salary of the state treasurer is sixty-six thousand ~~one~~ eight hundred ~~sixty-two~~ eighty dollars through June 30, 2006, and ~~sixty-eight~~ sixty-nine thousand ~~eight~~ four hundred ~~six~~ seventy-four dollars thereafter.

SECTION 21. AMENDMENT. Section 54-12-11 of the North Dakota Century Code, as amended by House Bill No. 1003, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, is amended and reenacted as follows:

54-12-11. Salary of attorney general. The annual salary of the attorney general is ~~seventy-six~~ seventy-seven thousand ~~nine~~ nine hundred ~~eight~~ eighty ~~fifty-five~~ four dollars through June 30, 2006, and ~~seventy-nine~~ eighty thousand ~~nine~~ nine hundred ~~eighty-four~~ sixty-one dollars thereafter.

SECTION 22. AMENDMENT. Section 54-44.1-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, as effective after June 30, 2005, is amended and reenacted as follows:

54-44.1-06. (Effective after June 30, 2005) Preparation of the budget data - Contents. The director of the budget, through the office of the budget, shall prepare budget data which must contain and include the following:

1. Summary statements of the financial condition of the state, accompanied by the detailed schedules of assets and liabilities as the director of the budget determines desirable, which must include the following:
 - a. Summary statements of fund balances and assets showing in detail for each fund the surplus or deficit at the beginning of each of the two fiscal years of the previous biennium and the first fiscal year of the present biennium, the actual revenue for those years, the total appropriations for the previous and present biennium, and the total expenditures for those fiscal years; and
 - b. Similar summary statements of the estimated fund balances and assets for the current fiscal year and each of the fiscal years of the next biennium.

Summary statements may include a comparative consolidated balance sheet showing all the assets and liabilities of the state and the surplus or deficit, as the case may be, at the close of the first fiscal year of the current biennium.

2. Statements of actual revenue for the previous biennium, the first year of the present biennium, and the estimated revenue of the current fiscal year and of the next biennium, and a statement of unappropriated surplus expected to have accrued in the state treasury at the beginning of the next fiscal year. The statement of unappropriated surplus for the general fund must reflect any projected deficiency appropriations relating to expenditures from the general fund for the present biennium. The statements of revenue and estimated revenue must be classified by sources and by budget unit collecting them. Existing sources of revenue must be analyzed as to their equity, productivity, and need for revision, and any proposed new sources of revenue must be explained.
3. Summary statements of expenditures of the previous biennium and first year of the present biennium, itemized by budget units and classified as prescribed by the director of the budget.
4. Detailed comparative statements of expenditures and requests for appropriations by funds, budget units and classification of expenditures, showing the expenditures for the previous biennium, the first fiscal year of the present biennium, the budget of the current biennium, and the governor's recommendation for appropriations for each budget unit for the next biennium, all distributed according to the prescribed classification of expenditures. Following the lists of actual and proposed expenditures of each budget unit there must be a brief explanation of the functions of the unit and comments on its policies and plans and on any considerable differences among the amounts recommended, with any descriptive, quantitative, comparative, and other data as to work done, unit costs, and like information as may be considered necessary or desirable. For capital outlay expenditures involving construction projects to be completed in two or more fiscal years, there must be shown the total estimated cost of each such project and the amount thereof recommended to be appropriated and expended in each ensuing fiscal year until completion of the project. Capital outlay needs may be projected for at least two years beyond the period covered by the budget.

5. A detailed statement showing the estimate of all moneys required to be raised or appropriated for the payment of interest upon the funded debt of the state and its other obligations bearing interest, and the amount of money required to be contributed in the two next ensuing fiscal years to the general sinking funds maintained for the redemption and payment of the debts of the state.
6. A summary statement of the unappropriated fund balance estimated to be available at the beginning of the next biennium, and the estimated revenue of the next biennium, as compared with the total recommended amounts of appropriation for all classes of expenditures for the next biennium, and if the total of the recommended expenditures exceeds the total of the estimated resources, recommendations as to how the deficiency is to be met and estimates of any proposed additional revenue.
7. Drafts of a proposed ~~general appropriations act and special~~ appropriations acts for executive branch departments, agencies, and institutions, including institutions of higher education, providing the same funding as approved by the most recently adjourned special or regular session of the legislative assembly and amendments to the drafts of appropriations acts embodying the budget data and recommendations of the governor for appropriations for the next biennium and drafts of such revenues and other acts recommended by the governor for putting into effect the proposed financial plan. ~~The recommended general appropriation for each budget unit must be specified in a separate section of the general appropriations act.~~
8. A list of every individual asset or service, excluding real estate, with a value of at least fifty thousand dollars and every group of assets and services comprising a single system with a combined value of at least fifty thousand dollars acquired through a capital or operating lease arrangement or debt financing arrangement by a state agency or institution. The list must include assets or services acquired in the current biennium and anticipated assets or services to be acquired in the next biennium.
9. A financial plan for a prospective period of six years, including the executive budget recommendation for the next biennium, estimates of anticipated general fund and non-general fund revenues prepared for an additional period of four years, and estimates of the general fund and non-general fund appropriations required for each major program for an additional period of four years. In preparing the financial plan, the office of management and budget may utilize estimates prepared by state agencies or such other information as may be deemed necessary.
10. Any other information as the director of the budget determines desirable or as is required by law.

SECTION 23. AMENDMENT. Section 54-44.1-06.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

54-44.1-06.1. Contents of capital construction bill. The office of management and budget shall continue to prepare capital construction budgets and a capital construction bill. ~~All future~~ The capital construction ~~bills~~ bill may only include projects involving bonding. All other capital projects funded with general fund moneys or special funds must be included in draft amendments to the appropriate agency's appropriation bill.

SECTION 24. AMENDMENT. Section 57-01-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, as amended by House Bill No. 1006, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, is amended and reenacted as follows:

57-01-04. Salary. The annual salary of the state tax commissioner is seventy-six thousand ~~thirty-six~~ seventy-seven hundred seventy-four dollars through June 30, 2006, and seventy-nine thousand ~~seventy-seven~~ eight hundred forty-five dollars thereafter.

SECTION 25. AMENDMENT. Section 57-40.6-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

57-40.6-02. Authority of counties or cities to impose fee on telephone exchange access service and on wireless service - Procedure. The governing body of a county or city may impose a fee on the use of telephone exchange access service and on the use of wireless service in accordance with the following requirements:

1. The governing body shall adopt a resolution that proposes the adoption of the fee permitted under this section. The resolution must specify an effective date for the fee which is no more than two years before the expected implementation date of the emergency services communication system to be funded by the fee. The resolution must include a provision for submitting the proposed fee to the electors of the county or city before the imposition of the fee is effective. The resolution must specify a fee that does not exceed one dollar per month per telephone access line and per wireless access line.
2. The question of the adoption of the fee must be submitted on a ballot on which the ballot title of the proposition includes the maximum monthly rate of the proposed fee authorized under subsection 1. The question of the adoption of the fee may be submitted to electors at a general, primary, or special election or at a school district election if the boundaries of the school district are coterminous with the boundaries of the governing body adopting the resolution proposing the adoption of the fee. The fee is not effective unless it is approved by a majority of the electors voting on the proposition. The ballot must be worded so that a "yes" vote authorizes imposition of the fee for an initial six-year period.
3. If the electors have approved imposition of a fee under this section before July 1, 2005, and the governing body of the city or county has not implemented that fee by June 30, 2005, the approval by the electors remains valid until the fee is implemented and, upon implementation, the fee may be imposed for a six-year period and is subject to reimposition under subsection 4.
4. Any political subdivision that desires to increase the fee, subject to the limitations in subsection 1, before the end of the six-year term, must use the same ballot procedure originally used to authorize the fee. The new ballot question may apply to only the proposed increase and not to the original amount or the original term. If the increase is approved, the new amount may be collected for the balance of the original six-year term. If the fee authorized by this section is approved by the electors, the fee may be reimposed for six additional years without resubmitting the question to the electors.
- ~~4.~~ 5. In any geographic area, only one political subdivision may impose the fee and imposition must be based on the subscriber service address.
- ~~5.~~ 6. In the interest of public safety, where the subscriber's telephone exchange access service boundary and the boundary of the political subdivision imposing the fee do not coincide, and where all of the political subdivisions within the subscriber's telephone exchange access service boundary have not complied with subsection 1, and where a majority of the E911 subscribers within the subscriber's telephone exchange access service boundary have voted for the fee, a telephone exchange access service subscriber whose subscriber service address is outside the political subdivision may receive E911 services by signing a contract agreement with the political subdivision providing the emergency services communications system. The telephone exchange access service provider may collect an additional fee, equal in amount to the basic fee on those subscribers within the exchange boundary. The additional fee amounts collected must be remitted as provided in this chapter.
- ~~6.~~ 7. A fee imposed under this section before August 1, 2001, may be extended to all wireless service at each subscriber service address within the area in which the fee is imposed only if that extension of the fee has been approved by a majority vote of the governing body of the city or county upon at least thirty days' prior notice in the official newspaper of the city or county that the governing body will consider the issue or by majority vote of the electors of the city or county voting on the question upon placement of

the question on the ballot by the governing body of the city or county at a regular or special city or county election.

SECTION 26. AMENDMENT. Section 5 of House Bill No. 1518, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, is amended and reenacted as follows:

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. The increase in the levy imposed by section 2 of this Act applies to all sales occurring on and after ~~the day of the next calendar quarter occurring at least thirty days after the effective date of this Act~~ July 1, 2005.

SECTION 27. REPEAL. Section 9 of Senate Bill No. 2015, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, is repealed.

SECTION 28. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL - STATE EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION STUDY. The legislative council shall study, during the 2005-06 interim, issues related to state employee compensation. The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixtieth legislative assembly. The study must include the following issues, which do not limit the scope of the legislative council's study of the state employee compensation system:

1. Total state employee compensation, including wages and salaries, annual leave, pay grades, classification, disaster or emergency services volunteers' leave, employee assistance program benefits, family and medical leave, funeral leave, holidays, hours of work, jury and witness leave, leave without pay, the merit system, military leave, overtime compensation, retirement benefits, health insurance benefits, severance pay, sick leave, benefits for temporary employees, time off to vote, and veterans' preferences.
2. The human resources system, including the development and determination of pay grades, classifications, and the relevance and appropriateness of utilizing information from the central states compensation association and job service North Dakota, as opposed to intrastate private sector employers in determining appropriate compensation levels and job classifications.
3. Retirement benefits.
4. Health insurance benefits, including the availability of health savings accounts, self-insurance, healthy lifestyle incentives, and the appropriateness of current health insurance benefits.
5. The feasibility and desirability of implementing equity pay, merit pay, and pay for performance compensation systems.

SECTION 29. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY - DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS AND REHABILITATION EMPLOYEE SALARIES. The legislative council shall consider studying, during the 2005-06 interim, employee salaries of the department of corrections and rehabilitation. The study must include:

1. Input from the office of management and budget human resource management services division regarding a salary comparison of the department's employees to market, the impact on the salary comparison of the salary increases and equity adjustments authorized for the 2005-07 biennium, and a review of the same information from 1995 through 2005, including a comparison of the salaries for the department of corrections and rehabilitation employees to market and any salary increases and equity adjustments provided during that time.
2. Input from the department of corrections and rehabilitation regarding employee salary increases provided by job classification from 1995 through 2005, employee turnover by job classification, salary equity funding requested and provided, and other relevant information.
3. A review by the legislative council of reasons relating to the divergence of salaries for the department of corrections and rehabilitation employees from market, including the related impact of demands on the department's

budget due to growth in inmate populations, increase in contract housing of inmates, budget reductions, and agency turnback.

The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixtieth legislative assembly.

SECTION 30. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - RESTORATION OF PILLARS IN THE MEMORIAL HALL. It is the intent of the fifty-ninth legislative assembly that the office of management and budget restore the pillars in the memorial hall of the state capitol prior to December 1, 2006.

SECTION 31. HIGHWAY FUND TRANSFER TO SPECIAL ROAD FUND. The department of transportation shall transfer from the state highway fund to the special road fund the amount necessary to provide \$500,000 in the special road fund for projects, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007.

SECTION 32. TRANSFER. During the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007, the director of the office of management and budget shall transfer \$55,300,000 from the permanent oil tax trust fund to the general fund.

SECTION 33. APPROPRIATION - JUDICIAL BRANCH. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$114,925, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the judicial branch for the purpose of providing additional compensation to elected judges and justices, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007.

SECTION 34. APPROPRIATION - NORTH DAKOTA VISION SERVICES - SCHOOL FOR THE BLIND. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$20,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the North Dakota vision services - school for the blind for the purpose of providing additional funding for temporary salaries, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007.

SECTION 35. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007, such amounts as may be necessary, but not to exceed the additional general fund revenues that will become available pursuant to the sale of oil put options as provided for in section 1 of chapter 491 of the 2003 Session Laws, to the office of management and budget to purchase oil put options through the state investment board.

SECTION 36. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$65,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of human services for providing additional incentive money to the Lake Region child support enforcement unit, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007.

SECTION 37. APPROPRIATION - LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the water development trust fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$20,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the legislative assembly for the purpose of paying North Dakota's contribution to the legislators' forum for Manitoba, Minnesota, North Dakota, and South Dakota, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007.

SECTION 38. Two new sections to House Bill No. 1286, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, are created and enacted as follows:

SECTION 13. EFFECTIVE DATE. Section 7 of this Act is effective for records requests made after December 31, 2004.

SECTION 14. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure.

SECTION 39. A new section to Senate Bill No. 2012, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, is created and enacted as follows:

LEGISLATIVE INTENT REGARDING INTERPRETATION. Sections 13 and 16 of this Act may not be construed to preclude claims for motor vehicle and special fuel

tax refunds by tribal members or tribal entities for taxes on purchases made before January 1, 2005.

SECTION 40. AMENDMENT. Section 20 of House Bill No. 1043, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, is amended and reenacted as follows:

SECTION 20. EFFECTIVE DATE - EXPIRATION DATE. Section 13 of this Act is effective for taxable events occurring from ~~January 1, 2006~~ October 1, 2005, through June 30, 2007, and is thereafter ineffective. The remainder of this Act is effective for taxable events occurring after ~~December 31~~ September 30, 2005.

SECTION 41. AMENDMENT. Section 12 of Senate Bill No. 2015, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, is amended and reenacted as follows:

SECTION 12. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY - STRATEGIC PLAN FOR DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS AND REHABILITATION'S INCARCERATION AND CORRECTIONAL FACILITY NEEDS.

1. The legislative council shall appoint an interim committee, during the 2005-06 interim, to develop a legislative strategic plan, including site and facilities' plans, for the department of corrections and rehabilitation's incarceration and correctional facility needs.
2. ~~The legislative council shall appoint a minimum of ten members of the house of representatives and a minimum of five members of the senate. The legislative council shall appoint the chairman of the appropriations committee of the house of representatives or the senate or the assistant majority leader of the house of representatives or the senate as the chairman of the committee.~~
3. The committee shall:
 - a. Receive information from the department of corrections and rehabilitation, regional authorities with regional corrections centers, counties with county jails, cities with city jails, corporations operating private correctional facilities, and others the committee considers necessary to develop a strategic plan for the state's incarceration and correctional facility needs for the next twenty years.
 - b. Consider using existing facilities; other available state facilities; and county, local, or private facilities.
 - c. Consider any cost and benefits of replacing all or parts of existing correctional facilities or other state property with a modern all-encompassing facility.
 - d. Consider state-operated facilities compared to contract-operated state facilities.
 - e. Consider contracting with a private entity to provide all or part of the state's correctional and rehabilitation needs.
 - f. Consider the impact to the department of corrections and rehabilitation of changing sentencing guidelines, increasing fines as an alternative to incarceration for nonviolent or minor drug offenders, and utilizing alternatives to incarceration and treatment programs, including receiving information regarding the efficiency of treatment programs.
 - g. Develop a strategic plan based on the information received by the committee.
4. ~~3.~~ The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixtieth legislative assembly.

SECTION 42. DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES - STATE HOSPITAL EMPLOYEE POSITIONS. The fifty-ninth Legislative Assembly authorizes up to

twenty-one additional full-time equivalent employee positions at the state hospital relating to the provisions of Senate Bill No. 2373, subject to approval by the emergency commission and the budget section.

SECTION 43. LAKE REGION STATE COLLEGE NORTH HALL. Lake region state college is authorized to change the scope of the project approved by the 2003 legislative assembly to allow for the renovation of the north hall residence facility to include complete remodeling of the entire facility.

SECTION 44. UNIVERSITY OF NORTH DAKOTA SCHOOL OF MEDICINE AND HEALTH SCIENCES - PERFORMANCE AUDIT. Notwithstanding North Dakota Century Code section 54-10-01, the state auditor may not conduct a performance audit during the 2005-07 biennium of the university of North Dakota school of medicine and health sciences until the completion of the school's accreditation process.

SECTION 45. EMERGENCY. Section 38 of this Act and section 8 of Senate Bill No. 2012, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, is declared to be an emergency measure."

Page 4, remove lines 1 through 30

Page 5, remove lines 1 through 30

Page 6, remove lines 1 through 5

Renumber accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1015 - Summary of Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	HOUSE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	SENATE VERSION	COMPARISON TO SENATE
Office of Management and Budget						
Total all funds	\$33,952,969	\$27,316,061	\$90,976	\$27,407,037	\$27,407,037	\$0
Less estimated income	11,683,281	7,374,000	103,868	7,477,868	7,477,868	
General fund	\$22,269,688	\$19,942,061	(\$12,892)	\$19,929,169	\$19,929,169	\$0
Legislative Assembly						
Total all funds	\$0	\$100,000	(\$80,000)	\$20,000	\$100,000	(\$80,000)
Less estimated income			20,000	20,000		20,000
General fund	\$0	\$100,000	(\$100,000)	\$0	\$100,000	(\$100,000)
Judicial Branch						
Total all funds	\$0	\$0	\$114,925	\$114,925	\$0	\$114,925
Less estimated income						
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$114,925	\$114,925	\$0	\$114,925
Vision Services - School for the Blind						
Total all funds	\$0	\$0	\$20,000	\$20,000	\$0	\$20,000
Less estimated income						
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$20,000	\$20,000	\$0	\$20,000
DHS - Program/Policy						
Total all funds	\$0	\$0	\$65,000	\$65,000	\$0	\$65,000
Less estimated income						
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$65,000	\$65,000	\$0	\$65,000
Bill Total						
Total all funds	\$33,952,969	\$27,416,061	\$210,901	\$27,626,962	\$27,507,037	\$119,925
Less estimated income	11,683,281	7,374,000	123,868	7,497,868	7,477,868	20,000
General fund	\$22,269,688	\$20,042,061	\$87,033	\$20,129,094	\$20,029,169	\$99,925

House Bill No. 1015 - Office of Management and Budget - Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	HOUSE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	SENATE VERSION	COMPARISON TO SENATE
Salaries and wages	\$13,558,925	\$13,512,017	(\$46,908)	\$13,495,793	\$13,495,793	
Operating expenses	11,233,906	11,233,906	107,200	11,341,106	11,341,106	
Capital assets	2,644,000	844,000		844,000	844,000	
Grants	179,000	389,000		389,000	389,000	
Prairie Public Broadcasting	1,337,138	1,337,138		1,337,138	1,337,138	
Statewide equity pool	5,000,000					
Total all funds	\$33,952,969	\$27,316,061	\$90,976	\$27,407,037	\$27,407,037	\$0
Less estimated income	11,683,281	7,374,000	103,868	7,477,868	7,477,868	
General fund	\$22,269,688	\$19,942,061	(\$12,892)	\$19,929,169	\$19,929,169	\$0

FTE	130.50	130.50	0.00	130.50	130.50	0.00
-----	--------	--------	------	--------	--------	------

Dept. 110 - Office of Management and Budget - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

	REDUCES RECOMMENDED FUNDING FOR HEALTH INSURANCE ¹	PROVIDES AUTHORITY FOR SERVER HOSTING SERVICES AND HOMELAND SECURITY ²	TOTAL CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES
Salaries and wages	(\$16,224)		(\$16,224)
Operating expenses		\$107,200	107,200
Capital assets			
Grants			
Prairie Public Broadcasting			
Statewide equity pool			
Total all funds	(\$16,224)	\$107,200	\$90,976
Less estimated income	(3,332)	107,200	103,868
General fund	(\$12,892)	\$0	(\$12,892)
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00

¹ This amendment reduces funding for state employee health insurance premiums from \$559.15 to \$553.95 per month.

² The conference committee agreed with the Senate amendment to add \$107,200 of funding from a homeland security grant to risk management for the cost of server hosting services at the Information Technology Department.

The conference committee agreed with the Senate amendments relating to the following:

- Amends North Dakota Century Code (NDCC) Section 54-03-20 providing for a member of the Legislative Assembly to elect to be reimbursed for less than the amount to which the legislator is entitled.
- Amends NDCC Section 54-44.1-06 providing that appropriation bills prepared by the Office of Management and Budget provide the same funding as approved by the most recently adjourned special or regular session of the Legislative Assembly, with amendments presented to reflect the executive recommendation. This amendment also provides for the Office of Management and Budget to provide the Legislative Assembly with estimated budget information for an additional four-year period beyond the two-year period covered by the executive recommendation.
- In addition, the Senate amended NDCC Section 54-44.1-06.1 to provide that the capital construction bill include only projects involving bonding and that all other capital projects be included in draft amendments to the appropriate agency's appropriations bill.
- Repeals Section 9 of 2005 Senate Bill No. 2015 relating to preparation of future composite schedules for teacher salaries.
- Removes the section which would have required the North Dakota Wheat Commission to submit a budget request to the Legislative Assembly.
- Provides for a Legislative Council study of employee salaries for the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation.

House Bill No. 1015 - Legislative Assembly - Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	HOUSE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	SENATE VERSION	COMPARISON TO SENATE
Operating expenses			\$20,000	\$20,000		\$20,000
Capital assets		<u>\$100,000</u>	<u>(\$100,000)</u>		<u>\$100,000</u>	<u>(100,000)</u>
Total all funds	\$0	\$100,000	(\$80,000)	\$20,000	\$100,000	(\$80,000)
Less estimated income			<u>20,000</u>	<u>20,000</u>		<u>20,000</u>
General fund	\$0	\$100,000	(\$100,000)	\$0	\$100,000	(\$100,000)
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

Dept. 150 - Legislative Assembly - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

	REMOVES FUNDING FOR MEETING ROOM REMODELING PROJECT ¹	ADDS FUNDING FOR LEGISLATORS' FORUM ²	TOTAL CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES
Operating expenses		\$20,000	\$20,000
Capital assets	<u>(\$100,000)</u>		<u>(100,000)</u>
Total all funds	(\$100,000)	\$20,000	(\$80,000)
Less estimated income		<u>20,000</u>	<u>20,000</u>
General fund	(\$100,000)	\$0	(\$100,000)
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00

¹ The conference committee removed the funding for the meeting room remodeling project.

² The conference committee added a section appropriating \$20,000 from the water development trust fund to the Legislative Assembly for paying North Dakota's contribution to the Legislators' Forum.

House Bill No. 1015 - Judicial Branch - Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	HOUSE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	SENATE VERSION	COMPARISON TO SENATE
Salaries and wages			<u>\$114,925</u>	<u>\$114,925</u>		<u>\$114,925</u>
Total all funds	\$0	\$0	\$114,925	\$114,925	\$0	\$114,925
Less estimated income						
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$114,925	\$114,925	\$0	\$114,925
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

Dept. 180 - Judicial Branch - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

	PROVIDES FUNDING FOR PROVIDING SALARY INCREASES TO JUDGES ¹	TOTAL CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES
Salaries and wages	<u>\$114,925</u>	<u>\$114,925</u>
Total all funds	\$114,925	\$114,925
Less estimated income		
General fund	\$114,925	\$114,925
FTE	0.00	0.00

¹ The conference committee provided an appropriation from the general fund for the increased cost to the judicial branch of providing judges and justices a 4 percent salary increase for each year of the biennium rather than a 3 percent for the first year and 4 percent the second year.

House Bill No. 1015 - Vision Services - School for the Blind - Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	HOUSE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	SENATE VERSION	COMPARISON TO SENATE
Salaries and wages			<u>\$20,000</u>	<u>\$20,000</u>		<u>\$20,000</u>
Total all funds	\$0	\$0	\$20,000	\$20,000	\$0	\$20,000
Less estimated income						
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$20,000	\$20,000	\$0	\$20,000
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

Dept. 253 - Vision Services - School for the Blind - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

	ADDS FUNDING FOR TEMPORARY SALARIES ¹	TOTAL CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES
Salaries and wages	<u>\$20,000</u>	<u>\$20,000</u>
Total all funds	\$20,000	\$20,000
Less estimated income		

General fund	\$20,000	\$20,000
FTE	0.00	0.00

¹ The conference committee provided a \$20,000 general fund appropriation to North Dakota Vision Services - School for the Blind for providing additional funding for temporary salaries.

House Bill No. 1015 - DHS - Program/Policy - Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	HOUSE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	SENATE VERSION	COMPARISON TO SENATE
Operating expenses			<u>\$65,000</u>	<u>\$65,000</u>		<u>\$65,000</u>
Total all funds	\$0	\$0	\$65,000	\$65,000	\$0	\$65,000
Less estimated income						
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$65,000	\$65,000	\$0	\$65,000
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

Dept. 328 - DHS - Program/Policy - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

	ADDS FUNDING FOR INCENTIVE MONEY ¹	TOTAL CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES
Operating expenses	<u>\$65,000</u>	<u>\$65,000</u>
Total all funds	\$65,000	\$65,000
Less estimated income		
General fund	\$65,000	\$65,000
FTE	0.00	0.00

¹ The conference committee provided an appropriation to the Department of Human Services for providing additional incentive money to the Lake Region child support enforcement unit.

The conference committee made the following changes:

- Adds sections making the statutory changes to provide elected officials, except the Governor and Lieutenant Governor, a 4 percent salary increase for each year of the biennium. An appropriation section is added providing \$114,925 from the general fund for the increased cost to the judicial branch of providing judges and justices a 4 percent salary increase for each year of the biennium rather than 3 percent for the first year and 4 percent for the second year.
- Adds a section providing a transfer from the permanent oil tax trust fund to the general fund.
- Adds a section requiring the Department of Transportation to transfer funds from the state highway fund to a special road fund to make available \$500,000 in the special road fund for projects during the 2005-07 biennium.
- Provides for a transfer of \$6,800,000 from the lands and minerals trust fund to the general fund. The Senate amendment limited the transfer to \$5,000,000.
- Removes sections relating to the transfer of State Radio to the Division of Emergency Management.
- Provides intent for the Office of Management and Budget to restore the pillars in Memorial Hall.
- Creates two new sections to House Bill No. 1286 relating to open records request and to declare an emergency.
- Provides for Legislative Council study of state employee compensation.
- Changes the effective date for the increase in the wheat tax levy.
- Amends Section 12 of 2005 Senate Bill No. 2015 relating to a Legislative Council study of the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation.

- Amends Section 20 of 2005 House Bill No. 1043 relating to the effective date of streamlined sales tax agreement complying amendments.
- Authorizes change in the scope of the North Hall renovation project at Lake Region State College.
- Adds a section allowing the Office of Management and Budget to purchase oil put options.
- Amends Section 57-40.6-02 relating to voter approval of imposition of fees for emergency services communication systems.
- Amends Section 15.1-06-06 relating to the approval of public and nonpublic schools.
- A section is added making section 8 of Senate Bill No. 2012, the Department of Transportation bill, relating to issuing bonds for the United States Highway 2 and Liberty Memorial Bridge projects an emergency.
- A section is added providing that the State Auditor's office may not conduct a performance audit of the University of North Dakota School of Medicine and Health Sciences until the completion of the school's accreditation process.
- A section is added providing a \$20,000 general fund appropriation to Vision Services - School for the Blind for providing additional funding for temporary salaries.
- A section is added providing legislative intent regarding fuels tax refund by Native Americans.

Engrossed HB 1015 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. BERG MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1015 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed HB 1015, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1015: A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the various divisions under the supervision of the director of the office of management and budget; to provide for various transfers and financial transactions; to provide an exemption from the provisions of section 54-44.1-11 of the North Dakota Century Code; to create and enact two new sections to House Bill No. 1286, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, and a new section to Senate Bill No. 2012, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, relating to open records requests and to interpretation of provisions relating to refunds of certain fuels taxes paid by native Americans; to amend and reenact sections 4-01-21, 15.1-02-02, 15.1-06-06, 26.1-01-09, 27-02-02, 27-05-03, 49-01-05, 54-03-20, 54-09-05, 54-10-10, 54-11-13, 54-12-11, 54-44.1-06, 54-44.1-06.1, 57-01-04, and 57-40.6-02 of the North Dakota Century Code and section 5 of House Bill No. 1518, section 12 of Senate Bill No. 2015, and section 20 of House Bill No. 1043, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, relating to salaries of elected officials, school calendars, lodging reimbursement for members of the legislative assembly, preparation of the budget data, voter approval of imposition of fees for emergency services communication systems, the state wheat commission levy, a legislative council study of the department of corrections and rehabilitation, and the effective date of streamlined sales tax agreement complying amendments; to repeal section 9 of Senate Bill No. 2015, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, relating to composite schedules for teacher salaries; to provide for a legislative council study; to provide legislative intent; and to declare an emergency.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 73 YEAS, 17 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Berg; Bernstein; Boe; Boucher; Brandenburg; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Charging; Clark; Conrad; DeKrey; Delmore; Dietrich; Dosch; Ekstrom; Froelich; Froseth; Galvin; Glassheim; Guleson; Haas; Hanson; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Horter; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsch, S.; Kingsbury; Klemm; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Maragos; Martinson;

Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Mueller; Nelson; Nicholas; Nottestad; Onstad; Owens; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Sandvig; Schmidt; Sitte; Solberg; Svedjan; Thorpe; Timm; Uglem; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Zaiser; Speaker Klein

NAYS: Bellew; Belter; Boehning; Carlson; Delzer; Devlin; Drovdal; Iverson; Kasper; Kempenich; Monson; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Skarphol; Thoreson; Vigasaa; Wrangham

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Damschen; Grande; Kerzman; Norland

Engrossed HB 1015 passed, the title was agreed to, and the emergency clause was declared carried.

MOTION

REP. BERG MOVED that a committee of three be appointed to notify the Senate that the House has completed its business and is about to adjourn, which motion prevailed.

THE SPEAKER APPOINTED Rep. N. Johnson, Rep. Horter, Rep. Potter.

REP. BERG MOVED that a committee of three be appointed to notify the Governor that the House has completed its business and is about to adjourn, which motion prevailed.

THE SPEAKER APPOINTED Rep. Herbel, Rep. S. Kelsh, Rep. L. Meier.

ANNOUNCEMENT

REP. N. JOHNSON ANNOUNCED that the committee appointed to notify the Senate that the House has completed its business and is about to adjourn has completed its business and asks to be discharged, which request was granted.

REP. HERBEL ANNOUNCED that the committee to notify the Governor that the House has completed its business and is about to adjourn has completed its business and asks to be discharged, which request was granted.

MOTION

REP. MONSON MOVED that the absent member be excused, which motion prevailed.

MOTION

REP. MONSON MOVED that the House be on the Fourth, Twelfth, Fifteenth and Sixteenth orders of business, and on the conclusion of those orders, the House adjourn sine die, which motion prevailed.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has not adopted the conference committee report on: SB 2188.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has reconsidered its action whereby it did not concur with the House amendments to SB 2188 and wishes to inform you that the Senate does now concur with the House amendments to SB 2188 and subsequently passed the same. Also, the Senate has dissolved the Senate Conference Committee on SB 2188.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report, subsequently passed, and the emergency clause carried: HB 1013.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report, subsequently passed, and the emergency clause carried: HB 1015.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report, subsequently passed, and the emergency clause carried: HB 1020.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has amended and subsequently passed: HB 1035.

SENATE AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1035

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a state government performance and accountability system pilot project."

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL - GOVERNMENT PERFORMANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY SYSTEM PILOT PROJECT. The legislative council shall assign, to an interim committee, responsibility to establish a government performance and accountability system pilot project involving up to three executive branch agencies during the 2005-06 interim. The interim committee may include representatives of the office of management and budget and the state auditor's office. The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations, along with any legislation necessary to implement its recommendations relating to the pilot project, to the sixtieth legislative assembly.

SECTION 2. GOVERNMENT PERFORMANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY SYSTEM PILOT PROJECT - GUIDELINES AND CRITERIA. Each executive branch agency selected for inclusion in the pilot project shall, with input from the legislative council's interim committee:

1. Prepare biennial goals and objectives and related performance measurement indicators for major programs of the agency or department. The performance measures must provide, to the extent possible, the data necessary to assess the performance of major activities of an agency, including a program's efficiency and effectiveness; and provide a comparison, to the extent appropriate, to other states' performance measures.
2. Establish, to the extent possible, a three-year to five-year strategic plan to guide its operations and activities. The strategic plan must include:
 - a. The mission, goals, and objectives of the agency or department.
 - b. Identification of the groups of people served by the agency and the results of any methodology used to assess and improve services.
 - c. The strategies and activities utilized to meet agency or department goals and objectives.
 - d. A general description of the agency's or department's sources and uses of funds.
 - e. Estimated future service requirements and the resources that may be necessary to meet those requirements.
 - f. External factors affecting services of the agency or department.
 - g. The performance measurement indicators developed under this Act used to evaluate and assess the agency's or department's performance.
3. Prepare, to the extent possible, a biennial performance report that summarizes its goals and objectives, compares performance results to performance targets, provides explanations of any major variances between performance results and targets, presents multiyear trends in performance results, and, to the extent possible, provides comparisons to other states' performance results and national benchmarks."

Renumber accordingly

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)
MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has not adopted the conference committee report on: HB 1154.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)
MR. SPEAKER: The President has appointed Sen. Taylor to replace Sen. Seymour on the Conference Committee on HB 1154.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)
MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: HB 1154.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report, subsequently passed, and the emergency clause carried: SB 2001.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report, subsequently passed, and the emergency clause failed to pass: SB 2012.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has not adopted the conference committee report on: SB 2023.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report, subsequently passed, and the emergency clause carried: SB 2023.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: SB 2037.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The President has signed: HB 1002, HB 1003, HB 1004, HB 1008, HB 1009, HB 1016, HB 1018, HB 1195, HB 1252.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The President has signed: HB 1012.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: Your signature is respectfully requested on: SB 2188.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: Your signature is respectfully requested on: SB 2002, SB 2003, SB 2004, SB 2007, SB 2010, SB 2011, SB 2012, SB 2014, SB 2016, SB 2018, SB 2019, SB 2020, SB 2021, SB 2031, SB 2032, SB 2059, SB 2157, SB 2228, SB 2267, SB 2373.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: Your signature is respectfully requested on: SB 2023.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has adopted the conference committee report, subsequently passed, and the emergency clause carried: HB 1015.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has concurred in the Senate amendments and subsequently passed: HB 1035.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has concurred in the Senate amendments and subsequently passed: HB 1050.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has not adopted the conference committee report on: HB 1154.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has adopted the conference committee report, subsequently passed, and the emergency clause failed: HB 1154.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has adopted the conference committee report, subsequently passed, and the emergency clause failed to pass: SB 2001.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has adopted the conference committee report, subsequently passed, and the emergency clause carried: SB 2003, SB 2021.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: SB 2012.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has adopted the conference committee report, subsequently passed, and the emergency clause failed to pass: SB 2023.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently failed to pass: SB 2037.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: SB 2373.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: Your signature is respectfully requested on: HB 1015.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: Your signature is respectfully requested on: HB 1019, HB 1021.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: Your signature is respectfully requested on: HB 1530.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: Your signature is respectfully requested on: HB 1035.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: Your signature is respectfully requested on: HB 1020.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: Your signature is respectfully requested on: HB 1050.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The Speaker has signed: SB 2023.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The Speaker has signed: SB 2188.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The Speaker has signed: SB 2002, SB 2003, SB 2004, SB 2007, SB 2010, SB 2011, SB 2012, SB 2014, SB 2016, SB 2018, SB 2019, SB 2020, SB 2021, SB 2031, SB 2032, SB 2059, SB 2157, SB 2228, SB 2267, SB 2373.

The House stood adjourned pursuant to Representative Monson's motion.

Bradley C. Fay, Chief Clerk

